Public Document Pack

Wirral Schools Forum
Date:
Time:

Wednesday, 13 November 2013
6.00 pm

Venue:

Council Chamber, Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer:
Tel:
e-mail:
Website:

Sue Ashley
0151 666 4579
SueAshley@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR

2.

MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 3RD JULY 2013 (Pages
1 - 6)

3.

MATTERS ARISING

4.

FINAL DSG 2013-14 (Pages 7 - 10)

5.

BUDGET SAVINGS (Pages 11 - 26)

6.

LACES SCHOOL FORUM 131113 (Pages 27 - 30)

7.

ADMISSIONS (Pages 31 - 34)

8.

CITY LEARNING CENTRES (Pages 35 - 38)

9.

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT (Pages 39 - 42)

10.

HOME TUITION (Pages 43 - 44)

11.

FUNDING HIGH NEEDS STUDENTS (Pages 45 - 46)

12.

OUTCOME OF HIGH NEEDS CONSULTATION (Pages 47 - 78)

13.

OUTCOME OF EARLY YEARS CONSULTATION (Pages 79 - 86)

14.

OUTCOME OF MAINSTREAM FUNDING CONSULTATION (Pages
87 - 100)

15.

DRAFT SCHOOL FINANCE REGULATIONS (Pages 101 - 106)

16.

SCHOOLS FORUM: OPERATIONAL AND GOOD PRACTICE GUIDE
(Pages 107 - 140)

17.

WORK PLAN (Pages 141 - 142)

18.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Agenda Item 2
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM
3rd July 2013
MINUTES

Present:

M Kophamel (Vice Chair)
Schools Group
S Allen
B Cummings
W Fairman
C Hughes
L Ireland
B Jordan
S Lloyd

A Moore
S Peach
C Penn
K Podmore
M Walker
J Weise
G Zsapka

Non-Schools Group
J Kenny
D McDonald

B McGregor
N Reilly

In Attendance:
D Armstrong
P Arista
P Ashcroft
S Ashley
J Bevan
Cllr. W Clements
C Chow
Apologies:

M Brown
E Cogan
S Davies
P Dixon
K Frost
J Gordon
J Hassall

S Dainty
K Lloyd
D Marchant
C McGowan
A Roberts
P Sheridan

S Higginson
D Kitchin
R Longster
S McNamara
J Owens
G Pritchard

1.

Minutes from the Meeting Held on 10th April
The minutes from the meeting were accepted as a true record.

2.

Matters Arising
The proposals from the Transport Consultation are due to go to Cabinet on
Thursday 11th July 2013.

3.

Schools Budget Outturn
Andrew Roberts presented the provisional outturn figures for 2012-13, showing an
under spend of £472,000. There is, in total, £2m of DSG funds held in reserve.
This is earmarked for JE and harmonisation (£668k), the cost of automatic readers

Page 1

(£415k), school contingency (£194k), CLCs (£115k), ASTs (£136k) and an
unallocated balance (£472k).
Resolved
The Forum noted the report.

4.

School Balances as at 31st March 2012-13
Sue Ashley reported that the school balances have risen as at 31st March 2013 by
£1.8m to £11.9m. Schools should be clear about why they hold balances and how
they plan to use them.
Although 4 schools finished the year with deficit balances only 1 school has
requested a deficit budget for 2013-14.
Resolved
The Forum noted the report.

5.

High Needs Funding Options and Consultation Paper
Paul Ashcroft explained that the consultation for High Need top ups was prepared
by the Forum’s SEN Steering Group. The paper will be sent to schools shortly; the
consultation will run until October half term. It is a comprehensive consultation split
into the following sections:§ Special schools
§ Base provision in mainstream schools
§ Alternative provision
§ Mainstream schools
§ Post 16 provision
The non-teacher representative commented that the proposals need more
clarification and an analysis/review is required for each school in order to identify
each student’s needs and requirements, this should help allocate the correct levels
of top up funding in a fair and transparent manner. This comment will be
considered alongside the responses from the consultation.
Resolved
The Forum agreed to consult on the proposals and consider the responses at the
next forum meeting.

6.

Nursery School Funding
Kath Lloyd informed the Forum of the increased entitlement and funding for 2 year
olds.
Andrew Roberts highlighted the need to consult schools and early year’s providers
on:§ The changes arising from the national review of the Early Years Single
Funding Formula (EYSFF) and proposals to simplify it.
§ The additional costs incurred by maintained nursery schools compared to
other providers and how that might be better reflected in the formula.
Resolved

Page 2

The Forum noted the report and agreed to consult with schools and early years
providers regarding changes to the EYSFF.

7.

DfE and Local Funding Formula Proposals
Andrew Roberts summarised the DfEs changes to the schools’ funding formula in
2014-15 along with some proposed local amendments. Schools will be consulted
on the following changes:§ Low cost, high incidence SEN – for secondary schools the national indicator
will change to children who do not achieve level 4 in English or Maths.
§ English as an additional language (EAL) – it is proposed locally to allocate
the funding for EAL children for the first 3 years in the education system,
instead of 1 year.
§ Looked after Children (LAC) – The DfE will require LAs to change the
indicator from children looked after for 6 months to children looked after for 1
day. In addition, a view on whether there should be a local change to the
amount, e.g. to double this funding to £1,125.
§ Delegation of free school milk – it is proposed to delegate this funding on the
basis of Free School Meals (FSM) pupils only.
§ Split sites – to consider sites split by a road and with more than 1 reception
area.
There are no suggested changes for pupil led funding, deprivation, mobility, or the
lump sum.
An academy representative on behalf of other head teachers requested that
deprivation funding is looked at again, particularly as pupil premium is set to rise in
2014-15. A KS3 pupil on FSM could generate £7356.21 compared to £3891.65 for
a KS3 child who is not on FSM. As we move towards a national funding formula
other forum members stated that they would prefer that deprivation is not consulted
on at this time.
The discussion moved to the Pupil Premium funding, the impact on raising
achievement and the significance OFSTED are placing on it.
Resolved
The views of the Forum were sought on the proposed consultation and a report on
the outcome will be brought to the next meeting.

8.

Traded Services Update
David Armstrong briefed the Forum about the move to a consistent approach for
Traded Services under the leadership of Stuart Bellerby. Meetings have taken
place with the 2 Headteacher groups with recommendations made that are similar
to those agreed in principle by Wirral’s Chief Executive Strategy Group. The
recommendations were:1. In principle to manage school traded services cost effectively and efficiently
across the LA under the Assistant Chief Executive / Head of Universal &
Council Infrastructure Services utilising existing council frameworks from
2013/14 and to include all current school traded services.
2. The current traded service budgets and staffing are reviewed taking account of
the income generated.
3. All traded service budgets for 2013/14 are reviewed in agreement with

Page 3

Corporate Finance and the relevant Departmental leads. Appropriate service
charges for the overheads of a coordinated traded service are developed.
4. Any proposed or new traded services from Wirral Council are considered to
come under the new traded services organisation and follow similar principles
as the current traded services.
5. The new traded services organisation considers new business opportunities
and legal structures and reports back to a future meeting.
Resolved
The Forum noted the report and endorsed the recommendations agreed by the
Headteacher management group and CESG.

9.

City Learning Centres Review
Following the request for a review of City Learning Centres (CLCs) by secondary
schools Phil Sheridan summarised the current position as follows:§ CLCs are funded through a combined budget
§ Each CLC has its own governance, management and staffing structure.
§ Current funding does not allow for equipment replacement of technology that
is in need of repair and dated.
§ There is no intention for the LA to reduce funding at this time, but if they did
any reduction would be delegated to schools. Delegation is the favoured
position of secondary schools and academies.
Resolved
The Schools Members of the Forum voted on the following proposals:1. That the combined budget for CLCs should be reduced (3 for, 8 against, 3
abstentions). Therefore, the overall CLC budgets should remain at their
current level.
2. That the governance and management structure of the CLCs should be
reduced to one and a business plan produced (13 for, 1 abstention).
3. That in principal, the number of CLCs should be reduced from 3 to 2,
however, the final decision should be taken by the Management Committee.
(10 for, abstentions 4).

10.

Funding High Needs Students aged 16-24 update
Paul Arista updated the Forum about high needs (SEN) students aged 16 – 24
years. Since April 2013 the Local Authority has been responsible for distributing
high needs support above the place funding amount of £10k. Wirral has 331
learners who require funding for 2013/14. There is an estimated budget shortfall of
£27k which will have to be met from elsewhere in the DSG. Discussions are
continuing with the EFA, this is an area where there are likely to be increasing
budget pressures.
Resolved
The Report was noted.
The Forum unanimously agreed to continue dialogue with the EFA to highlight
future budget pressures that are not sustainable beyond 2013/14.

Page 4

11.

Scheme for Financing Schools – Approval for Changes
Sue Ashley confirmed that the Scheme changes had been consulted with schools.
Resolved
The Forum agreed the changes to the Scheme.

12.

Forum Membership
Sue Ashley updated the meeting on the current Forum representation, vacancies
and future changes.
Resolved
The report was noted

13.

Workplan
The dates of future meetings were noted:13th November 2013
22nd January 2014
2nd April 2014
2nd July 2014

14.

Any Other Business
Thanks to Morag Kophamel for her work as vice-chair and as a Primary
headteacher representative, and good luck in her new role.
Thanks, also, to Paula Dixon for her contribution as a secondary Headteacher
representative and more recently as an academy representative.
Welcome to Wendy Fairman the new PRU member of the Forum.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 13TH NOVEMBER 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
FINAL DSG ALLOCATIONS 2013-14
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The Dedicated Schools Grant allocation for Wirral before deductions for
academies recoupment and direct funding of academy High Needs places by
the EFA is £234,917,000 for 2013/14. After such deductions the final
Dedicated Schools Grant is £176,066,000, an adjustment of £58,839,000.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

DSG for 2013-14 is calculated from October 2012 PLASC and January 2013
and 2014 Early Years Census Data. Overall therefore this information will not
be finalised until 2014. The latest position was confirmed by the DfE on 19th
July 2013 and is required to be confirmed by the Director of Finance to the
Department for Education.

2.2

The DSG allocation for 2013-14 is in four blocks as detailed below:
Schools Block - £130,227,000
Based on 41,343 pupils aged 4-15 per October 2012 Census at £4,547.11
each, with an academy recoupment adjustment of £57,592,000
Early Years Block - £11,205,000
Based on 2,936 FTE pupils aged 3 & 4 per January 2013 Census at
£3,816.57 each
High Needs Block - £31,235,000
This includes the funding for all high needs pupils/students to enable local
authorities to commission places for young people from 0-24 from a single
funding stream.
Other - £3,399,000
This includes funding for early education places for 2 year olds from lower
income households, NQT induction and former grant funding at Non
Maintained Special Schools.

2.3

The changes since the 2013-14 Schools Budget was approved in January are
summarised in the attached appendix.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That members note the report prior to submission to the DfE.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

DSG Summary as at July 2013
Original DSG
per Schools Budget Adjustments since January
£
1. Schools Block
187,991,000
Based on 41,343 Pupils aged 4 - 15
per October 2012 Census @ £4,547.11each

2. Early Years Block
11,087,000
Based on 2,905 FTE pupils aged 3 and 4 per
adjusted January 2011 Census @ £3,816.57 each

Page 9

3. High Needs Block
31,773,000
2011-12 Budget baseline
Including 323 post16 SEN / LLDD students
"@ £2,800

4. Other (2 Year old etc)

Total

3,285,000

£

£

-57,592,000 Academy recoupment for 13 secondary
academies
-184,000 Recoupment of AWPU for bases (5/12)
12,000 Correct St Anselms EAL census data

57,000 To include nursery at B'head High Academy
61,000 Jan Census 16 extra pupils

105,000
237,000
195,000
-937,000
-550,000
412,000

SEN inclusion base growth 7/12ths
Hospital School growth to cease AWPU charges
Additional 16 - 19 learners
Full year academy base recoupment
55 Non Maintained Special School places @ £10,000
Adj to correct academy base deduction to part year

114,000 Non Maintained Special Schools grant funding

234,136,000

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\9\5\AI00023594\$aupl5acs

Appendix 1
Updated DSG
Table July

130,227,000

11,205,000

31,235,000

3,399,000

176,066,000

05/11/13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

Budget Options:
Summary Document for
Families & Wellbeing

If you care about tomorrow,
you need to tell us today.

Page 11

Message from the Chief Executive

Dear Resident
I’m sure you will be aware that Councils across the country are facing major cuts in funding.
The Government is continuing to reduce the amount of money Councils are able to spend on services.
These cuts are falling more and more on deprived, northern areas such as Wirral. While we fiercely
believe the way these cuts are being allocated is both disproportionate and unfair, we have no choice
but to implement them.
These are tough times - for our staff, Councillors, and most importantly the people who we serve. We
have more extremely tough decisions to make over the coming months. To refuse to make the savings
demanded of us would mean setting an illegal budget, which would ultimately result in the wholesale
closure of services - putting thousands of vulnerable people at very real risk. Our duty as public servants
is to do all we can to use the limited resources we have left in the most effective way possible to continue
to ensure the services you rely on most remain available in some form. The only way we can do this is in
partnership with you. We need your input and your views.
We started this process last year, and agreed savings of almost £50 million. This was a good start, and
we were able, thankfully, to make most of these savings through so-called ‘back office’ costs, including
efficiencies in areas such as management administration, marketing, agency costs, car mileage and
phone bills. We also made significant progress in removing the legacy of bad financial management at
this Council – we have made sure that going forward Council budgets are robust and are based on
sound evidence, and the mistakes of the past are not repeated.
However, this year, we need to make further savings and are again asking for your help. Once again, we
tried to come up with options which would mitigate, as much as possible, the impact of these budget
cuts on our most vulnerable residents. Within this document you will find both an explanation of the
Council budget, plus a series of principles which have been used to develop these options.
I put forward to you my options for where savings might be found, and I am asking all of you - residents,
partners, and staff - to consider how we can spend less while minimising the impact on our poorest and
most vulnerable residents. I understand how difficult it may be to contemplate some of these options,
but the only responsible thing for us to do is to deal with the financial challenges we face.
Last year, we knew we had to save £109 million over the next three years – that figure has actually
grown due to further announcements by the Government. This coming financial year, our budget gap is
£27.5 million. We have found efficiency savings which add up to around £7 million, which do not impact
on services. We are also assuming a below inflation rise in Council Tax which would generate £2 million.
This means, of the budget options which have been put forward, only around £17.5 million need to be
agreed – which I hope demonstrates that there is real choice over where savings can be found.
My pledge to you is that I will consult with staff, residents, community, voluntary and faith groups and
businesses so that we can make these tough decisions together. I urge you to work with us and let us
have your views.
Graham Burgess,
Chief Executive.

Page 12

Message from Strategic Director, Clare Fish

The challenges we are facing, both in a financial and demographic sense, mean that we
must change, we must adapt, and we must innovate to ensure that we continue to deliver
services which are relevant to those who need them.
We have an ageing population, and more vulnerable adults needing our help. We have more and more
children needing our support, and we have growing levels of child poverty. At the same time, the
aspirations of the people we work with are, quite rightly, rising – as are their expectations of us.
However, we have less money than ever to support them. Our challenges are clear – they are significant,
but not insurmountable.
A priority is to continue to fulfil our duties to safeguard those who are most vulnerable whilst targeting
the resources we have to ensure we achieve maximum value for the Wirral pound. We will continually
seek innovative solutions to make certain the financial constraints being placed on the Council do not
impact on our residents’ ability to live full lives and achieve their aspirations.
To do this we must adopt a new way of thinking – working with and supporting individuals and
communities to become more resilient, thereby reducing dependency and encouraging greater
independence. This will require residents, people using our services and also our workforce to think and
work differently.
It will also mean we will work much more closely with partners looking at how we can deliver services
better together. We will be looking for whether other organisations are better placed to deliver services
on our behalf.
We will shift focus, proactively involving service users in all aspects of how services are designed,
delivered and reviewed. The money we spend will be scrutinised to ensure we commit public resources
only where it will have most impact and deliver the most positive outcomes.
We recognise that none of these changes can happen overnight. We have a lot of work to do to ‘get the
basics right’ and to bring our finances into line. We have already made a good start – and we will
continue to work hard to make sure we get there.
The savings which are being proposed this year are difficult. They impact on you, as a resident, and they
impact on our staff. They are tough choices, but necessary ones, and if we are to be successful we
need to work together – staff, residents, partners and Councillors. I therefore strongly urge you to let us
have your views.

Clare Fish,
Strategic Director Families & Wellbeing

Page 13

Your Budget Explained

The Council, like a lot of public sector agencies and big organisations, has an extremely
complicated budget. We’ve tried to simplify it on this page, to explain to you why we need to
make savings and where our £27.5 million budget gap has come from.

WHERE OUR MONEY COMES FROM (2014/15):

£111 million
£146.5 million
£19 million

Settlement
Income
Grants

£52 million

Reimbursements
Tax and Rates

£423 million

Firstly, it’s important to be clear about where the money Wirral Council spends actually comes from.
As you’ll see from the chart – the vast majority of the money comes from the Government, in the form
of ‘Grants’ (£423 million), which is money provided to Councils to do specific jobs mainly for schools
and housing, and a ‘Settlement’ (£146.5 million), which is divided up among all of the Councils in the
country based on need and deprivation. We also receive £111 million from Council Tax and Business
Rates, £52 million in income from services and £19 million in ‘reimbursements’, which is where
organisations like the NHS pay us for delivering services on their behalf.

WHERE OUR MONEY IS SPENT:
£25 million
£204 million
£157 million

Back Office
Benefits and
Customer Services

£17 million

Capital Financing
Environment
Sports

£263 million

Page 14

£105 million

Education (schools)

£8 million

Social Care
and Health

Your Budget Explained

You will see from the chart on the previous page that most of the money is either spent on social care
and health (£204 million) or on education and schools (£263 million). We also spend £105 million on
services to protect and improve our environment, economy and housing, £8 million on sports and £157
million on benefits and customer services – including libraries and one stop shops. We spend £17
million on ‘capital financing’, which are costs associated with managing the Council’s finances and the
hundreds of buildings which services are run from, and we spend £25 million on ‘back office support’,
which are those services that you rarely see but are essential to keep the Council running – things like
human resources, Information Technology and finance.
If you look at both charts, you will see that next year our current services and plans are set to spend
£27.5 million more than we receive. That is the problem we are asking for your help in solving, and
why this consultation is so important.

WHERE OUR BUDGET GAP HAS COME FROM:

New Government Cuts
Savings Previously
Agreed for 2014/15

-£17.5
million
£21
million

Remaining Structural
Budget Deficit
£14
million

£8
million

£2
million

Unavoidable
Demographic Growth
Inflation

This year, we have to cope with new Government cuts of around £21 million. This wasn’t a surprise – as
you will know the Government has been cutting back on spending for a number of years now; so we
made £17.5 million worth of savings from the last consultation which we will feel the impact of next year.
We also have to deal with demographic growth, which will cost an extra £8 million, and unavoidable
inflation, which will cost an extra £2 million. Also, due to a series of factors including bad financial
management on our part and under funding, we have to correct our budgets for social care for adults
and children – that will cost £14 million.
All of this means that we need to make savings this year of £27.5 million. We have presented lots of
ideas for how we might do it – now we need to know what you think.

Page 15

Budget Principles

Wirral Council is facing unprecedented budget challenges. To make the savings being
demanded of us, and to continue to provide access to the services which our residents rely
on, is going to take radical thinking, determination and some extremely difficult decisions.

10%

38%
Being more efficient
Working together
Promoting independence
Targeting resources

34%

18%

The Leader of the Council has been, and remains,
determined to ensure that the budget options we
put forward lessen, as much as possible, the
impact on front line services and the most
vulnerable. That is the overriding principle upon
which these options have been developed.

3. Promoting Independence: Wirral has vibrant,
strong and cohesive communities. We will
make sure that our communities have the
tools, the confidence and the ability to help
themselves to address local needs and
improve residents’ lives.

Clearly, considering the amount of savings which
are required for the coming year, having some
affect on services is unavoidable. So, we have
developed a further four principles for developing
options, focussing as much as possible on the
running costs of the Council.

4. Targeting Resources: The sheer scale of our
financial challenges means that we cannot
continue to invest the same amounts of money
into some services, and they will need to be
reduced. We will work in partnership with you
to take these difficult decisions and to make
sure that our limited resources and services are
distributed in a way that is fair, equitable and
ensures they are targeted at those who need
them most.

1. Being More Efficient: We will make sure that
our services, our administration costs and our
processes are streamlined, efficient and
examples of national best practice to make sure
no money is wasted on bureaucracy when it
could be invested in services.
2. Working Together: We will work in genuine
partnership with the rest of the public sector and
organisations from the community, voluntary and
faith sector to ensure the highest level of
efficiency and the lowest levels of duplication to
get you the best value for your money as a Page
result.

The savings which are being proposed this year
are difficult. They impact on you, as a resident,
and they impact on our staff. They are tough
choices, but necessary ones, and if we are to be
successful we need to work together - staff,
residents, partners and Councillors. We have
made an excellent start, but the situation is very
challenging - please let us have your views.

16

Taking Part

We want everyone to be able to take part in this consultation. The options are difficult, they
are important, and we know they are tough choices. We have tried to make it as easy as
possible for everyone to take part.

More information about the budget options in
this document is available from our website, at
www.wirral.gov.uk/whatreallymatters.
You can also call into any Council building and
ask for copies.

If you would prefer an easy read version of this,
or one of other consultation documents, then
they are also available online - or you can
contact us via email at engage@wirral.gov.uk,
call into any Council building or call
0151 606 2030 and we will be happy to
send you a copy.

Page 17

Budget Options: Being More Efficient

Option:
Paying for Adult Social Care

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1117

-

-

1117

Summary:
A major priority within adult social
services is to improve the method in
which services are charged for; ensuring it
is fair, equitable and effective.
This work is intended to ensure that everyone
using services are financially assessed
promptly and importantly that the appropriate
levels of charges and financial support for
vulnerable people is implemented.

This proposal includes:
• Charging interest of 4% on deferred
payment balances that remain outstanding
more than 56 days after the end of the
agreement.
• Increase the Council’s debt recovery rate
from the existing 85% to at least 87.5%.
• Ensure Extra Care Housing clients are
assessed under the fairer charging system.
• Make the rates for respite, short term
residential and long term residential equal
at £120 per week, as is the case at many
other Councils.
It is important that the Council ensures that
payments are collected promptly and in a
way that is clear and fair in order to deliver a
balanced budget, which has been a problem
in the past.

Page 18

Budget Options: Being More Efficient

Option:
Review of Transport
Depot and Fleet

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

100

-

-

100

Summary:
The transport budget has a turnover of
£8.9m and it is proposed that a £100,000
saving is achieved within depot and
vehicle maintenance costs.
This will be through a consolidation of all
vehicle and equipment maintenance for the
council on one site, a review of the vehicle
fleet, rationalising, modernising and reducing
where possible and developing partnerships
with neighbouring authorities.

Page 19

Budget Options: Working Together

Option:
Shared Services & Integration
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

608

10

1200

1818

Summary:
Efficiencies can be achieved through
sharing resources, in particular through
developing shared services across the
council and across borders to deliver
more efficient use of the workforce.
It is national policy to move to integration with
the NHS with the aim of improving and
streamlining services in the community. As
integrated teams are developed and
assessment and delivery arrangements are
streamlined there will be further opportunities
for management savings. As part of this
option, a single Health and Social Care
organisation will be developed, streamlining
and improving social care and health
services.

We will move towards this by:
• Reviewing front line services in preparation
for full integration.
• Reviewing support services alongside
service re-design and streamlined
assessment and recording arrangements.
• Reviewing with our NHS partners of the
arrangements for the integrated equipment
services – ensuring value for money.
• Reviewing Mental Health Services which
builds on the review and re-organisation
already undertaken by the NHS
Partnership Trust.
This option will deliver an improved,
streamlined, effective service for people using
services although it will bring an impact on
the number of jobs required.

Page 20

Budget Options: Working Together

Option:
Accommodation for
16-17 Year Olds

Option:
Working in Partnership
with Schools

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

600

-

-

600

915

300

-

1215

Summary:
When a 16/17 year old is assessed as
at risk of being homeless temporary
accommodation is sometimes required,
while their needs are assessed. Similarly,
young people leaving care to live more
independently also need to have their
needs assessed, and are frequently
placed in accommodation which is
purchased as required.
Supported accommodation is currently
purchased as required, this is not always the
most effective solution for these young
people. There are plans to develop a service
delivered by a specialist provider within a
Council owned property. This will not just
realise a saving, but will help deliver a better
service and outcomes for these young people.

Summary:
This option would involve the Council
working in partnership with schools to
ensure that our shared resources are
used most effectively and equitably to
provide the services our young people
need.
This option would involve working with
schools to share the costs and resources
required to deliver a number of services,
including school crossing patrols, school
improvement, the education social welfare
service and some of the early retirement
costs associated with school staff.

It is proposed that accommodation for care
leavers who are moving on to live more
independently, should in future be provided
by reconfiguring some aspects of existing
supporting people contracts to provide
accommodation to meet these young
people’s needs.

Page 21

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Commissioning & Contracting
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1905

165

-

2070

Summary:
The Council has significantly
strengthened its commissioning functions,
which has enabled a strong focus on
improving strategic commissioning,
procurement and arrangements for
ensuring contract compliance.
This option will ensure that every penny the
Council spends delivers value for money and
improved outcomes for people who use
services.
This work is effectively underpinned by key
strategic commissioning plans which cover:
prevention and early intervention, carers,
targeted support, learning disabilities and the
Market Position Statement. There is now a
developing and maturing relationship with
providers from all sectors and a clearer focus
in relation to commissioned services.

This proposal includes:
• A shared approach and understanding on
how Council funding is commissioned within
the community, voluntary and faith sectors.
• Improvements in the payment process to
providers and the introduction of Electronic
Care Monitoring.
• Efficiency derived through stronger
strategic commissioning.
• Savings derived through effective control
of contract inflation.
• Efficiency through review of high cost
external contracts and improved outcomes
through more effective arrangements in
serving people with learning disabilities.
• Most savings within this option come from
improving processes and procedures and
do not have any impact on the service
received by the public.
We will work with colleagues and partners in
the community, voluntary and faith sectors to
ensure any potential impact on them is
mitigated. There will be potential impact on
service users who may experience a change
in service provider, as a result however,
services should be more effectively aligned to
assessed eligible needs.

Page 22

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Early Intervention to
Support Families

Option:
Careers Advice and Guidance

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

300

1950

-

2250

200

-

-

200

Summary:
The numbers of children becoming
looked after in Wirral is not any higher
than in comparable Councils; however
the children do remain in care here
longer than they should. This option
would focus on early intervention, and
supporting more children to safely leave
care and live with their families.

Summary:
This option refers to the Merseyside wide
contract to provide careers advice and
guidance to get young people into
education, employment or training. The
option would involve targeting the work to
provide most support to those people
who are not in education, employment or
training, or most at risk of becoming NEET.

Current spend on commissioning or
providing care for Looked After Children is
£16m per year from a total budget for
Specialist Services of £39m.

Importantly, this service is also provided to
young people who need it by many other
providers, including schools, colleges and
organisations within the voluntary and
community sector.

These proposals we will not compromise
children’s safely and welfare, which remains
our top priority and duty. The proposals
should reduce the number of children
needing more specialist intervention through
delivering targeted early help resulting in
fewer children needing specialist support and
providing capacity to support fewer children
to remain looked after for long periods of time.

Page 23

Budget Options: Promoting Independence

Option:
Service Design & Improvement
(Adult Social Care)

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

4148

1975

-

6123

Summary:
The Council is required to meet the needs
of those who are assessed as having
‘substantial’ or ‘critical’ needs as defined
within Fair Access to Care Guidance. The
Council currently spends £83.485m on
meeting assessed need.
Over the past year considerable work has
been undertaken to deliver efficiencies
through a programme of service re-design
and service improvement – thus ensuring that
the Council continues to meet its statutory
obligations.
The proposed ongoing efficiency is being
delivered through:
• Re-configuring intermediate care and reablement and through this reducing the
need for high levels of longer term support.
• Agreement with the NHS to utilising the
budget for delayed discharge
reimbursement for services that facilitate
better hospital discharge.
• Utilise the Social Care Fund grant more
effectively.
• Commission additional extra care housing
as an alternative to care home provision.

• Commission more responsive home care and
increase utilisation of assistive technology
• Adults and CYP work more effectively to
ensure smooth transition into adult services.
• Streamline assessment processes and
realign staffing.
• Introduce new IT system to support
streamlined assessment, recording and
production of management information and
intelligence.
• There is no proposal to close any day
centres and we will ensure fair and equal
access to all day services.
• Most savings within this option come from
improving processes and procedures and
do not have any impact on the service
received by the public.
The programme of improvement and redesign is aimed at ensuring that there is
greater choice for individuals and increased
opportunity to be supported at home. Care at
home is usually more cost effective and leads
to better outcomes for individuals. Service redesign requires an effective change
management programme and will affect the
way in which assessments are undertaken
and there is an impact on working practices.

Page 24

Budget Options: Targeting Resources

Option:
Children’s Centres

Budget Savings:
2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

500

1500

-

2000

Summary:
The Council spends over £6 million on
providing Children’s Centres and
associated services. This budget option
would enable the Council to save £2m
over the next two years without closing
any centres, by reducing the front line staff
in Children’s Centres through restructuring
and reducing services at a number of
Children’s Centres.
We will maintain full service delivery at one
main site in each of the borough’s four
Constituency areas and use an Outreach
model to provide services from all the
remaining sites. This reduction would be
completed in a targeted, strategic fashion to
ensure the minimum amount of disruption for
the families using the services.

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure
that there are sufficient Children’s Centre
services for its population of children under
the age of five and their families. It is not
proposed to close any Centres at this stage –
this proposal will maintain services at four
Children’s Centres in the borough: Rock
Ferry, Seacombe, Pensby and Brombrough.
It will reduce the opening hours and services
available from the other twelve sites including
the two maintained nursery schools.

Page 25

Budget Options: Targeting Resources

Option:
Family, Parenting and
Youth Commissioning

Option:
Reducing Substance Misuse
and Teenage Pregnancies

Budget Savings:

Budget Savings:

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

2014/2015

2015/2016 2016/2017 TOTAL

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

200

300

-

500

160

-

-

160

Summary:
This budget option would see a saving of
£200,000 being made by targeting the
parenting, family and targeted youth
support services which are purchased
from private and voluntary organisations.
It would also see a further saving of
£300,000 being made through more
efficient and effective commissioning
arrangements in relation to family support.
It would lead to a reduction in the provision of
parenting and family support and youth
services and mean the service would be
almost entirely focussed on those children
and families with the highest level of need.

Summary:
This area has a partnership budget of
£650,000. The council pays other
providers to deliver some of this service
on its behalf. A budget saving of £60,000
could be reached by reducing the level of
service the council buys in around
preventing and treating substance misuse.
This option would also see a reduction of
£100,000 in the funding allocated by the
Council to a joint service aiming to reduce
the number of teenage pregnancies within
the borough.
Expertise, support and funding would still be
availbale from colleagues in Public Health.

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 13 November 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
The Looked after Children’s Education Service
_____________________________________________________________________
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The report informs Schools Forum of the current position of the Wirral Looked after
Children’s Education Service (LACES) in assisting to discharge the local authority’s
statutory duty to promote the educational achievement of young people in care.
BACKGOUND AND KEY ISSUES
The Children Act 2004 places a statutory duty on local authorities to promote the
educational achievement of children in care.
This requires local authorities to:
• Rigorously track and monitor the school placement and educational
performance of each child in care.
• To ensure that their education is seen as a priority by all those who work with
them
• To act, where necessary, to address underachievement and to promote
improvement in outcomes
• To ensure that heads and designated teachers in schools know who is looked
after and what can be done to support and enhance their attainment and to
ensure access to any initiatives which will help with this
• Ensure that they have a high quality PEP
• Share effective practice with colleagues to improve behaviour, and
attendance, and to promote improved outcomes and school stability and
address barriers to learning.
• Lead on devising and delivering training about the needs of looked after
children, current legislation and guidance for all local authority staff and
schools
• Ensure that the achievements of looked after children are recognised and
celebrated
“Discharging the duty on a day to day basis means that the local authority should do at least
what any good parent would do to promote their child’s educational aspirations and support
their achievements”
The Statutory Duty on Schools Governing Bodies
•

•

The Children and Young Person’s Act 2008 “places a duty on the governing
bodies of maintained schools to designate a member of staff as having
responsibility to promote the educational achievement of looked after children
who are registered pupils at the school. This includes those aged between 16
and 18”. The Regulations requires that this person should be a senior teacher
(The Designated Teacher)
The governing body must ensure that the Designated Teacher undertakes
appropriate Training

Page 27

•

The role of the Designated teacher “needs to be understood as part of the
wider responsibilities on local authorities for looked after children both in terms
of their care and to promote their educational achievement”

Designated teachers lead within the school in promoting the educational achievements of
children in care by ensuring that their “personal, emotional and academic needs are
prioritized”. As well as this strategic role they have a duty to ensure that Personal Education
Plans are effective and that they are implemented within the school. They are the primary
contact co-ordinating the work of external agencies in relation to promoting the educational
achievement of looked after children on the school’s role.
Current arrangements
The roles and responsibilities within the LACES team were reviewed and restructured in
2011 and 2012. The outcomes of the 2011 review were reported to Schools Forum in
September 2012. From September 2013, the LACES team will consist of one Virtual School
Headteacher, one senior educational progress officers (the seconded post to Fostering
Futures has been removed), five (3.8 FTE) educational progress officers and two admin
assistants. The Virtual School Headteacher role is shared between the Primary and
Secondary Headteacher Managers. The focus of the roles of the LACES team is to:
1. Track, Monitor and Challenge
The Educational Progress Officers will review the educational progress of each Looked
After Child on a termly basis. The results of these reviews will be shared with social
workers to enable them to update the Personal Education Plan between annual PEP
Meetings.
2. Personal Education Planning
The statutory responsibility for Personal Education Planning is shared by schools and social
workers.
Social workers will manage Personal Education Plans using the social care database ICS
(Integrated Children’s System) and the Electronic Social Care Records (ESCR) system.
Social Workers liaise directly with schools’ designated teachers. In exceptional
circumstances, if invited by the social worker or schools designated teacher, the LACES
team will support the completion of the PEP.
There is a statutory requirement to monitor the quality of the Personal Education Plan. This
role will be performed by the LACES Team.
3. Training
The Virtual School Head will commission and deliver training that supports the educational
needs of children in care for school and local authority staff (Designated Teachers, social
workers and foster carers etc)
4. Supporting Pupils
Schools requiring a service that delivers direct support to pupils are able to purchase a
bespoke service direct through the LA traded service EQ. During the Academic year 201213 this facility was not taken up by any school. In negotiation with schools during the

Page 28

academic year 2012-13 a limited amount of capacity enabled the Educational Progress
Officers to support individual pupils.
Arrangements remain in place to allocate and distribute the PEA (Personal Education
Allowance) for those children who have fallen behind considerably and who need additional
support programmes beyond those normally available in school. Applications for PEA are
managed by the LACES team and recommendations are made to the appropriate Social
Care manager for agreement.
Pupil Premium – the LACES budget also includes the Pupil Premium paid to Looked After
Children who do not attend Wirral Schools (£46317 for 2012-13). Grants are allocated
based on information received as part of Census data. Pupil Premium in respect of LAC at
Wirral Schools (excluding academies) was £207,413 in 2012-13.
Pupil Premium Plus 2014-15 - The amount of additional educational support paid via the
Pupil Premium in 2014-15 is to be expanded. From April 2014 £1,900 will be paid in respect
of every Looked After Child, the current annual rate is £900.
Looked After Children will be eligible to receive funding as soon as they enter care. In
addition those who are adopted or leave care under special guardianship or residence
orders will also be eligible.
Funding
The LACES budget for 2013-14 is funded as follows:
£
Schools Budget
185,500
Children’s Services
146,400
Pupil Premium
36,200
Total
368,100
In addition, the delegated schools budget equals an amount currently £576 per looked after
child, which totals £225,000. The consultation paper elsewhere on this agenda has sought
views about increasing this sum.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That Schools Forum notes the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM
13th November 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
MAINSTREAM SCHOOL ADMISSIONS
_____________________________________________________________________

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report provides a brief outline of Mainstream Admissions, the usage of the Council’s
online admission application system (eAdmissions) and an update on recent changes to
the administration of the non-Catholic grammar selective tests.

2.0

Mainstream Admissions

2.1

Statutory roles of the Mainstream Admissions include the administration and
allocation of places in all primary and secondary schools, and representing the
Council in school place appeals.
This year there were over 3,700 applications for primary school (Foundation 2) and
a similar number for secondary schools (Year 7). The team co-ordinates admission
to school with all own admission authority schools within Wirral and other admission
authorities in England.

2.2

The team produces appeal statements and presents appeals on behalf of all
community and voluntary controlled (VC) schools as a statutory function. Overall, in
2012-2013 the number of appeals lodged for all Wirral schools was 10% higher
than the previous year (639 vs 577). For information, the outcomes for the
community and VC school appeals handled by the team are shown below.
2011-2012
2012-2013

Withdrawn (%)
43 (19%)
54 (21%)

Resolved (%)
55 (24%)
46 (18%)

Refused (%)
107 (47%)
115 (46%)

Agreed (%)
24 (10%)
37 (15%)

Total
229
252

Outcome of appeals lodged for community and voluntary controlled primary and secondary schools by academic year.

2.3

The team administers the grammar school selection tests on behalf of the four nonCatholic grammar schools. Around 1,800 children are tested each year. The team
also administers the Independent Assessment Board, and is responsible for
disseminating the outcome of the selective tests to parents.

2.4

As well as admissions to Foundation 2 and Year 7, the team also processes around
2,000 in-year transfers between and into/out of Wirral schools. This includes the
administration of the Council’s Fair Access Protocol. This Protocol applies to “hard to
place” young people with a history of poor attendance or significant behavioural
issues.

3.0

eAdmissions

3.1

The Council has a statutory obligation to enable parents to apply for school places
via an on-line application system. On 16th June 2011, delegated authority was given
to replace the pre-existing in-house online admission system with a proprietary
software module, CACI eAdmissions, which links into the Admissions administrative
software, CACI Impulse.

Page 31

3.2

Prior to the introduction of eAdmissions, levels of online applications for Wirral
schools were low in comparison with other local authorities. In 2010-2011, 25% of
applicants used the in-house system (5% secondary, 45% primary). Other nearby
Authorities operate at over 80% online applications and this remains the target for
applications to Wirral primary and secondary schools. Benefits to parents of
eAdmissions include a secure user account which will manage all their children’s
school place applications, instant acknowledgement that their application has been
received and allocations sent by e-mail rather than waiting for a letter in the post.

3.3

The new system went live in October 2011 and has been strongly promoted to
parents through the website and admissions literature. In the first year of
introduction over 2,000 Wirral parents applied online. Almost three-quarters
completed the optional customer satisfaction questions and 97% of those who did
so rated the online application system as either “very clear” or “clear”.

3.4

In 2012-2013 (the most recent completed year), 50% of 7,440 applications were
made online (48% secondary, 53% primary). Usage of the e-admissions system will
continue to be monitored, with further encouragement and promotion employed to
increase efficiency.

3.5

An online secure system for schools was introduced in 2012 which enables schools
to view their F2 or Year 7 applications as they are inputted “live” on CACI Impulse,
and also allows each school to update the number of in year vacancies
electronically immediately a change occurs to the school’s roll. The Mainstream
Admissions team is continuing to actively look for ways to optimise usage of ICT in
order to increase efficiencies and provide value for money.

4.0

Update on changes to selective testing

4.1

The School Admissions Code changed in February 2012 with various implications for
the Admissions and Appeals processes. A major change was that parents must have
the outcome of their selective tests prior to submitting their secondary application
forms at the end of October each year. This has meant significantly redesigning the
11 plus testing schedule to meet the new requirements. 2013 is the second year of
“results before preferences” and the new schedule has embedded well. It will
continue to be reviewed annually to improve the service.

4.2

Following issues in 2011 and 2012, a review of the selective testing arrangements for
non-Catholic grammar schools has been carried out. This review identified a number
of potential amendments that could reduce the reputational risk both to the Academy
non-Catholic grammar schools and the Local Authority, and also enhance value for
money. The estimated cost of administering the selective tests is £120,000 per
annum and is part of the overall Admissions budget.

4.3

The options were discussed with a working group of primary headteachers and with
all six grammar schools (Catholic and non-Catholic) following a meeting of Wirral
Association of Secondary Headteachers (WASH). Various options for change were
considered, and the outcome was reported to Councils’ Cabinet in March 2013.

4.4

Following from this report, further discussions took place with the test provider and
the working group during summer term 2013, which has resulted in the formation of a
Wirral Consortium of schools for non-Catholic selective testing from September 2013
onwards. This is expected to reduce the total cost of administering the selective tests
for non-Catholic grammar schools by approximately £20,000 annually (2013 costs
compared with 2012 costs). The number, duration, format, style and administration of
the tests have not changed as a result of this action.

Page 32

4.5

The test provider has also been asked to consider revising and modernising the
Familiarisation Pack provided to parents/carers for future years. This should improve
the familiarisation experience for children. This is, however, unlikely to result in a
significant reduction in cost to DSG.

4.6

An additional cost reduction of approximately £6,000 could be obtained by joining a
larger existing Consortium, where every school in that Consortium would use the
same test papers each year, however this would require a change to the existing
verbal reasoning tests to introduce non-verbal reasoning. A change of test provider
was also considered by the working group, which could also result in a reduction in
the overall cost of selective testing, but is a more significant change to the existing
system.

4.7

Further discussions will take place during 2014 with the test provider(s) and a
working group of headteachers. If non-verbal reasoning is to be introduced with the
current test provider or the test provider changed, it will require public consultation as
part of the co-ordinated admission scheme for Wirral secondary schools. The earliest
these changes could take effect if agreed by Council’s Cabinet would be testing
carried out in September 2015 for entry to school in September 2016.

5.0 Finance
The overall budget for School Admissions is £452,500. The reduction in costs
described in the report will be included in the Schools Budget for 2014-15.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the Forum notes the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 13 November 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
City Learning Centres
_____________________________________________________________________
1. Executive Summary
Following a report considering the use of the Wirral’s City Learning Centres (CLC’s) at the
Schools Forum meeting on 7 July 2013 a number of resolutions were made regarding
funding, governance and management. This report provides the Forum with an update on
the current position.
2. Backgound
At the 7 July 2013 meeting it was resolved that:
1. The overall CLC budgets should remain at their current level of £814,700.
2. That the governance and management structure of the CLCs should be reduced to one and a
business plan produced
3. That in principal, the number of CLCs should be reduced from 3 to 2, however, the final decision
should be taken by the Management Committee.

The actions taken following the resolutions made on 7 July 2013 are described below.
3. Joint meeting of the 3 City Learning Centre Management Boards (16 Sept. 2013)
Following the resolution of the Schools Forum a meeting was organised on Monday 16
September 2013. All current members of the 3 existing City Learning Centre Management
Boards were invited to the meeting.
It was resolved at this meeting that:
One Management Board would be established for all Wirral CLCs.
It was proposed that all current members of the Management Boards would be members of
the new Wirral CLC Management Board. This would be confirmed at the first meeting of the
newly formed Board.
The first meeting of the newly formed Management Board would be held on 25 September
2013.
4 Meeting of the Wirral City Learning Centres Management Boards (25 Sept. 2013)
The proposal for membership of the Board, made at the meeting held on 16 September was
confirmed.
A Chair and Vice Chair were nominated and elected.
Chair
Mr S Brady
Headteacher, Bidston Avenue Primary School
Vice Chair Mr T Wood
Community Member

Page 35

Additional non-voting members were identified to support the process as and when
required:
Mr P Sheridan
Mr S Dainty
Mrs C Halewood

Headteacher Manager Secondary
Headteacher Manager Primary
Human Resource Advisor

It was proposed that a working group be created to investigate in detail the possible
solutions that would be considered by the Management Board. These would then be used
as part of the Business Plan (Resolution 2 from 7 July 2013)
The working group membership was agreed to be:
3 Centre Managers
3 Secondary Headteachers
5 Primary Headteachers
6 Community Members (2 from each CLC).
Headteacher Manager Secondary
Headteacher Manager Primary
Two dates were agreed for further meetings:
Meeting of the Working Group:
Meeting of the Wirral CLC management Board

16 October 2013
5 November 2103

5. Meeting of the Wirral City Learning Centres Working Group (16 October 2013)
The meeting discussed the following:
•
•
•
•

Budgets
The existing staffing structures
Actual cost of running the service and total building costs
Human resource issues related to potential changes to the staffing structure.

It was agreed that the level of saving required to enable investment in leading edge ICT
equipment could not be achieved without considering changes to the staffing structure
and/or the number of City Learning Centres.
It was resolved that the 3 Centre Managers would meet with the two Headteacher
Managers and report back to the next Management Board meeting on 5 November 2013.
The report should include possible staffing structure models that could result in the level of
saving required.
A request was made for HR support to meet with staff and to have informal discussions
about the potential impact of any staffing structure changes.
6. Meeting of the Centre Managers and Headteacher Managers (28 October 2013)
Detailed discussion took place regarding the way the CLCs operated and the potential
impact that a reduction in the number of CLCs would have on service including the current
staffing structure and models that could be considered for re-structuring. These options will
be presented to the Management Board on 5 November 2013. The outcome of these
discussions will be verbally reported to the meeting.

Page 36

7. Meetings of the CLC staff with HR support and Headteacher Managers
Discovery CLC
(14 October 2013) in attendance Mr. G Bradfield
(Unison)
West Wirral Works CLC
(28 October 2013)
The Learning Lighthouse CLC (30 October 2013
Staff were given a broad outline of the current position and the need to reduce costs in
order to invest in resources to enable the service to continue.
Questions from staff about employment were considered, however it was emphasised at
each meeting that this is still at an informal stage as there are currently no firm proposals for
staff to be consulted over.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That Schools Forum notes the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38

Agenda Item 9
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM 13th November 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
The impact of the School Intervention Grant and Combined Budget Contributions to
School Improvement
_____________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report outlines the expenditure and impact of School Budget contributions in 2013-14
in the following areas:
• School Intervention £674,500
• School Improvement £359,900
BACKGROUND
1. School Intervention
The School Intervention contribution of £674,500 has been and is being spent on 4 main
areas of support for schools:
1.1 Primary School Intervention
£374,000
1.2 Secondary school Intervention
£171,400
1.3 14-19 Intervention / Support
£97,200
1.4 Supporting Early Years Statutory Assessments
£30,600
1.1 Primary School Intervention
A total of £374,000 was allocated for school improvement in primary schools. A substantial
amount of this money, £200,000 has been used to support vulnerable schools identified as
Band 3 or Band 4 in line with the Local Authority School Improvement Strategy. Each
school receiving financial support was required to work with a Principal Manager from the
School Improvement Team to generate a School Action Plan with clear measureable
milestones. Progress towards achieving the milestones was reviewed each term through
the School Causing Concern process. Results at the end of the Early Years Foundation
Stage (EYFS), Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 were analysed in August 2013 to determine
progress in raising pupil attainment.
In addition £30,000 was allocated to deliver training and support for the development of
subject leaders in English and Mathematics in primary schools. The programme was
delivered to support schools with the development of middle leadership. The training has
been very well received. The training has been modified to support subject leaders in
Foundation subjects.
£45,000 is used as a contribution towards the Primary Headteacher consultant post and
the remaining budget is kept as contingency to support schools who are judged by the
revised Ofsted framework (September 2013) as ‘requiring improvement’,in serious
weaknesses or special measures.
1.2 Secondary School Intervention
There are four elements to secondary intervention contribution:

Page 39

1. Support for mainstream maintained secondary schools that are Band 2 in line with
the Local Authority School Improvement Strategy.
2. Narrowing the Key Stage 4 attainment gaps (at 5+ A*-C including English and
maths GCSEs) between FSM pupils and non-FSM pupils.
3. A Raising Attainment for Disadvantaged Youngsters programme for a second year.
4. A contribution towards the secondary Headteacher post.
The amounts for these areas were finalised after the final banding of secondary schools in
line with agreed LA processes and the school improvement contributions, in November
2012.
1.3 14 – 19 Intervention/Support
The narrowing the attainment gap (level 3) at age 19 project was developed to respond to
the lower than national performance for National Indicator (NI) 81. NI 81 is concerned with
the level 3 attainment gap that exists between young people who turn 19 in a given
academic year, who previously were in receipt of free school meals at the age of 16 and
those young people that were not claiming free school meals. The data set used was a
matched data set that brings together all types of post 16 level 3 qualifications including, A
/ AS levels, advanced Apprenticeship frameworks, BTEC National Diploma qualifications
etc.
The project worked with young people in learning during the academic years 2011/12
(Wirral Met College only) and 2012/13 (both FE institutions and targeted schools).
In preparation for Raising of the Participation Age (RPA) 2013 the 14-19 Team sought to
develop Wirral risk of NEET indicator (RONI) tool. Plans to develop a tool were signalled in
the Council’s 2012 RPA and drew upon experiences of other local authorities that had taken
part in the Department for Education RPA trials; running as early as 2009.
The RONI is a sophisticated toolkit that enables the early identification of those young
people who are at risk of becoming NEET. As part of the project the 14 – 19 team sought
to test and evaluate the effectiveness of a range of interventions used to re-engage young
people and ultimately prevent NEET.
The RONI project took place September 2012 through to July 2013. Some 150 Year 11
high risk of NEET learners were supported as part of the project.
1.4 Supporting Early Years Statutory Assessments
This has been used to support Early Years statutory assessments in the summer term.
2. School Improvement
The school improvement contribution of £359,900 has been spent on the following areas:
• Early Intervention Managers (Early Years, Mathematics, English) who work with
targeted schools
• Entitlement School Improvement Associates
• Contribution towards Governor Support Services
• Evolve
• Post-16 narrowing the gap project
• The delivery of training, resources and equipment
`

Page 40

IMPACT
This year’s funding by the Schools Forum and the amounts previously agreed have
supported the aggregated school outcomes which are:
1. Provisional attainment results at the end of Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2 and Key
Stage 4 show an increase on 2012 results.
2. The gap between pupils in receipt of free school meals and non free school meals
has narrowed at the end of each primary key stage.
3. 60% of schools in Band 4 exited into a higher band requiring less support and
challenge. 83% of Band 3 schools exited into a higher band.
4. Attainment at the end of Key Stage 4 for 5 A* - Cs including English and
Mathematics (66%) exceeded FFTD estimates, is 1% higher than 2012, and is
above the provisional national average of 58.2%
5. Outcomes reported in August 2013 for the 55 young people supported in school
sixth forms were extremely positive. All of the named pupils (100%) identified by
the six participating schools were retained and sat the appropriate examinations, or
produced the required course work. It was reported that 96% of the 55 pupils (53 in
total) achieved a full level 3 qualification. Outcomes reported from further education
institutions in August 2013 for the 60 pupils supported whilst undertaking a level 3
qualification(s) in the further education sector, were also very positive. The
Colleges reported that 90% of the original cohort of young people stayed to
complete the programme of study. Of these young people all (100%) were
successful in achieving a full level 3 qualification.
6. 75% of the high risk of becoming NEET learners (112 actual learners) supported by
the RONI project have made a positive transition in to post 16 education and / or
training. The 25% (38 actual learners) of learners that have no recorded post 16
destination, at the time of writing, will be tracked and targeted via the Council’s
careers education, information, advice and guidance service.
7. At the time of writing this report at least 85% of primary, 68% of secondary and
92% of special schools have been judged as good or better which is well above
national averages.
8. Due to bespoke intervention by the School Improvement Team 7 schools were
prevented from going into an Ofsted category
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. The consultant headteachers prepare an annual report to review and evaluate work
streams.
2. Schools Forum review the funding of these posts every 2 years to determine whether
schools want to continue funding them in this way.
3. Schools Forum to note the contents of the report.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42

Agenda Item 10
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOL FORUM – 13th NOVEMBER 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES
The Home Education Teaching Service
___________________________________________________________________________
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report outlines the arrangements around the Home Education Teaching Service. It
summarises the key parts of its policy document that was amended in September 2103. It also
draws attention to the likely increase in costs of the arrangements for this service because of
the raising of the school participation age.
Legal Duty
1.

Local Authorities have a duty under in Section 19 of the Education Act 1996 to ensure a
good education for children who cannot attend school because of health needs.
Guidance is that LAs must:
“Arrange suitable full –time education ( or as much education as the child’s health
condition allows) for children of compulsory school age who, because of illness,
would otherwise not receive suitable education”.

Local Arrangements
2.

Provision for pupils who are physically ill, injured or who have clinically defined mental
health problems is the responsibility of all schools and education services. Particular
provision is made on Wirral through Hospitals’ School and the Home Education Service
at Joseph Paxton Campus.

3.

The Home Education Service provides continuing education for pupils of statutory school
age who, for a variety of diagnosed medical reasons, are not able to attend their own
mainstream or special school. Lessons mainly take place in the homes of the young
people referred or under exceptional circumstances, in purpose built rooms at Joseph
Paxton Campus or at other venues. The number of hours of home teaching will depend
on the age and needs of the child and not on cost. The service will follow medical advice
in assessing the child’s capacity for education. The service supports pupils’ reintegration
and return to their local education setting.

4.

The Home Education Service is managed by the Headteacher on behalf of the Local
Authority. This service is outside the remit of the governing body of Wirral Hospital
Schools’. The school works closely with teachers from the service. The Headteacher
meets with senior officers about the service to keep performance management and
budget arrangements under review.

Referral

Page 43

5.

Referral to the service must originate from medical professionals at consultant level and
service is granted at the discretion of the Headteacher / Local Authority. A General
Practitioner cannot authorise a request for home tuition.

6.

Schools are responsible for collating the necessary evidence for the referral to the Home
Teaching Service.

Schools Responsibilities
7.

Under Access to Education guidance schools should:
• have a written policy and named person for children and young people with medical
needs. This may stand alone or be incorporated into the school’s SEN policy;
• notify the Home Education Service if a pupil is, or is likely to be away from school due
to medical needs for more than 15 schooldays;
• liaise with hospital and the home teaching service to enable them to draw up a
personal education plan to cover the complete education for a pupil who is likely to be
at home for more than 15 school days, and for pupils with chronic illnesses with
irregular attendance;
• ensure that pupils receiving teaching from the service are kept informed about school
social events and are able to participate, for example, in homework clubs, study
support and other activities.

Current Trends
8.

Nationally the length of hospital paediatric admissions has reduced in the last few years.
However, children and young people may still be absent from school for a substantial
period of time due to convalescence, illness or injury. Some pupils with long term illness
have recurrent admissions to hospital and there are also pupils with chronic conditions or
diagnosed mental health problems who have long absences from school.

9.

The following numbers gives some idea of the arrangements made by the service.
In 2012-13 73 pupils were taught and 64 referrals were received.
At the upper age limit of the service the following provision was made.
In 2011 6 Y11 pupils entered 21 GCSEs in 11 subjects.
In 2012 5 Y11 pupils entered 14 GCSEs in 4 subjects

10.

With the raising of the participation age there is likely to be an increase in the numbers
who may be eligible for this service beyond the age of 16 years.

Budget
11.

The budget for this service is currently £248,600 and is funded through the high needs
block within the schools budget. The increased costs referred to above will be assessed
and considered as part of the Schools Budget report for 2014-15.

Recommendation
The Forum is asked to note the report

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 44

Agenda Item 11
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 13th November 2013
Funding High Needs Students in 2014-15

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to provide an update about arrangements for funding high
needs (SEN) students for 5-25 year olds in 2014-15. This follows a report to Forum in
July 2013. That report drew attention to the proposed changes to funding arrangements
in 2013/14 and also pointed out budgetary pressures.
1. Background
The Government announced new arrangements for funding educational provision for
pupils and students with high needs. These arrangements were introduced in April
2013.
The details of this new approach were set out in the School funding reform: Next
steps towards a fairer system, published on 26 March 2012 and in School funding
reform: Arrangements for 2013-14, published on 27 June 2012. Each Local Authority
has become responsible for managing the funding for education support for high
needs students aged 0-25.
The consultation on proposals for Top Up Funding for High Needs Pupils and
Students, reported elsewhere on this agenda, is part of these overall changes.
2. 2014/15 – Forecast Pupil and Student Numbers
The Education Funding Agency (EFA) published information, in June and July 2013,
on the 2014/15 high needs funding arrangements. The Local Authority subsequently
received further correspondence which requires each LA to complete templates
detailing the number of High Needs Students forecasted for 2014/15.
The Local Authority has been asked to return these templates by the 23 December,
which includes any submission to support an increase in numbers, or to seek to retain
funding where there is a drop in numbers. It is worth noting that the total national high
needs budget for the financial year 2014/15 has yet to be agreed but we have been
informed that resources will be tight and any increases in some allocations will need
to be balanced by reductions in others.
To support this process, at the end of November, the Local Authority will receive data
showing actual numbers by institution for the academic year 2012/13. However, the
EFA does not have a comprehensive set of data from previous years to base
allocations solely on historic data and as such this will be a second transitional year
for the new funding system. They, therefore, need to ask Local Authorities for two key
pieces of information – the numbers of places by institution commissioned for the
academic year 2013 to 2014 and place numbers by institution for 2014 to 2015.

Page 45

3. Key Areas for consideration
In 2013/14, the Local Authority was asked to forecast High Needs Students (HNS)
and worked closely with both local and national institutions to forecast learner
numbers for 2013/14. The final return came to 1,589 places of which 325 were post
16 (included in the table below).

2013/14 – Pre 16
Numbers
1264

2013/14 – Post 16 Numbers Total HNS Numbers
325 allocated (331 actual)

1589

The LA will be speaking to Schools and Colleges over the next month to determine
the forecast for 2014/15. It is worth noting that Post 16 numbers at both FE colleges
may increase due to the ongoing improvements in the quality of Post 16 provision and
additional capital funding to improve the infrastructure/capacity in both local FE
Colleges.
4. Budget 2013/14
The current budget funding high needs pupils and students is set out below:
High Needs Places
12,613,000
High Needs Top Ups
11,826,600
Hospital School
1,334,000
Statements
4,915,400
Total
30,689,000

5. Future Proposals
For the academic year 2015/16 the EFA intend to move to a system which bases
place-funding for institutions on the most recent actual numbers available from
census and ILR data. There will still be scope on an exceptional basis to adjust
numbers in respect of evidenced demographic or structural changes, driven by local
authorities’ commissioning plans, or the opening or closure of institutions. For that
year the EFA will therefore no longer require local authorities to submit a template
containing place numbers broken down at institution level.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the report be noted.
2. The Forum to note if LA analysis indicates numbers are increasing then the LA will
submit a bid to the Education Funding Agency for additional funding.

Page 46

Agenda Item 12
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOL FORUM – 13th NOVEMBER 2013
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

ELEMENT THREE ‘TOP UP’ FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS FOR PUPILS WITH HIGH NEEDS
(SEN) AND FOR PUPILS ATTENDING ALTERNATIVE PROVISION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report describes the response to a funding consultation that commenced on 3rd July
2013 and closed on 18th October 2013 and makes recommendations to revise place numbers in
some specialist provision and revise funding arrangements.
The consultation document was developed following a series of meetings with special schools
SEN resourced provision, alternative provision and colleagues from other authorities of the
Merseyside Learn Together Partnership. A number of providers, and some groups of providers,
sought meetings with officers for further clarification. FE providers have had separate meetings
with a specialist officer of the authority.
During this period of consultation the Education Funding Agency (EFA) issued further guidance
about the operational revenue funding arrangements for 2014-15. Contrary to previous
guidance it extends a further commitment to a minimum funding guarantee for one more year
for 2014-15 for specialist SEN and alternative provision. The impact on the consultation
proposals is explained further in the report at ‘EFA Operational Funding Arrangements for 201415’ (paragraphs 2 - 5).
The impact of the proposals to change numbers in specialist SEN provision at 7, 7a, 13 and 15
are close to neutral in terms of the Authority’s overall place number with the EFA showing a
net reduction of two places for pupils age 4-15 years.
Previous reports of direct relevance were considered by the Forum on 3rd July 2012 and 25th
September 2102 when arrangements for a first stage in the reform of SEN funding were the
subject of consultation and agreement.

Consultation
1.

The funding consultation asked 24 questions. The consultation document was circulated
to all educational settings attended by Wirral pupils and students; maintained schools,
academies, non-maintained independent special schools, independent schools, 6th Form
College, and Further Education Colleges. See Appendix A for a copy of the consultation.

Page 47

EFA Operational Funding Arrangements for 2014-15

2. A major issue this guidance raises for this consultation is an extension to the minimum
funding guarantee for one more year. A condition of grant is that authorities will be
obliged to maintain each top up funding rate at no less that 98.5% of its 2013-14 value,
ensuring that any reduction in funding per pupil is no greater than 1.5%.
3. Local authorities can apply for exemptions from this condition of grant and to do so must
demonstrate any changes have the support of those schools and academies affected.
The calculations shown in the consultation did not factor an MFG as an option.
4. In response to this guidance, and to provide those educational settings affected by an
option of maintaining an MFG, or of supporting an application for exemption, a further
consultation session has taken place with special schools, SEN resourced provision and
alternative provision. A letter has also been sent out to settings asking for views about
applying for an exemption, or applying for an exemption with an average MFG costing, or
of maintaining full MFG protection. See Appendix B for a copy of the letter. There will be
a verbal report at the Forum on the responses to the letter.

Consultation Responses
5.

Responses were received from the following:
• 10 maintained special schools
• 2 FE Colleges
• 1 Sixth Form College
• 6 schools with Specialist SEN Resourced Provision
• 1 source not named
• 3 primary schools
• Birkenhead South Primary Headteachers' cluster group.
These included responses from two head teachers and two members of governing
bodies, these contributions were in addition to the responses from the schools.

6.

A large number of the proposals drew limited comment and those were overwhelmingly
positive in agreeing the proposals. Many respondents responded to questions of direct
relevance to themselves, few respondents completed the whole consultation. Some of
the responses were particularly detailed with many points and often arguing for greater
resourcing for different types of special needs. The different types of special needs
described often used diagnostic medical labels as a proxy for resourcing.

7.

The questions that drew the largest, and sometimes very detailed comments, were
questions 3, 8, 9, 10, 21, and 24 where the issues were about costs and approaches.

8.

All responses have been very carefully considered and have led some changes in the
proposals. An updated table of top up costs is attached at Appendix C.

Page 48

Recommendations
9.

The rest of this report shows a summary of each consultation question, the responses to
it and then makes a recommendation.

Q1

Are you agreeable to the timescale and arrangements for consultation?
The majority of respondents were in agreement, several commented that the timing over
summer was not helpful in allowing respondents time to consider a complex consultation.
Recommendation 1
The timescales and arrangements are accepted.

Q2

Are you in agreement to this developmental and staged approach to change? Have you
any comments?
The majority of respondents were in agreement, comments were around the importance
of timely reviews.
Recommendation 2
A developmental, staged approach is accepted.

Q3

Do you think the proposed 5 five band model for maintained special schools is
acceptable? Have you any comments or alternative suggestions?
The majority of respondents were accepting of the model overall and considered it a
reasonable starting point for development. This question drew a significant amount of
comment, particularly from special schools. A few respondents considered the five
bands too simplistic and several respondents made a case that the needs of its pupils
were not sufficiently recognised financially in this settlement. A few commented that
band five could be developed into two parts, one part being used to specifically recognise
physical medical care needs alongside the educational need. One respondent argued
for a school specific top-up significantly higher than the banding proposed because
without it the school will not be financially viable next year.
Recommendation 3
The five band model outlined in Appendix C is adopted. A contingency fund is set
aside from unallocated funds in the High Needs Block budget to financially
support specialist SEN provision that may experience financial difficulties whilst
future options are considered.

Q4

Are you in agreement with termly payments of top ups and the adjustments described?
What are your views?
The majority agreed with termly top-ups. One wanted to retain an annual payment, one
suggested annual top-ups for schools with decreasing rolls and termly top ups for
schools with increasing rolls. One respondent raised a query about the financial
adjustment proposed occurring at the end of the school year for a child’s death, pointing
out that a budget change should happen whenever a child is taken off roll whatever the
reason. This point is accepted and year end adjustment for a child death is not part of

Page 49

the recommendation. There is a caveat that exceptions to the termly payments may be
agreed between the authority and school.
Recommendation 4
Termly payments of top-ups are to be made to special schools with the
spring/summer top-up to be double the top-up of the autumn term unless agreed
otherwise between the authority and school.

Q5

Do you agree that inclusion money is subject to a later review?
The majority agreed with the proposal with some commenting that reviewing it now adds
another complication. Two respondents wanted it reviewed as soon as possible, whilst
one wanted current arrangements to remain.
Recommendation 5
The inclusion money that all special schools receive totalling £757,874 should be
subject to a proper review of what the money is for and how it is being used and
with recommendations for future action.

Q6

Are you in agreement that Clare Mount’s sports outreach funding is reduced one-third in
April 2014?
The majority of responses agreed with this proposal. A number suggested a review to
clarify and agree the reasons for its longer-term allocation.
Recommendation 6
The outreach funding received by Clare Mount is reduced by one-third in April
2014

Q7

Are you agreeable to increasing place numbers at Elleray Park from 80 to 90?
The majority of responses agreed with this proposal.
Recommendation 7
The Local Authority requests the EFA to increase the place number at Elleray Park
from 80 to 90.

Q8

Are you agreeable to band 2 places being made available at Orrets Meadow? What are
your views about resourcing this amount?
The majority of responses agreed with this proposal to fund band 2 places at Orrets
Meadow for Social Communication/Autistic Spectrum Conditions (ASC). Two disagreed;
one at length claiming it would spell the end of the school’s existing specialism in specific
learning difficulty. Three responses said it should be paid for using inclusion money, four
preferred to see contingency used, two suggested a top slice all top-ups and two
opposed such a move.
Recommendation 8
Orrets Meadow to be funded to make available 16 band 2 places. The additional
top-up required of £80,000 to be funded from unallocated budget in the High Needs
Block.

Page 50

Q9

Are you agreeable to altering the band one and two numbers for Hayfield? What are
your views about resourcing this amount?
The majority of responses agreed to this proposal. Similar responses to those at 8
suggested how this could be funded.
Recommendation 9
Hayfield to be funded to make 60 band 1 and 60 band 2 places. The top up
required of £20,000 to be funded from unallocated budget High Needs Block.
Both questions 8 and 9 led to a number of comments about the impact these changes at
primary would have for provision at secondary level for pupils with communication and
interaction difficulties. Across the maintained and academy secondary sector there are
58 Social and Communication/Autistic Spectrum Condition places with a similar number
in the non-maintained sector. Across the primary maintained sector there will be 132
such places. A review of Social Communication/Autistic Spectrum Condition policy is
underway to assist the development of future strategy. However, it is important to
consider returning to a process of converting MLD places at Clare Mount Specialist
Sports College to ASC places now.
Recommendation 9a
Funds are made available for Clare Mount School to offer 8 band 2 places a year,
starting in September 2014 for the next 3 years, and reduce the number of band 1
places by the same number over that time. The top up required of £40,000 to be
funded from unallocated budget in the High Needs Block.

Q 10 Do you think the 5 band model appropriate for Resourced Provision in mainstream
schools? What are your views?
This question produced a variety of responses. Whilst most agreed with the same
banded model as special schools some argued that the funding should be the same.
Furthermore, some suggested that funding of primary and secondary bases for children
with needs arising from Social Communication/Autistic Spectrum Condition
should be the same. A number raised a query about the high cost of funding deaf pupils.
Following consultation parts of the proposed banding model have been amended in
recognition of comments that were made about provision for children with needs arising
from Social Communication/Autistic Spectrum Condition
Recommendation 10
The 5 band model shown in Appendix C is adopted.

Recommendation 10a
Further changes to the continuum of provision for children with a Social
Communication/Autistic Spectrum Condition already referred to in
recommendations 8, 9 and 9a are to be considered by the policy review that is
underway.

Page 51

Q 11 Should payments to resourced base provision be made termly ? Have you comments to
make?
The majority of respondents agreed that termly top-ups to resourced provision were
appropriate.
Recommendation 11
Top ups to resourced base provision will be made termly.

Q 12 Should pupils attending Speech and Language bases do so fulltime with statements of
SEN and with AWPU transfer ceasing? Have you any comments you wish to make?
Eight respondents were in favour of the proposal for pupils attending the bases should
have a statement of special needs and should attend full-time. Three opposed the view
and the rest offered no comment. Only one of the three schools that have bases
responded.
In these circumstances, and the fact that as we move to a new system over the next
several months, a decision about statements for these pupils is postponed for 12 months
until the new single plans are developed. This will allow for more consideration and
consultation to be given to the use of these bases and the arrangements for funding and
entry.
Recommendation 12
Pupils should attend SALT bases full-time with AWPU transfer continuing and the
question about whether pupil should have a statement is re-considered in 12
months time.

Q13

What are your views about reducing the place number at the Resourced Provision at
UAB from 40 to 20 from September 2014 and reviewing its future?
The majority of responses were in agreement. The UAB understands the reason for this
proposal and suggests a further review of demand. In the interests of an orderly financial
transition we seek to reduce places by at least ten places a year over the next two years
with further review of demand to follow.
Recommendation 13
The Local Authority requests the EFA to reduce the place number to 30 from
September 2014.

Q14

Are you agreeable to the place numbers now being capped at Hilbre, Bebington,
Oldershaw and Wallasey?
The majority of respondents were in agreement.
Recommendation 14
The present place numbers at these provisions are now capped and no further
growth on the basis of the model which developed them is to occur.

Page 52

Q15

Are you agreeable to changing the number of places at Townfield Hearing Base from 12
to 10?
The majority of respondents were in agreement.
Recommendation 15
The Local Authority request the EFA to reduce the place number from 12 to 10
from September 2014.

Q 16 What are your views about developing the bands that focus on needs and provision? We
propose a working group is set up to consider developing the banding approach and its
implications? Are you in agreement?
The majority of respondents were in agreement.
Recommendation 16
The SEN Forum Group lead the developments to consider developing the banded
approach.

Q 17 What are your views about using a full year AWPU as top up payment for a pupil
attending St Michael’s, Riverside, and WASP alternative provisions? Are you in
agreement with the proposal?
This was generally agreed by respondents. WASP budget is a combination of part
payment of AWPU and a banded top up.
Recommendation
St Michaels and Riverside alternative provision to receive a pro rata payment of
the full year AWPU as top up and WASP to continue with part payment of AWPU
and a top up.

Q 18 Are you in agreement with this proposal to fund agreements and statement in
mainstream schools on the basis of a number of monetary units of additional support?
This proposal was agreed by the majority of respondents.
Recommendation 18
Funding agreements and statements of SEN in mainstream will be on the basis of
a number of monetary units for additional support.

Q 19 Should additional funding be made to a school where its contribution to element two
exceeds 90% of its notional delegated SEN budget?
This was agreed by the majority of respondents.
Recommendation 19
If a mainstream schools contribution to element two exceeds 90% of its notional
delegated budget additional funding will be made from unallocated contingency in
the High Needs Block.

Page 53

Q 20 Should revisions to funding arrangements continue to be paid from the beginning of the
financial year for maintained schools and from the beginning of the academic year for
academies?
There was acceptance that current arrangements continue for the revised funding
outlined here.
Recommendation 20
Element three funding will be paid from the beginning of the financial year for
maintained schools and from the beginning of the academic year for academies.
Q 21 What do you think about developing the illustrative banded approach for FE and 6th form
colleges from September 2014?
Few respondents commented on this question. Of the three that did two argued in
considerable detail against a banded system based on time, and in favour of using their
costs for top ups with a maximum amount of funding based on lagged numbers.
The government suggested there was a vitally important role to be played by some form
of banding arrangement to help dialogue and simplify matters and avoid protracted work
on each case. The Forum has adopted this approach. A banding model based on time
for post 16 has been widely adopted by local authorities across the Merseyside region.

Recommendation 21
Further consultation and development work is needed between FE and 6th form
colleges in the region and the local authority to agree a way forward for the future.

Q 22 Should recoupment be made by the LA up to April 2014 and beyond that, either schools
or academies make their own arrangements or the LA recoups monies and levies a
charge? Which proposal do you favour? Do you have any other suggestions?
The majority of those that responded favoured the local authority managing recoupment
arrangements. A small number of schools are managing these arrangements for
themselves.
Recommendation 22
The LA will continue to recoup monies until April 2014 and an offer of a
recoupment service is to be developed as part of traded services.

Q 23 Should funding and delivery of the Sensory Service be reviewed over the next 6 months?
The majority of respondents agreed with this proposal.
Recommendation 23
The funding and delivery of this service should be reviewed by the local authority
and stakeholders the end of the summer term 2014 with a report to Forum for the
start of the next academic year.

Page 54

Q 24 This question had a number of proposals and offered an opportunity for general
comments and suggestion
A variety of responses were made, most supportive of the proposals. A sample is
reported below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

the need for clear vision and strategy;
the arrangements outlined are realistic, workable and affordable;
that there is a drive to ensure all pupils are educated within the borough;
that resourced base provision should have access to inclusion money to provide
outreach services;
that the complexity of pupils and assignment to bands needs careful
consideration, monitoring and development;
that any changes to funding should not assume recycling is the only answer as
genuine increases in funding may be needed;
the Assessment Framework for 2013-14 is subject to revision over the current
academic year;
that the composition and operation of SNAP/future moderating arrangements
needs careful consideration and development work, (currently SNAP handles over
500 requests for assessment and issues around 200 final statements annually);
that educating institutions continue to work proactively in partnership with the local
authority.

Recommendation 24
i.
The Forum Finance group’s remit is extended to lead on the
development of funding bands.
ii
The principle of service level agreements with resourced base
provisions is adopted.
iii
The Assessment Framework for High Needs SEN is reviewed and
revised over the academic year.
iv
The views and comments of educating institutions in this report
together with the agreed recommendations are referred to Cabinet.

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services
November 2013

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Appendix A
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report presents a number of proposals for consultation about element three or
‘Top Up’ funding for students with special educational needs (SEN) that have been
developed by the Forum’s SEN Finance Steering Group.
Contents
After an outline of the background and rationale the report and funding proposals are
set out by sectors; special schools, resourced provision bases in mainstream,
alternative provision, mainstream settings, and further education. Each section
proposes funding, arrangements for funding, and then any other changes in that
sector. From paragraph nine the report outlines general proposals.
1.

Background.

1.1

This new system and its concepts and terminology were the subject of a
detailed report to Forum and consequent consultation in July 2012 with
updates on progress made since. One of the key features of the new system
is a transparent and comparable funding methodology for students with high
needs and high costs whatever the educating institution they attend.

1.2

Funding reform complements reforms to national SEN and Disability
Framework that has been subject of an Green Paper “Support and Aspiration:
A new approach to special educational needs and disability” and consequent
proposed legislative changes in the proposed Children and Families bill with
the SEN aspects scheduled to come into effect in September 2014 with a new
SEN Code of Practice.

1.3

Funding for students with statements or similar arrangements will be
composed of three elements. Element one is core funding, element two is a
delegated amount available in the institutions budget and element three is a
locally determined top up.

1.4

For pupils attending specialist SEN provision and alternative provision
elements one and two are paid by the Education Funding Agency on the basis
of a planned number and equivalent to elements one and two already
available to mainstream provision. The base cost of place in specialist SEN
provision is set nationally at £10,000 per place and in alternative provision at
£8,000 a place. The diagram below from the DfE outlines the national funding
methodology.

Page 57

Overview: Reform of high needs funding
Pre-16 SEN and AP

Element 1:
Core
education
funding

Contribution of £6,000 to
additional support required
by a pupil with high needs,
from the notional SEN
budget

Element 3:
Top-up
funding

Mainstream per-pupil
funding (AWPU)

Element 2:
Additional
support
funding

Mainstream settings

Specialist settings
Base funding of £10,000 for
SEN and £8,000 for AP
placements, which is
roughly equivalent to the
level up to which a
mainstream provider would
have contributed to the
additional support
provision of a high needs
pupil. Base funding is
provided on the basis of
planned places.

Post-16 SEN and
LDD
All settings
Mainstream per-student
funding (as calculated by
the national 16-19 funding
system)

Contribution of £6,000 to
additional support required
by a student with high
needs

“Top-up” funding from the commissioner to meet the needs of each pupil or student placed in
the institution

This diagram appeared as Figure 1 (p.43) of
School funding reform: Next steps towards
a fairer system.

1.5

The proposals are the work of the Forum’s SEN Finance Steering Group on a
banded approach, recommended by the government, to element three top
ups for:
•

•
•

•

1.6

1

Students attending Specialist SEN provision: Wirral’s 11 special
schools, and 20 resourced provisions in 14 mainstream schools, and
students attending independent non-maintained special schools and
independent schools;
Students in mainstream schools with element three costs; specialist
SEN funding arrangements and /or statements of SEN;
Students in post 16 provision with element three costs; Further
Education Colleges, Sixth Forms and Independent Specialist Providers
(ISP);
Students attending alternative provision; two primary behaviour bases
and Wirral’s Alternative Schools Programme (WASP - KS3/4 Pupil
Referral Unit - short stay school)

The financial year April 2013 – 2014 is a transitional year with some
protections before the new system comes into full effect in April 2014. The
consultation proposals in this report are intended to come into effect in April
2014. The Steering Group propose that because of the scale and complexity
of the proposals that the consultation period will run until October half-term
2013 and that a special meeting of the Forum will be convened to consider
the responses to consultation.

Page 58

Q1

Are you agreeable to the timescale and arrangements for consultation?

2.

Rationale for Element Three Banding Proposals

2.1

The Forum’s SEN Finance Group has developed these proposals, particularly
the banded approach for specialist SEN provision, in consultation with
providers over a number of months. Major issues identified in consultation
with specialist SEN providers and the authority was the need for any banded
approach to:
•
•

•
•
•

ensure stability of budgets by minimising as much as possible any
disturbance to current levels of funding;
take account of possible fluctuations to funding because of part year
occupancy of places and the interest of the authority to have places
available;
not be simplistic and be on three bands as the illustrative model last
year modelled;
recognise the growing needs of a population with social communication
needs with relatively stronger funding than has been the case to date;
recognise the resource intensive nature of making provision for those
with the most profound and multiple difficulties.

2.2

As the bands must also honour existing commitments, and without additional
funding, there was limited scope to redistribute monies for pupils already in
the system.

2.3

The Steering Group recognise that because of the scale of the changes
proposed that any changes are for the two year period April 2014-16 and are
kept under review with a report to Schools Forum during 2015. This should
also be consistent with reviewing cycle proposed by the Education Funding
Agency of place numbers in specialist and alternative provision and allows the
Authority time to develop its strategy for the new SEN landscape.

Q2

Are you in agreement to this developmental and staged approach to
change? Have you any comments?

3.

Element Three Banding and Special Schools

3.1

Table One below shows the proposals for Element Three Top Ups for Wirral
Maintained Special Schools and Appendix A models the budgets for Wirral
Special Schools if the proposal is accepted.

Page 59

Table One
Top Up

Staffing
Average

Cognition and
Learning

Band One

1:10/12

( ≈ £1,000)

+ TA

Hayfield, Clare
Mount, Orrets
Meadow

Band Two

1:8 +1.5
TA

(≈ £6,000)
Band Three

1:6 + 2TAs

Stanley, Elleray,
Lyndale, Foxfield,
Meadowside

1:6 +2TAs
+ medical
support

Stanley, Elleray,
Lyndale, Foxfield,
Meadowside

1:6 + 2TAs
+ medical
support

Stanley, Elleray,
Lyndale, Foxfield,
Meadowside

(≈ £7,000)
Band Four
(≈ £8,000)
Band Five
(≈
£16,000+)

Out of
Borough
Provision
for all types
of Needs

Q3

3.2

Communication
and Interaction

Behaviour,
Emotional and
Social

Hayfield, Clare
Mount, Orrets
Meadow

Gilbrook

Physical, Medical
and Sensory

Kilgarth,
Observatory

Stanley, Elleray,
Lyndale, Foxfield,
Meadowside

Stanley, Elleray,
Lyndale, Foxfield,
Meadowside

Independent non-maintained schools and independent schools.

Do you think the proposed 5 five band model for maintained special
schools is acceptable? Have you any comments or alternative
suggestions?

The Steering Group propose that element three funding will be paid termly
unless otherwise agreed between the school and the Authority. Modelling of
budgets for special schools based on occupancy rates indicated that students
arriving after the autumn term census may create instability for schools
(Gilbrook, Kilgarth, The Observatory and Orrets Meadow) most affected by inyear transfers and the Steering Group propose this could be ameliorated by
adjustment to the value of the Top Up so that Top Ups for pupils arriving in
the spring or summer term is double the autumn Top up. The death of a pupil
from terminal or deteriorating conditions may cause some instability of funding
the Steering Group propose it is ameliorated by not removing funding until the
end of the academic year.

Page 60

Q4

3.3

3.4

All special schools receive inclusion funding, the cost of one teacher, to
promote the inclusion of their students into mainstream settings. Kilgarth
Special School has funding for two teachers to provide an outreach service.
Gilbrook Special School also has funding agreements with the Forum to
provide an Outreach Service (£150,000) and a sixth day exclusion facility
(£60,000). Clare Mount Specialist Sports College also has additional funding
of £179,340 to provide sports outreach. In constructing the budgets for
special schools the Steering Group decided not to review inclusion funding at
this time and propose it remains in the High Needs Block and should be
subject to a later review. The Steering Group propose funding for Clare
Mount is reduced by one third from April 2014.

Q5

Do you agree that inclusion money is subject to a later review?

Q6

Are you in agreement that Clare Mount’s sports outreach funding is
reduced one-third in April 2014?

Elleray Park Special School has been increasing in numbers over recent
years and the increase in occupancy over place number has only partially
been met by ‘trigger’ funding arrangements in the past and by Top Up funding
only this year. The Steering Group propose increasing its place number with
the Education Funding Agency from 80 to 90 with effect from September
2014.

Q7

3.5

Are you in agreement with termly payments of top ups and the
adjustments described ? What are your views?

Are you agreeable to increasing place numbers at Elleray Park from 80
to 90?

Orrets Meadow School currently has 66 places for pupils with statements of
specific learning difficulties, historically six of which have been funded at a
higher level. In recent years numbers attending the school have fallen and the
surplus places used by a pilot to admit pupils for one year. Meanwhile the
demand of places for children with social communication difficulties has
increased and such places in primary resourced provision and at Hayfield are
full and occasionally non-maintained provision has been used. It is proposed
to fund a further 10 places at a higher rate, at band 2, to meet the changes in

Page 61

demand. The additional funding required will be £50,000. This funding could
be made available by a pro-rata reduction in the amount available for all topups (e.g. all top-ups reduced by £37), or reduction in inclusion money (e.g.
from £33.407 per special school to £29,241), or from contingency, or from a
combination of them.

Q8

3.6

Are you agreeable to band 2 places being made available at Orrets
Meadow? What are your views about resourcing this amount?

Current budget arrangements for Hayfield school are based on 80 MLD
places and 40 Social Communication Difficulties (SCD) places. Changes in
demand over recent years led the authority asking the school to increase SCD
places to 56 and reduce the numbers of MLD pupils whilst keeping an overall
budget based on 120. These arrangements balanced the budget. To
accommodate changing demand we propose 60 band two places and 60
band 1 places. The net cost of these arrangements is an overall increase of
£100,000 if all places were full. The funding could be made available by a
pro-rata reduction available for all top ups (e.g. all top ups reduced by £76, a
reduction inclusion money (from £33,407 per special school to £25,074) or
from contingency, or from a combination of them.
Q9

Are you agreeable to altering the band one and two numbers for
Hayfield? What are your views about resourcing this amount?

4.

Element Three Funding and SEN Resourced Base Provision in
Mainstream

4.1

Table Two shows the proposals Element Three Top Ups for Resourced
Provision in Mainstream Settings and Appendix B models the budgets for
Resourced Provision if the proposals are accepted.
Table Two
Top Up

Band One
(£0)

Band Two

Staffing
Average

Cognition and
Learning

Communication and
Interaction

Bids ton Village,
New Brighton,
Hilbert, Bebington
High, Older Shaw,
Wallasey, UAB

New Brighton, Priory,
Devonshire Park

Eastway, Fender,
Devonshire, Park,

(≈ £5,000)

Page 62

Behaviour,
Emotional and
Social

Physical,
Medical and
Sensory

Woodslee.
Band Three
(≈ £6,000)
Band Four

Hilbre, Woodchurch
High

(≈ £7,000)
Band Five

Townfield

(≈£10,000+)

4.2

The Steering Group propose that funding bands in mainstream schools are
£1,000 less than the equivalent band in special school because mainstream
schools have a lump sum and other formula factors within their budgets which
special schools do not.

Q 10 Do you think the 5 band model appropriate for Resourced Provision in
mainstream schools? What are your views?

4.3

It is proposed that payments are made on a termly basis to resourced base
provision.
Q 11 Are you agreement to this proposal? Have you comments to make?

4.4

Students currently attending Speech and Language Bases do so without a
statement of SEN, that attendance is in some cases part-time and that the
home school transfers the part of the AWPU. There has been some
confusion about these arrangements. The Steering Group propose that
students attending these bases do so full-time with statements and AWPU
transfer ceases.

Q 12 What are your views about these proposals for students attending
Speech and Language bases? Have you any comments you wish to
make?

Page 63

4.5

The number of students attending the University Academy of Birkenhead
Resourced Provision has fallen. In September there will be 24 pupils
attending this year with no entrants in year seven and no transfers to other
year groups throughout last year. It is proposed that we consult with schools
about reducing the place number in this provision from 40 to 20 from
September 2014 and review its future over the next twelve months.

Q13

4.6

The total numbers of students attending secondary resource bases for
moderate learning difficulties (Hilbre, Oldershaw, Bebington and Wallasey)
has now reached a total of 85. The increases in numbers were the subject of
an agreement that increased funding by five places when schools went one
over multiples of five pupils starting at 15 (i.e. the sixteenth triggered funding
for twenty and the 21st pupil triggered funding for twenty-five, etc). It is
proposed that no further increases are made for Hilbre, Bebington and
Wallasey, and Oldershaw.

Q14

4.7

What are your views about reducing the place number at the
Resourced Provision at UAB from 40 to 20 from September 2014 and
reviewing its future?

Are you agreeable to the place numbers now being capped at Hilbre,
Bebington, Oldershaw and Wallasey?

The number of pupils attending the Resourced Provision Hearing Base at
Townfield Primary School has fallen. On the advice of the Head of Sensory
Service it is proposed to reduce the number of places from 12 to 10.
Q15

Are you agreeable to changing the number of places at Townfield
Hearing Base from 12 to 10 ?

5.

Developing the Banding Approach for SEN Provision

5.1

One consequence of developing the bands to address the issues set out in
paragraph paragraph 2.1 is that on face validity the bands for specialist
provision do not demonstrate an obvious logic and show a tight clustering of
bands two, three and four. Modelling of different amounts of money in each

Page 64

band produced much more significant variance than has been achieved by
the bands proposed here.
5.2

The bands present an opportunity for their development that is based on
major types of needs and the provision to match them rather than by medical
diagnoses. Appendix C shows how the bands may be developed to provide a
matrix to assist a matching of needs and provision with funding. Of course no
criteria can be prescriptive in every individual case. But it may allow a future
banded approach to be one that eventually populates bands by pupils rather
than the names of institutions. There are far reaching implications of this
approach.

Q 16 What are your views about developing the bands that focus on needs
and provision? We propose a working group is set up to consider
developing the banding approach and its implications? Are you in
agreement?

6.

Element Three Funding and Alternative Provision

6.1

Table Three below shows the proposals for Element Three Top Ups for
Alternative Provision.
Table Three
Provision

Staffing
Average

Cognition and
Learning

Communication and
Interaction

Riverside,
St
Michaels

Behaviour,
Emotional and
Social

Physical,
Medical and
Sensory

AWPU Transfer

WASP

AWPU Transfer +
payment

Hospital
School

6.2

It is proposed that the AWPU is used as top up payment and that a full year
AWPU is transferred for Riverside, St Michael’s and WASP. A national review
of the funding for hospital schools is underway.

Q 17 What are your views about using a full year AWPU as top up payment
for a pupil attending ST Michael’s, Riverside, and WASP alternative
provisions? Are you in agreement with the proposal?

Page 65

7.

Element Three Funding in Mainstream Schools

7.1

Additional funding has been delegated to ensure that element two funding
(the old 5 units) is equivalent to the national average figure of £6,000. The
Steering Group propose that funding agreements and statements for student
attending mainstream settings will be on the basis of individually assigned
pupil units that will be described as element three top up with the number of
financial units specified. (The current value of one unit of element three top is
£1,090).

Q 18 Are you in agreement with this proposal to fund agreements and
statement in mainstream schools on the basis of a number of monetary
units of additional support?

7.2

An analysis of the notional SEN budgets delegated to mainstream settings
shows that in a very small number of primary and secondary schools their
existing commitment to statements and funding agreements exceeds their
notional delegated SEN budget. The Steering Group propose that additional
funding is made to a school where its contribution to element two exceeds
90% of its notional delegated SEN budget. The estimated cost is £140,000

Q 19 What are your views about additional funding for schools in these
circumstances? Are you agreeable for the funding to be made from the
High Needs Block?

7.3

Academies and maintained schools operate with different financial
arrangements and it is proposed that these revised funding arrangements do
so likewise and that element three funding will be paid from the beginning of
the financial year for maintained schools and from the beginning of the
academic year for Academies.

Q 20 What are you views about these arrangements? Do you agree with the
proposal?

Page 66

8.

Element Three Funding Post 16 in Further Education, Sixth Form
College and Independent Specialist Provision

8.1

Currently, FE Colleges are allocated funding by the Education Funding
Agency (EFA) for Additional Learning Support (ALS). This is based on the
average cost of the previous year’s overall support costs. ALS is any activity
that provides direct support for learning to individual learners, over and above
that which is normally provided in a standard learning programme that leads
to their learning goal. In the new SEN funding system support funding will be
provided by the Local Authority for additional support above £6,000.

8.2.

In 2013/14 the Local Authority has asked providers, where Wirral residents
will be attending, to calculate the amount of learners who will have costs
above £6,000. Providers have then assessed the amount of 1:1 staff support
and the hours required to calculate an ALS figure. A maximum contract
value has then been calculated and providers will be asked to work within this
allocation.

8.3

Overall numbers of Wirral learners accessing Independent Specialist
Provision (ISP) have reduced on a yearly basis from 18 2 years ago to a
predicted number of 10 in 2013/14. For continuity we will continue to apply the
current Education Funding Agency (EFA) support bands and contact hour
ranges for learners accessing an ISP. There is work being undertaken
nationally to further define the criteria to be used in future years.

8.4

For Further Education, next year, we will consider a banded approach based
on the Appendix D.

Q 21 What do you think about developing the illustrative banded approach
shown in Appendix D, using time as the basis for the support, to be
implemented in September 2014?

9.

Recoupment

9.1

Recoupment of SEN monies between Local Authorities for students with
statements of SEN (unless they are Looked After) ceases under the funding
reforms and any educating institution is expected to recoup its top up funding
Recoupment has never been extensive for Wirral because of our geography.
The Steering Group propose that the Authority continues to recoup monies for
all Wirral schools and academies up to April 2014 and that beyond that, either
a) schools and academies make their own arrangements or, b) the Authority
recoups monies and levies a charge to schools.

Page 67

Q 22 Which proposal do you favour? Do you have any other suggestions?

10.

Sensory Service

10.1

Wirral’s Sensory Service meets the needs of pupils with hearing and vision
difficulties at all stages of the current SEN code of Practice. It has been
successful in developing inclusive approaches for these populations and few
attend specialist provision or require statements.

10.2

Currently the service is funded by a top slice of the DSG and individual needs
are met by the service without mainstream schools using their delegated
budgets to fund element two (the five units or £6,000). This arrangement
differs from those arrangements for meeting other needs, e.g. Health Care
Plans, Funding Agreements and Statements of SEN. It is proposed that the
service model of delivery and funding is reviewed to consider whether current
arrangements remain, or that future arrangements should be consistent with
arrangements for meeting other low incidence -high needs.

Q 23 Should funding and delivery of the Sensory Service be reviewed over
the next 6 months?

11.

Assessment Arrangements

11.1

Wirral’s current SEN Handbook that describes and outlines current
assessment arrangements was published in 2003. A new set of assessment
arrangements are needed to usher in the SEN Funding Reforms. They must
also prepare the way for the SEN Framework Reforms that are scheduled to
come into effect in September 2014 but until then the assessment
arrangements must be consistent with SEN Code of Practice (2001) and the
SEN provisions in the Education Act ’96.

11.2

Arrangements are being drafted called “Assessment Framework for High
Needs Special Educational Needs Pupils and Students 2013-2014” to be
implemented in September 2013 and serve to pilot the transition to the
Funding Reforms and expected national SEN framework reforms. The
framework will ensure that Wirral has procedures to assess the needs of all
students with high needs from 0-25 for the academic year 2013-2014 and
gives guidance for all parties to understand the process for assessing and
funding high needs pupils. It will be monitored and reviewed to take account
of any policy changes and be the subject of revision over 12 months. It is
much shorter than its predecessor, more generic and draws together changes
that have occurred over recent years and hopefully will not impose
unnecessary bureaucracy upon institutions.

Page 68

12.

Future Funding

12.1

Funding for high needs is making up an increasing proportion of the DSG and
is higher than the national average. In paragraph 3.5 and 3.6 we introduced
questions about resourcing funding changes. By presenting them we are
drawing to your attention the cost of meeting rising demand for more
expensive specialist provision and the need for a local sufficiency plan to be
developed that sustains high needs spending appropriate to the funding
available. Future funding must seriously consider recycling money already
existing in the high needs block. This means trying to educate more pupils in
local provision and have fewer pupils educated out of the borough. It means
reducing the numbers of pupils in the lower funded bands and for them to be
educated in mainstream schools. We propose that:
•

the SEN Forum Finance Group extends its current remit to develop
funding bands and also considers changes in places and demand with any
future proposals for increases in top up funding to start from the
assumption that the block is fixed and that options for change must include
options that recycle money;

•

Service Level Agreements are developed with Resourced Base Provision,
and for any outreach services that are commissioned by the Forum, to
ensure consistency of provision and services and quality assurance
arrangements;

•

future commissioning intentions are the subject of a longer-term vision and
sufficiency plan being developed by the Families and Wellbeing
Directorate.

Q 24 What are your views about the proposals?
suggestions?

Page 69

Do have any other

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Appendix B
Children and Young People’s
Department
Julia Hassall
Director
Hamilton Building,
Conway Street,
Birkenhead,
Wirral
CH41 4FD

to

your ref
my ref
service
tel
fax
email

date

4th November 2013

AR876/sls
0151 666 4293
Please ask for
0151 666 4338
andrewroberts@wirral.gov.uk

Andrew Roberts

Dear Headteacher
Consultation on Element 3 Top Up Funding for Pupils with High Needs SEN
I am seeking your views about requesting an exemption from the EFA from a
requirement to apply a Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) to High Needs Top Up
rates that will be introduced from April 2014.
The background to this was discussed with Special Schools and Bases on 29th and
30th October alongside the outcome of the funding consultation.
Briefly as a reminder the main points appear to be:
•
•
•
•

•
•

The requirement for an MFG in 2014-15 was confirmed by the EFA in their
document Arrangements for School Funding published in mid July
The MFG applies to High Needs Top Up funding provided to each pupil.
This would give some continuing protection to the existing High Needs pupil
funding for schools where the level of funding is reducing
However in some cases the MFG will give more funding overall per pupil than
the previous year. Typically this is when there is more than one band in use at a
school
The MFG has a total cost in excess of £800,000. This would be un-affordable,
and would require any gains to schools to be capped
The implementation of a new banded structure, which was supported by most
consultation responses, would effectively be deferred

To apply for an exemption it is important to know the views of those schools that are
affected. I would be grateful if you would indicate the option you would support. The
advantages and disadvantages of each option are set out below and attached is a
table illustrating the funding allocated by the 3 options.
www.wirral.gov.uk

Page 71

_

Advantages

•

•

Option 1
No MFG
Full introduction
of new banded
top up systems
Supported by
most
consultation
responses

•

•

•

Disadvantages

•

The reduction in •
funding to a few
schools is
significant

Option 2
Option 3
Average MFG
No Exemption
Provides some
• The MFG is
protection
applied as
against large
intended by the
funding changes
DFE
A school cannot
gain from the
new banding
structure and the
MFG
An exemption
could request
the MFG is
phased out over
3 years to
coincide with a
further review of
provision
The MFG will
• Some schools
cost nearly
would gain from
£400,000,
the new banded
committing
structure and the
additional
MFG
resources and
• The cost is in
contingencies
excess of
£800,000 and is
unaffordable
• Gains would
have to be
capped

I would be grateful if you would complete and return the attached by 11th November
2013 to andrewroberts@wirral.gov.uk.
Yours sincerely

Julia Hassall
Director of Childrens Services

www.wirral.gov.uk

Page 72

Consultation on Element 3 Top Up Funding for Pupils with High Needs SEN

My School

……………………………………………………..

Support

Option 1

No MFG



Option 2

Average MFG



Option 3

No Exemption



Please scan and return by e-mail to andrewroberts@wirral.gov.uk

www.wirral.gov.uk

Page 73

Special Schools Top Ups (Using Termly numbers)
Option 1
School

Kilgarth
Observatory
Gilbrook
Hayfield
Claremount
Orrets
Meadowside
Foxfield
Elleray
Lyndale
Stanley
Primary
Bidston Village CofE
(Controlled) Primary School
Devonshire Park Primary
School
Eastway Primary School
Fender Primary School
New Brighton Primary School
The Priory Parish CofE
Primary School
Woodslee Primary School
Townfield (Hearing)
Secondary
Woodchurch High School
Engineering College
Hilbre High School
Bebington High Sports
College
Wallasey School
UAB
Oldershaw
Alternative Provision
St Michael and All Angels
Riverside Primary School
WASP

2013-14
£

Option 3
MFG

960,445
947,705
1,128,855
1,583,148
2,469,031
774,542
1,340,404
2,304,554
1,518,777
761,733
1,571,391

967,416
885,514
1,122,001
1,632,086
2,507,225
840,419
1,405,738
2,300,026
1,603,732
768,121
1,558,714

967,416
921,514
1,122,001
1,632,086
2,507,225
840,419
1,405,738
2,300,026
1,618,582
780,771
1,578,424

967,369
920,930
1,122,048
1,750,798
2,578,700
791,159
1,372,554
2,302,378
1,633,185
821,392
1,578,637

240,000

240,000

240,000

240,000

296,669
194,914
208,188
220,000

364,000
250,000
262,000
220,000

364,000
250,000
262,000
220,000

304,691
207,247
225,208
220,000

100,000
107,792
230,900

100,000
134,000
183,333

100,000
134,000
211,305

100,000
117,603
209,368

373,666
168,644

255,000
185,000

370,305
185,000

370,310
172,230

292,516
347,683
484,985
207,285

250,000
300,000
300,000
200,000

293,650
349,110
364,960
210,740

291,890
346,958
383,708
207,171

88,709
86,918
1,037,600

104,000
102,333
1,024,000

104,000
102,333
1,024,000

97,435
95,005
1,031,604

20,459,605

20,459,578

Contingency

394,947

20,047,054

www.wirral.gov.uk

No MFG

Option 2
Average
MFG

20,459,606

Page 74

APPENDIX C: Banding Model for Top Ups for Specialist SEN and Alternative Provision . Bands show Resourced SEN Provision as £1K than Special School in that band.
Band

Cognition and Learning

Communication and Interaction

Band One
Resourced Provision £0
Special School £1,000

Bidston Village 24
New Brighton 12
Wallasey 30
Bebington High 25
UAB 20
Hilbre 10
Hayfield 60
Clare Mount 148
Orrets 50

New Brighton 10
The Priory 10
Devonshire Park 10

Band Two
Resourced Provision £5,000
Special School £6,000

Behaviour Emotional and Social
Difficulties
St Michael’s & All Angels
Riverside

Orrets 16
Hayfield 60
Clare Mount 46

WASP

Stanley 90
Lyndale 4
Elleray 77
Meadowside 60
Foxfield 110

Devonshire Park 16
Woodslee 8
Fender 16
Eastway 16

Gilbrook 55

Band Four
Resourced Provision £7,000
Special School £8,000

Lyndale 5
Elleray 9
Meadowside 5
Foxfield 5

Hilbre 5
Woodchurch High 15

Kilgarth 50
The Observatory 50

Band Five £16k

Stanley 0
Lyndale 16
Elleray 4
Meadowside 10
Foxfield 10

£16K plus

Independent/Non-Maintained/Out of
Borough 80

Page 75

Band Three
Resourced Provision £6,000
Special School £7,000

Physical, Medical and Sensory

Townfield £10,000

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Special Schools Top Ups (Using Termly numbers)
Pupils
Annual
School
Summer Autumn Spring Top Up
£

Appendix D
Top Up
Top up per
term
£

Band

Place funding Summer
£
£

Autumn

Spring

Inclusion
£

Total
£

2013-14
£

Variation
£

Kilgarth

44

46

50

8,000

2,667

4

500,000

117,348

122,682

133,350

94,036

967,416

960,445

6,971

Observatory

47

43

42

8,000

2,667

4

500,000

125,349

114,681

112,014

33,470

885,514

947,705

-62,191

Gilbrook

55

43

43

7,000

2,333

3

550,000

128,315

100,319

100,319

243,048

1,122,001

1,128,855

-6,854

Hayfield

53
60
113

49
56
105

50
58
108

1,000
6,000

333
2,000

1
2

800,000
400,000
1,200,000

17,649
120,000
137,649

16,317
112,000
128,317

16,650
116,000
132,650

33,470

1,632,086

1,583,148

48,938

139
46
185

138
46
184

138
46
184

1,000
6,000

1,560,000
380,000
1,940,000

46,287
92,000
138,287

45,954
92,000
137,954

45,954
92,000
137,954

153,030

2,507,225

2,469,031

38,194

61
16
77

45
16
61

47
16
63

1,000
6,000

500,000
160,000
660,000

20,313
32,000
52,313

14,985
32,000
46,985

15,651
32,000
47,651

33,470

840,419

774,542

65,877

64
5
11
80

59
5
10
74

58
5
9
72

7,000
8,000
16,000

600,000
50,000
100,000
750,000

149,312
13,335
58,663
221,310

137,647
13,335
53,330
204,312

135,314
13,335
47,997
196,646

33,470

1,405,738

1,340,404

65,334

100
5
9
114

108
5
10
123

110
5
10
125

7,000
8,000
16,000

1,180,000
50,000
100,000
1,330,000

233,300
13,335
47,997
294,632

251,964
13,335
53,330
318,629

256,630
13,335
53,330
323,295

33,470

2,300,026

2,304,554

-4,528

9
4
76
89

9
4
75
88

9
4
78
91

8,000
16,000
7,000

90,000
40,000
770,000
900,000

24,003
21,332
177,308
222,643

24,003
21,332
174,975
220,310

24,003
21,332
181,974
227,309

33,470

1,603,732

1,518,777

84,955

5
18
4
27

5
15
4
24

5
17
4
26

8,000
16,000
7,000

50,000
160,000
40,000
400,000

13,335
95,994
9,332
118,661

13,335
79,995
9,332
102,662

13,335
90,661
9,332
113,328

33,470

768,121

761,733

6,388

90

87

91

7,000

900,000

209,970

202,971

212,303

33,470

1,558,714

1,571,391

-12,677

905

862

879

757,874 15,590,992

15,360,585

230,407

Claremount

Orrets

Page 77

Meadowside

Foxfield

Elleray

Lyndale

Stanley
Total

333
2,000

333
2,000

2,333
2,667
5,333

2,333
2,667
5,333

2,667
5,333
2,333

2,667
5,333
2,333

2,333

1
2

1
2

3
4
5

3
4
5

4
5
3

4
5
3

3

9,630,000 1,766,477 1,699,822 1,736,819

Resourced Base Provision (using pupil numbers and termly top ups)
Pupils
Annual Top Up
Summer Autumn Spring Top Up per Term
£
£
Primary
Nil
Bidston Village CofE
23
23
23
Devonshire Park

17
10

18
10

17
10

6,000
Nil

2,000

APPENDIX D
Places

Top up band

Amount
£

Place Funding Summer
£
£

Top Up
Autumn
£

Spring
£

Total
£

2013-14
£

Variation
£

24

1

Nil

240,000

0

0

0

240,000

240,000 (excludes AWPU)

0

16
10
26

3
1

6,000
Nil

160,000
100,000
260,000

34,000
0
34,000

36,000
0
36,000

34,000
0
34,000

264,000
100,000
364,000

296,669 (excludes AWPU)

67,331

Eastway Primary School

15

15

15

6,000

2,000

16

3

6,000

160,000

30,000

30,000

30,000

250,000

194,914

55,086

Fender Primary School

17

17

17

6,000

2,000

16

3

6,000

160,000

34,000

34,000

34,000

262,000

208,188

53,812

New Brighton Primary

21

21

21

Nil

22

1

Nil

220,000

0

0

0

220,000

220,000 (excludes AWPU)

0

The Priory Parish CofE

10

10

10

Nil

10

1

Nil

100,000

0

0

0

100,000

100,000 (excludes AWPU)

0

9

9

9

6,000

2,000

8

3

6,000

80,000

18,000

18,000

18,000

134,000

107,792

26,208

9

7

9

10,000

3,333

10

10,000

100,000

30,000

23,333

30,000

183,333

230,900

-47,567

15

15

15

7,000

2,333

15

4

7,000

150,000

35,000

35,000

35,000

255,000

373,666

-118,666

10
5

8
5

10
5

Nil
7,000

2,333

10
5
15

1
4

Nil
7,000

100,000
50,000
150,000

0
11,667
11,667

0
11,667
11,667

0
11,667
11,667

100,000
85,000
185,000

168,644

16,356

Woodslee Primary

Page 78

Townfield (Hearing)
Secondary
Woodchurch High
Hilbre High School

Bebington High Sports

24

24

24

Nil

25

1

Nil

250,000

0

0

0

250,000

292,516

-42,516

Wallasey School

29

28

29

Nil

30

1

Nil

300,000

0

0

0

300,000

347,683

-47,683

UAB

24

29

24

Nil

30

1

Nil

300,000

0

0

0

300,000

484,985

-184,985

Oldershaw

13

14

13

Nil

20

1

Nil

200,000

0

0

0

200,000

207,285

-7,285

3,243,333

3,473,242

-229,909

267

2,790,000

Alternative Provision
St Michael and All

8

8

8

5,000

1,667

8

2

5,000

64,000

13,333

13,333

13,333

104,000

88,709 (excludes AWPU)

15,291

Riverside Primary

7

8

8

5,000

1,667

8

2

5,000

64,000

11,667

13,333

13,333

102,333

86,918 (excludes AWPU)

15,415

80

48

64

6,000

2,000

80

2

6,000

640,000

160,000

96,000

128,000 1,024,000

1,037,600 (excludes AWPU)

-13,600

WASP

363

3,558,000

4,473,667

4,686,469

-212,802

Agenda Item 13
WIRRAL COUNCIL
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDRENS SERVICES
OUTCOME OF EARLY YEARS FUNDING CONSULTATION

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report summarises the responses received to the Early Years Funding Consultation.
The consultation commenced on 21st August and closed on 18th October. The report
makes general recommendations in respect of the Early Years Single Funding Formula
and specific recommendations in respect of the funding for the 3 maintained Nursery
Schools.
Background
The consultation followed a report to the previous meeting on 3rd July and the work by the
Forum Reference Group. The document was circulated to all 177 Wirral Early Years
providers and asked 7 questions. In total only 20 responses were received. These were
from:
3 Maintained Nursery Schools
9 Private, Voluntary and Independent settings
6 Primary Schools
Consultation responses
A large number of the responses drew limited comments. Where asked specifically most
settings were in agreement with proposals that were made. The consultation responses
reflect the circumstances of the setting, the relevance of the question to them and a
number of detailed comments across the sector.
A few responses commented on the timescale and the difficulty in responding to the
questions asked, seeking clarification on the formula, the make up of the elements and
the entitlement. Separately this raises a need to refresh the training given around the
Early Years Formula and Early Years Funding in general.
The consultation and a summary of some of the comments made are included as
Appendix 1 and 2 of this report.
Responses to Consultation Questions

Question 1. This question followed a brief summary of the Early Years Formula, the base
rate and supplements and asked if there were any general comments about the rates
paid.
The responses received often commented on the fact that the base rate has not really
changed since the formula was introduced in 2011, which itself was based on rates paid
in 2010. Although there has been some significant growth in overall funding as a result of
the expansion of the 2 Year Old programme, the amounts paid for 3 and 4 year olds has

Page 79

not increased. These decisions take account of the cash limited funding received by Local
Authorities. In addition they reflect the fact that there have been no LA led pay awards in
these areas since 2009.
There are increasing cost pressures faced by all providers as a result of general inflation
– energy and food for example. It will be important to collect, assess and compare costs
and any evidence of increased efficiencies or good practice. This should also be included
in any future funding reviews.

Question 2. This question asked for comments about the individual supplements paid for
flexibility, deprivation and quality.
The appendix shows the range of responses to this question, most suggest that the
amounts paid are not sufficient or in proportion to amounts paid elsewhere. No responses
suggested a reduction in a particular supplement to pay for an increase in another area.
There are positive comments about deprivation funding, it is well received, however some
responses do make the comparison with the Pupil Premium. The highest deprivation
band will pay 23p per hour; this is the equivalent of £131.10 per pupil per year, whereas
the Pupil Premium in Primary schools is £900. Whilst there remains no provision for a
Pupil Premium in this area Primary Schools are able to direct some funding from their
main school budget into early years.
No changes are proposed to these specific rates at this time.

Question 3 Deprivation funding – this asked for views about the initial proposal from the
DfE that there should only be 2 bands within the funding formula.
The deprivation supplement within the EYSFF currently has 3 bands; these rates reflect
low, medium and high levels of deprivation. The levels of deprivation are measured by the
postcode of the pupil’s home address and when the total scores for all pupils in a setting
are added together, this results in a setting being given a band. Postcodes and bands are
reviewed each year.
In asking should there be a move to 2 bands in the formula, this acknowledges the rates
paid for a medium and high band would increase from 14p and 23p to 16p and 25p
respectively, but it would also mean that 46 settings would no longer benefit from this
element at all.
Most responses did not wish to make this change and recognised the importance of there
being some funding for additional needs across all settings.

Question 4 This question asked for any comments about the level of central funding for
early years.
Initial proposals from the DfE suggested that there should be a limit to the amount that
could be top sliced from the Early Years budget to be retained centrally. The proposed
level was 10% of the Early Years budget.
Whilst this suggestion has not progressed the consultation paper asked for views about
the current level of spend £541,100 (equal to 4% of the total Early Years budget).
Responses ranged from seeking clarification on the purpose of this funding, how does it
support and develop Early Years provision, to reducing the level further and allocating
more resources to settings.

Page 80

As part of the feedback to providers more information will be provided on the use of this
budget. Given the expansion of the 2 year old programme it seems likely that pressures
and costs in this area will increase in future.
Question 5 Should the current formula cap and Minimum Funding guarantee be
withdrawn?
Most providers agreed that the cap on formula gains (compared to the level of funding
received in 2010) should be withdrawn, together with any transitional protection given to
those providers who would otherwise have incurred losses from the formula.
Although the question asked should the MFG be withdrawn, Regulations will require its
retention. The MFG is applied only to the core base rate of £3.20. With this in mind it is
not anticipated that the MFG of minus 1.5% will be triggered.

Question 6 Do the changes proposed present a more appropriate model of funding for
Nursery Schools?
The model proposes a new base rate for Nursery Schools of £5.00 per hour, continuing
supplements for deprivation, quality and flexibility and a new lump sum of £100,000,
equivalent to that paid in the mainstream school funding formula.
There was a range of comments. Primary schools were supportive, together with some
PVI’s. Their comments recognised that nursery schools should be retained, having a
specific and definitive role in the delivery of Early Years and as such they should be
funded on a viable basis. Nursery schools themselves welcome the changes but
comment there are still challenges ahead.
Other PVI’s commented on the increases being given to one sector of Early Years
provision with a number of empty places and that this was at the expense of others.
However this was not a unanimous view.

Question 7 Should any alternative factors be considered?
This question did not result in a significant response. A few providers commented on how
the plans for 2 year olds should be developed.

Recommendations
1. That there are no changes to the supplements paid for Deprivation, Flexibility or
Quality at this time
2. That the 3 bands currently used to allocate deprivation funding remain
3. That the formula cap ceases in the budgets for 2014-15
4. That funding for Nursery Schools is amended to include a new base rate of £5.00
and a lump sum of £100,000 pa.
5. That the formula is reviewed again over the period 2014-16

Julia Hassall
Director of Children’s Services

Page 81

Comments – Changes to Early Years Single Funding Formula
Q1.

Appendix 1

General comments about rates paid.

The rates paid allow for only the minimum wage.
The current rates are not sustainable for the three nursery schools that have high staff
costs.
Nursery schools receive a disproportionate share of the budget.
There should be the same rates paid to all providers.
There is some difficulty moving from the 2 year rate to the 3 and 4 year rate.
How will increases in costs in the future e.g. energy be reflected in the rates paid?
Is the model proposed sustainable?
The rates are low, when will they be increased?
Q2.

Comments about supplements in the formula

The quality supplement should better reflect the differential teaching costs. At 16p per
hour this is not the case.
Is a qualified teacher a measure of quality?
The flexibility supplement should increase.
Early Years settings should receive the Pupil Premium.
Deprivation allocations should not be based on the Early Years settings postcode (They
are not, they are based on the child’s postcode)
There should be a healthy eating supplement.
Q3.

Changes to the number of deprivation bands

The 23p supplement (£131pa) does not match the funding maintained schools receive
through the Pupil Premium.
This supplement should be based on actual need.
Q4.

Comments on centrally retained funding

What is this funding used for? Could it be better used?
Q5.

Minimum Funding Guarantee and Capping

Those responses agreeing with the proposal
Those disagreeing
Q6.

11
4

Do the nursery changes present a more appropriate funding model?

Those responses agreeing with the proposal
Those disagreeing
Those making no comment

10
4
5

The changes should not be at the expense of others.
Are nursery schools viable in the long term?
Q7.

Should any alternative factors be considered?

What are the plans for increasing provision for 2 year olds?
When will there be another formula review?
Can there be funding for other activities – cookery, languages, music?

Page 82

Early Years Consultation Paper – Changes in funding proposals
Appendix 2
_____________________________________________________________________
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This consultation starts a short review of the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF)
for three and four year olds for 2014-15. The paper sets out a number of areas that were
considered nationally by the Department for Education (DfE) and addresses an indicative
shortfall locally in the funding of maintained nursery schools. Any changes would be
effective from 1st April 2014.
2. BACKGROUND
A sub group of the Schools Forum has met during the year to consider issues affecting
Early Years. These include:
- the increase in 2 year old funding received for 2013-14
- the statutory entitlement for 2 year olds from September 2013 and the need for
capacity building
- options for the additional revenue and capital funding received
- DfE proposals for the EYSFF
- a review of standard costings for providers
- nursery school funding proposals.
You will have received separately information in respect of 2 year olds, together with
applications for funding to develop capacity and meet the anticipated increase in demand
both from September 2013 and September 2014.
The Early Years budget for 2013-14 is £13,454,000, this represents funding for:
2 year olds
£3,222,000
Nursery Schools
£1,058,000 (3 schools)
Nursery Classes
£3,013,000 (42 classes in maintained schools)
PVIs
£6,161,000 (132 providers and childminders)
All providers are paid through the single funding formula
The EYSFF was introduced in April 2011, and operates using a common base rate of £3.20
per hour for all providers, together with a series of supplements and lump sum payments.
The formula is used to fund all early years provision in Private Voluntary and Independent
providers, Nursery Classes and Nursery Schools.
Question 1. Do you have any general comments about the rates paid?

Question 2. Do you have any comments about the suitability and effectiveness of the
supplements paid in respect of :
Flexibility only in the school day 18p per hour
Flexibility outside the school day 36p per hour
Deprivation bands - Low 5p, Medium 14p, High 23p
Quality 16p per hour

Page 83

3. DEPRIVATION
This element within the EYSFF is required by the DfE. Wirral’s formula uses pupil postcode
data which is contained within the Index of Multiple Deprivation. Scores for pupils are
totalled for each setting. This is used to place each provider into one of the three
deprivation bands described above.
DfE proposals in Spring indicated that the number of bands allowed within the formula
would be reduced to two only. This would if implemented result in the following changes

Low
Medium
High

Current Deprivation
Supplement
5p (46 settings)
14p (64 settings)
23p (67 settings)

Future Deprivation
Supplement
nil (46 settings)
16p (64 settings)
25p (67 settings)

There are 46 settings in the low band receiving funding totalling £40,623. They would in
future, if this change were implemented, receive nothing. However the evidence suggests
that there are additional needs across all settings.
The latest response from the DfE is that they will not require local authorities to make these
changes
Question 3 Do you think a change to the number of deprivation bands should be considered
as part of the EYSFF?

4. OTHER CHANGES
The DfE’s paper encourages local authorities to continue to look at how the funding formula
could be simplified, together with a suggestion that centrally retained funding for Early
Years should be limited to 10%.
Wirral’s percentage is currently quite low at 4% of total funding. This budget provides a
resource to support and develop Early Years provision across the borough.
Question 4 Do you have any comments or suggestions ?

5. MAINTAINED NURSERY SCHOOLS
A number of specific proposals are being considered in respect of the Councils three
maintained nursery schools – Ganneys Meadow, Leasowe and Brentwood. At the time of
introduction of the EYSFF in April 2011 maintained nursery schools were given protection to
assist in the transition to the new formula since this delivered significantly less funding in
this area. Maintained nursery schools were initially protected at 90% of their funding level
in 2010-11, moving to 85% and then 80% over three years. It was agreed at the Schools
Forum that the reduction from 85% to 80% would not be implemented in the last year
(2013-14) and that nursery schools would remain protected at 85%.
The formula has also contained a capping mechanism, whereby additional funding payable
to other early years providers was limited or ‘capped’ in order to fund the nursery school
protection costs. The value of the cap in 2013-14 is £110,000.

Page 84

It is intended in 2014-15 that the EYSFF will be fully operational with no capping and that
the Minimum Funding Guarantee of minus 1.5% per pupil will no longer apply to the
EYSFF. This means that any increase or reduction in funding arising from changes in
childrens data - for example deprivation bands or changes in the provision of a flexible offer
would be fully implemented in the year the change takes effect. This would remove some
protection currently provided by the formula to 14 providers (costing £9,000), but would as a
result allocate resources more closely to the Early Years provision offered.

Question 5 Do you agree that the current formula cap and Minimum Funding Guarantee
should be withdrawn?

When the changes described above are implemented and all providers are fully funded
through the formula, the indicative resources for the Wirral’s 3 maintained nursery schools
will reduce:
Ganneys Meadow by £116,000
Leasowe by £75,000
Brentwood by £40,000
Officers from the local authority and headteachers and governors from the three maintained
nursery schools met recently to discuss the formula arrangements for 2014-15 and the
means available to address budget shortfalls.
Nursery schools have additional costs compared to other providers. These include the
requirement for a headteacher and generally higher wage bills as a result of qualified
teaching staff and local government pay and conditions. Difficulties are also presented as a
result of each school having surplus places at the start of each school year, ranging from 30
to 60%. These are factors that are recognised by the DfE and by authorities that have
similar nursery provision.
It was acknowledged that significant progress had been made in restructuring provision and
reducing costs. However it was also agreed that the current base rate and supplements
would not be a viable option for this provision, resulting in an annual shortfall at each school
of between £30,000 and £80,000.
Modelling has identified formula changes that would help to fund maintained nursery
schools at around their current funding level. Whilst the proposal is not sufficient to cover
all costs and meet all needs it does provide greater stability and the opportunity for schools
to generate additional income from 2 year old funding or from increased pupil numbers.
The changes, which are similar to those introduced by other authorities, would require a
separate base rate of £5.00 and a new lump sum of £100,000. The indications are that this
model would cost in the region of an additional £130,000 pa.
In 2012-13 there was an underspend within the Early Years budget for 3 and 4 year olds of
£200,000. The changes agreed to date set out above (to extend protection at 85% and
cease capping) together with these proposals for nursery schools would fully commit this
budget

Page 85

Question 6 Do the changes proposed present a more appropriate model for funding nursery
schools?
Question 7 Should any alternative factors be considered?

Name of setting------------------------------------------------------------Please respond to this questionnaire by 18th October
and return to
Sue Ashley
Children and young peoples Department
Hamilton Buildings
Conway Street
Birkenhead
Wirral
CH41 4FD

Page 86

Agenda Item 14
th

Draft Minute form Cabinet Meeting on 10 October 2013

79. Proposed Changes to School Funding Formula
Minutes:

The Cabinet Member for Children and Family Services introduced a report which
recommended that a number of changes were made to the local funding formula for primary
and secondary schools and academies from April 2014.
The proposals had been the subject of a 4 week consultation with schools (which was
subsequently extended by a further week) and had been discussed with the Schools’ Forum.
Changes to Wirral’s formula for funding mainstream schools had to be submitted to the
Education Funding Agency by 31 October 2013.

RESOLVED:
That the changes to the Local Funding Formula are made in accordance with
Department for Education timescales and discussions continue with schools regarding
the future level of funding for Looked After Children.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88

WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
10 OCTOBER 2013

SUBJECT:

PROPOSALS FOR CHANGES TO THE
LOCAL FUNDING FORMULA FOR
PRIMARY, SECONDARY AND ACADEMY
SCHOOLS

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR TONY SMITH

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?
(Defined in YES
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s
Constitution.)

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report recommends that a number of changes are made to the local funding
formula for primary and secondary schools and academies from April 2014.
1.2 The proposals have been the subject of a 4 week consultation with schools (which was
subsequently extended by a further week) and have been discussed with the Schools’
Forum. Changes to Wirral’s formula for funding mainstream schools must be submitted
to the Education Funding Agency by 31 October 2013.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 The Schools Funding Formula is the means to allocate budgets to all maintained
mainstream school and academies in Wirral. The formula uses a range of prescribed
factors such as pupil numbers and deprivation elements to determine an individual
budget for each school. The amount allocated in 2013-14 was £181.4m in total. School
budgets are funded from the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant.
2.2 As part of the current Schools Budget for 2013-14 Cabinet agreed a number of
significant changes to the Schools Funding Formula. The DfE required all Local
Authorities to remodel their local formula for schools, with the aim of moving towards a
national funding system that is “fair, simple and more consistent”. The DfE have now
reviewed these changes across the country and have introduced further amendments to
2014-15. These will address a number of minor issues that have arisen. Alongside this
some local amendments have been proposed.

Page 89

2.3 Wirral’s formula for is summarised in the table below.
Table 1 Wirral Schools Formula 2013/14
Pupil Entitlement
Deprivation
Lump Sum
Low Cost, High Incidence SEN (LHCI)
Rates
English As An Additional Language (EAL)
Looked After Children (LAC)
Rents
Split Site
Minimum Funding Guarantee / Cap
De-delegation
FINAL BUDGET ALLOCATION

PRIMARY £
66,080,843
11,840,743
9,000,000
4,887,951
925,449
253,800
120,690
23,000
21,224
38,348
-1,133,200
92,058,849

SECONDARY £
74,820,449
8,658,572
2,100,000
3,400,040
511,553
29,900
103,664
-42,942
-201,110
89,380,127

TOTAL £
140,901,293
20,499,315
11,100,000
8,287,991
1,437,002
283,700
224,354
23,000
21,224
-4,593
-1,334,310
181,438,976

%
77.7
11.3
6.1
4.6
0.8
0.2
0.1
0.0
0.0
0.0
-0.7
100.0

2.4 Schools have been consulted on the following elements:
1. Pupil entitlement
This is the largest element within the formula and provides a level of funding for each
pupil. Currently these per pupil amounts are Primary £2,729, Secondary Key Stage 3
£3892, Key Stage 4 £5,000. No changes are proposed in this area.
2. Deprivation
This is a mandatory element within the formula allocating funds to schools using both
the numbers of free school meals and the Index of Income Deprivation Affecting
Children (IDACI). No changes are proposed in this area.
3. Prior Attainment
This element is used as a proxy indicator for low cost, high incidence special education
needs in schools. In 2014-15 the basis of this data will change:
- In primary schools the data will take account of children coming into Key Stage 1
who have not achieved the expected level of development in all 12 prime learning
goals.
- In secondary schools the data will change to take account of children not achieving a
Level 4 in English or Maths at Key Stage 2. Previously it was children who did not
achieve Level 4 in English and Maths.
In both instances this significantly increases the number of children eligible for funding
which widens the distribution of SEN funding across schools. There is no proposal to
increase the resources in this area, since this would require additional funding or other
areas in the formula to be reduced. As a result a number of schools will receive
additional or less funding as illustrated in the appendix attached to this report.
4. English as an Additional Language (EAL)
The consultation proposes to use a wider group of children and young people in the
formula – those EAL children who have been at school for up to 3 years. This change
will better reflect the work of the Minority Ethnic Achievement Service, who support
children in school for a number of years dependent on their needs
5. Mobility
This is not currently an element with Wirral’s formula. A Mobility factor is a means of
providing additional funding for schools that have high numbers of children who arrive
during the school year and require additional support. Only those schools who have a

Page 90

mobility rate in excess of 10% may qualify for funding through this element. If
introduced 16 out of 90 primary schools would qualify and no secondary schools would
be included. However those schools who would be eligible are those currently receiving
higher levels of deprivation funding.
The need for introducing another element within the formula has not been proven and is
not recommended at this time.
6. Looked After Children
This is intended to reflect costs within schools for teachers attending multi-agency case
review meetings. The formula currently allocates £576 for each Looked After Child.
The total value within the formula is £225,000. Comparative data shows this is not as
high as other local authorities either in the area or nationally. In response to this and
the lower levels of attainment of Looked After Children in schools, the consultation
paper has suggested increasing this rate, by allocating an additional £225,000, with
funding to be top sliced from all other formula elements.
7. Lump sums
All Wirral Schools currently receive a lump sum of £100,000. The DfE will in future
allow a maximum lump sum of £175,000 (reduced from £200,000) which can be
differentiated between primary and secondary phases.
Changes to this element so soon after last year when all lump sums were equalised is
not recommended.
8. Split Sites
This formula element allocates additional funding to schools when pupils are located on
more than 1 site and where the distance between sites is greater than 0.3 miles. Only 2
schools currently qualify.
A change is proposed to include schools on 2 sites separated by a road where there are
2 separate administration/reception points. This would include 1 further school.
9. Delegation of Free School Milk
There is an amount of £148,000 delegated to schools in respect of free school milk.
This is based on 60% FSM and 40% Pupil Entitlement. In future it is proposed to use
FSM only. This change will better reflect costs in schools.
10. Transfer of Funding to High Needs
The consultation has sought views on the transfer of unallocated funding (£300,000)
into the High Needs Budget. This amount was previously given to schools with
resourced base provision. However following publication of Draft Funding Regulations
for 2014 this will no longer be possible. This transfer would enable this funding to
continue to be targeted to pupils with high needs.

3.0 CABINET PROPOSALS FOR MAINSTREAM FORUM CHANGES
3.1 The changes that are being proposed to the Funding Formula are:-

To use revised prior attainment data sets in primary and secondary schools to
allocate low cost high incidence SEN funding.
To allocate funding for English as an Additional Language using data for EAL
children who have been in the school system for up to 3 years.
To increase the funding for Looked After Children.

Page 91

-

To change the split site criteria to include schools on 2 sites with 2 reception and
administration areas.
To delegate free school meals funding based on FSM only.
To transfer £300,000 funding into the High Needs Budget.

4.0 RELEVANT RISKS
The changes described will assist with the allocation of resources in schools to meet
expected needs and to comply with Draft School Finance Regulations
5.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
The options considered by schools and in this report were agreed by the Schools Forum
and take account of guidelines from the DfE.
6.0 CONSULTATION
6.1 The DfE published their review of school funding and changes required for 2014-15 in
June. Following discussion with the School Forum in July all schools and academies on
Wirral have been consulted on the changes proposed in this report. The consultation
was for a 4 week period up to 30 September. At the time of writing this report the
consultation has not closed. (The consultation was subsequently extended by a week
after discussion with the Cabinet Member) A summary of school responses will be
circulated separately.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
7.1 The report has implications for the distribution of funding to maintained schools and
academies.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL, IT, STAFFING AND ASSETS
8.1 The Funding Formula distributes £181.4m to Wirral schools and academies. With a
fixed amount of funding for schools, changes to the formula will result in some schools
gaining additional resources, whilst others will have fewer. Transitional protection will
be provided both in the form of a cap on overall gains and the continuation of Minimum
Funding Guarantee. The impact of these changes had the new funding formula been in
place in 2013-14 is shown in the appendix attached.

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
9.1 The changes described in this report are consistent with those directed by the
Department for Education and are included in the Draft School Finance Regulations
2014 and additional grants conditions for the Dedicated Schools Grant.

10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) Yes and impact review can be found via the following link:

Page 92

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are none arising from this report.

12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
12.1 There are none arising from this report.

13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 Cabinet agree to proceed with the proposals described for the mainstream School
Funding Formula in 2014-15 taking account of the views of schools.

14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
14.1 To make changes to the Local Funding Formula in accordance with DfE timescales.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Andrew Roberts
Senior Manager – School Funding and Resources
Telephone: (0151) 666 4249
email: andrewroberts@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Comparison of School Funding Formula
REFERENCE MATERIAL
DfE School Funding Return: Findings from the Review of 2013-14 Arrangements and
Changes for 2014-15
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet
Proposals for Changes to the Local Funding Formula 18 October, 2012
for Schools
Schools Forum
DfE and Local Funding Formula Proposals
3 July, 2013
Schools Funding Formula
10 April, 2013
Mainstream School Funding Consultation and Funding 25 September, 2012
Pupils with High Needs
Consultation Papers – changes to the Local Funding 3 July, 2012
Formula and Funding High Needs Pupils
Analysis from consultation on School Funding Return

Page 93

28 March, 2012

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94







$//

81,79$/8(35,

81,79$/8(6(&













 6DQGEURRN3ULPDU\

 *UHHQOHDV3ULPDU\

 /LQJKDP3ULPDU\

 6WDQWRQ5RDG3ULPDU\

 %URRNKXUVW3ULPDU\





 &KXUFK'ULYH3ULPDU\

 /HDVRZH3ULPDU\









 :RRGFKXUFK5RDG3ULPDU\

 &DWKFDUW6WUHHW3ULPDU\

 7KLQJZDOO3ULPDU\



 :HOO/DQH3ULPDU\



 5RFN)HUU\3ULPDU\



 0DQRU3ULPDU\

 2YHUFKXUFK,QIDQWV







 )HQGHU3ULPDU\

 0HUVH\3DUN3ULPDU\



 3RUWODQG3ULPDU\

 +HVZDOO3ULPDU\





 *D\WRQ3ULPDU\

 (JUHPRQW3ULPDU\





 *UHDW0HROV3ULPDU\

 %ODFN+RUVH+LOO-XQLRU





 %DUQVWRQ3ULPDU\

 3RXOWRQ/DQFHO\Q3ULPDU\





 %URRNGDOH3ULPDU\

 %ODFN+RUVH+LOO,QIDQWV





 ,UE\3ULPDU\

 *UHDVE\-XQLRU





 :HVW.LUE\3ULPDU\

 *UHDVE\,QIDQWV





 0HQGHOO3ULPDU\

 %UDFNHQZRRG,QIDQWV



 7KRUQWRQ+RXJK3ULPDU\





 %UDFNHQZRRG-XQLRU

 5DHEXUQ3ULPDU\



 *URYH6WUHHW3ULPDU\







 7RZQ/DQH,QIDQW

 +LJKHU%HELQJWRQ-XQLRU

 :RRGVOHH3ULPDU\







 3DUN3ULPDU\

 &DVWOHZD\3ULPDU\



 .LQJVZD\3ULPDU\

 (DVWZD\3ULPDU\



 5LYHUVLGH3ULPDU\





































































































 /LVFDUG3ULPDU\

 6W*HRUJH V3ULPDU\











/$&IRUDW
OHDVWPRQWKV



 6RPHUYLOOH3ULPDU\





















































































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW











































































































 0LON











2ULJLQDO%XGJHW$OORFDWLRQ















 1HZ%ULJKWRQ3ULPDU\

 0RXQW3ULPDU\



 'HYRQVKLUH3DUN3ULPDU\



 %LGVWRQ9LOODJH&(3ULPDU\

 :RRGODQGV3ULPDU\



 ($/
\HDU



 %HGIRUG'ULYH3ULPDU\

'I( 6FKRRO



35,0$5<

6(&21'$5<

6&+22/)81',1*)2508/$&2168/7$7,21&+$1*(6

Page 293
95










































































































 ($/
\HDUV



































































































































/$&DQ\
GD\LQODVW
PRQWKV





























































































































































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW











 'RXEOH/$&
OHVVWRSVOLFH
1HW 

5HYLVHG$OORFDWLRQZLWKFKDQJHV





  



  











































































































 0LON














































































































































































































 'RXEOH/$&
OHVVWRSVOLFH
1HW 










































































































/$&















 ($/
























































































































 0LON





























































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW

'LIIHUHQFHLQ%XGJHW$OORFDWLRQ











































































































 727$/

$SSHQGL[





 2XU/DG\RI3LW\&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 /DG\PRXQW&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 0LOOILHOGV&(3ULPDU\









 0RVVODQGV6FKRRO

 2OGHUVKDZ6FKRRO





 :LUUDO*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU%R\V































































































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW





















































































































 0LON





















































































































 ($/
\HDUV





















































































































/$&DQ\
GD\LQODVW
PRQWKV






















































































































































































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW











 'RXEOH/$&
OHVVWRSVOLFH
1HW 

5HYLVHG$OORFDWLRQZLWKFKDQJHV





















































































































 0LON

'RXEOH/$& 1HW VKRZVWKHQHWJDLQRUORVVLIWKH/$&UDWHZDVGRXEOHG7RIXQGWKLVH[WUDDOORFDWLRQHDFKHOHPHQWZRXOGEHWRSVOLFHGWRIXQGWKHH[WUD UHVXOWLQJLQDUHGXFWLRQRIDOORFDWLRQLQRWKHUHOHPHQWV

127(6

 8SWRQ+DOO6FKRRO





 &DOGD\*UDQJH*UDPPDU6FKRRO









 6W$QVHOP V&ROOHJH



















 8QLYHUVLW\$FDGHP\RI%LUNHQKHDG

 6W0DU\ V5&&ROOHJH

 6W-RKQ3OHVVLQJWRQ&DWKROLF&ROOHJH

 :DOODVH\6FKRRO

 6RXWK:LUUDO+LJK6FKRRO

 %HELQJWRQ+LJK6FKRRO





 +LOEUH+LJK6FKRRO

 :HDWKHUKHDG6FKRRO





 3HQVE\+LJK6FKRROIRU*LUOV









 3HQVE\+LJK6FKRROIRU%R\V





























































 :HVW.LUE\*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU*LUOV





 5LGJHZD\+LJK6FKRRO

 :LUUDO*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU*LUOV









 :RRGFKXUFK+LJK6FKRRO

 3UHQWRQ+LJK6FKRROIRU*LUOV

 3HQVE\3ULPDU\





 3UHQWRQ3ULPDU\

 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ % KHDG



 6W0LFKDHO $OO$QJHOV&DWKROLF3ULPDU\





 6W$QQH V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W:HUEXUJK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\





 2XU/DG\DQG6W(GZDUG V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 +RO\&URVV&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 7KH3ULRU\3DULVK&(3ULPDU\





 +RO\6SLULW&DWKROLF &(3ULPDU\



 6W-RKQ V&DWKROLF,QIDQW



 6W-RKQ V&DWKROLF-XQLRU





 6W3HWHU V&($LGHG3ULPDU\ +HVZDOO

 &KULVWWKH.LQJ&DWKROLF3ULPDU\



 'DZSRRO&(3ULPDU\





 6W$QGUHZ V&(3ULPDU\

 &KULVWFKXUFK&(3ULPDU\ 0RUHWRQ



 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ :DOODVH\





 6W$OEDQ V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6DFUHG+HDUW&DWKROLF3ULPDU\





 6V3HWHUDQG3DXO&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W3DXO V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\





 6W3HWHU V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ %LUNHQKHDG



























/$&IRUDW
OHDVWPRQWKV

2ULJLQDO%XGJHW$OORFDWLRQ



 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ 8SWRQ

 :RRGFKXUFK&($LGHG3ULPDU\

 6W6DYLRXU V&(3ULPDU\

 &KULVW&KXUFK&(3ULPDU\ %LUNHQKHDG





 6W%ULGJHW V&(3ULPDU\

 +R\ODNH+RO\7ULQLW\&(3ULPDU\



 +LOOVLGH3ULPDU\



 %LGVWRQ$YHQXH3ULPDU\





 +H\JDUWK3ULPDU\

 7RZQILHOG3ULPDU\



 ($/
\HDU

 2YHUFKXUFK-XQLRU

'I( 6FKRRO

Page
Page294
96
































































































































































































































































 'RXEOH/$&
OHVVWRSVOLFH
1HW 








































































/$&















 ($/





















































































































 6(13ULRU
$WWDLQPHQW

'LIIHUHQFHLQ%XGJHW$OORFDWLRQ





















































































































 0LON





















































































































 727$/









































 'HYRQVKLUH3DUN3ULPDU\

 1HZ%ULJKWRQ3ULPDU\

 0RXQW3ULPDU\

 /LVFDUG3ULPDU\

 6W*HRUJH V3ULPDU\

 5LYHUVLGH3ULPDU\

 .LQJVZD\3ULPDU\

 3DUN3ULPDU\

 6RPHUYLOOH3ULPDU\

 (DVWZD\3ULPDU\

 &DVWOHZD\3ULPDU\

 6DQGEURRN3ULPDU\

 *UHHQOHDV3ULPDU\

 /LQJKDP3ULPDU\

 6WDQWRQ5RDG3ULPDU\

























































































 +LJKHU%HELQJWRQ-XQLRU

 7RZQ/DQH,QIDQW

 *URYH6WUHHW3ULPDU\

 %UDFNHQZRRG-XQLRU

 7KRUQWRQ+RXJK3ULPDU\

 0HQGHOO3ULPDU\

 %URRNKXUVW3ULPDU\

 5DHEXUQ3ULPDU\

 %UDFNHQZRRG,QIDQWV

 *UHDVE\,QIDQWV

 :HVW.LUE\3ULPDU\

 ,UE\3ULPDU\

 *UHDVE\-XQLRU

 %ODFN+RUVH+LOO,QIDQWV

 %URRNGDOH3ULPDU\

 %DUQVWRQ3ULPDU\

 3RXOWRQ/DQFHO\Q3ULPDU\

 %ODFN+RUVH+LOO-XQLRU

 *UHDW0HROV3ULPDU\

 *D\WRQ3ULPDU\

 (JUHPRQW3ULPDU\

 3RUWODQG3ULPDU\

 +HVZDOO3ULPDU\

 )HQGHU3ULPDU\

 0DQRU3ULPDU\

 0HUVH\3DUN3ULPDU\

 2YHUFKXUFK,QIDQWV

 5RFN)HUU\3ULPDU\

 :RRGFKXUFK5RDG3ULPDU\

 &DWKFDUW6WUHHW3ULPDU\

 :HOO/DQH3ULPDU\

 7KLQJZDOO3ULPDU\

 &KXUFK'ULYH3ULPDU\

 /HDVRZH3ULPDU\


































































































































































































































 ),1$/
$//2&$7,21



'H'HOHJDWLRQ































 :RRGVOHH3ULPDU\



































 :RRGODQGV3ULPDU\

0)*&DS

 %LGVWRQ9LOODJH&(3ULPDU\

 1(:)2508/$
%8'*(7
$//2&$7,21







 




  



    

 %HGIRUG'ULYH3ULPDU\

'I( 6FKRRO

81,79$/8(6(&

81,79$/8(35,

$//

6(&21'$5<

35,0$5<

6&+22/)81',1*)2508/$&2168/7$7,21&+$1*(6

Page 295
97










































































































&+$1*(,1
),1$/
$//2&$7,21

$SSHQGL[





















































 %LGVWRQ$YHQXH3ULPDU\

 7RZQILHOG3ULPDU\

 +LOOVLGH3ULPDU\

 6W%ULGJHW V&(3ULPDU\

 +R\ODNH+RO\7ULQLW\&(3ULPDU\

 &KULVW&KXUFK&(3ULPDU\ %LUNHQKHDG

 6W6DYLRXU V&(3ULPDU\

 :RRGFKXUFK&($LGHG3ULPDU\

 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ 8SWRQ

 6W3HWHU V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ %LUNHQKHDG

 6W3DXO V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6V3HWHUDQG3DXO&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W$OEDQ V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ :DOODVH\

 6DFUHG+HDUW&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 &KULVWFKXUFK&(3ULPDU\ 0RUHWRQ

 6W$QGUHZ V&(3ULPDU\

 'DZSRRO&(3ULPDU\

 6W3HWHU V&($LGHG3ULPDU\ +HVZDOO

 6W-RKQ V&DWKROLF-XQLRU

 &KULVWWKH.LQJ&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W-RKQ V&DWKROLF,QIDQW

 +RO\6SLULW&DWKROLF &(3ULPDU\

 2XU/DG\RI3LW\&DWKROLF3ULPDU\


















































































































 /DG\PRXQW&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 7KH3ULRU\3DULVK&(3ULPDU\

 2XU/DG\DQG6W(GZDUG V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 +RO\&URVV&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W$QQH V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W0LFKDHO $OO$QJHOV&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W:HUEXUJK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\

 6W-RVHSK V&DWKROLF3ULPDU\ % KHDG

 3UHQWRQ3ULPDU\

 0LOOILHOGV&(3ULPDU\

 3HQVE\3ULPDU\

 3UHQWRQ+LJK6FKRROIRU*LUOV

 :RRGFKXUFK+LJK6FKRRO

 5LGJHZD\+LJK6FKRRO

 :LUUDO*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU*LUOV

 :HVW.LUE\*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU*LUOV

 3HQVE\+LJK6FKRROIRU%R\V

 3HQVE\+LJK6FKRROIRU*LUOV

 +LOEUH+LJK6FKRRO

 0RVVODQGV6FKRRO

 2OGHUVKDZ6FKRRO

 :HDWKHUKHDG6FKRRO

 %HELQJWRQ+LJK6FKRRO

 6RXWK:LUUDO+LJK6FKRRO

 :DOODVH\6FKRRO

 6W-RKQ3OHVVLQJWRQ&DWKROLF&ROOHJH

 6W0DU\ V5&&ROOHJH

 8QLYHUVLW\$FDGHP\RI%LUNHQKHDG

 &DOGD\*UDQJH*UDPPDU6FKRRO

 :LUUDO*UDPPDU6FKRROIRU%R\V

 6W$QVHOP V&ROOHJH

 8SWRQ+DOO6FKRRO























































































































































'RXEOH/$& 1HW VKRZVWKHQHWJDLQRUORVVLIWKH/$&UDWHZDVGRXEOHG7RIXQGWKLVH[WUDDOORFDWLRQHDFKHOHPHQWZRXOGEH

127(6























































































































 ),1$/
$//2&$7,21















'H'HOHJDWLRQ













0)*&DS

 +H\JDUWK3ULPDU\

 1(:)2508/$
%8'*(7
$//2&$7,21

 2YHUFKXUFK-XQLRU

'I( 6FKRRO

Page
Page296
98




















































































































&+$1*(,1
),1$/
$//2&$7,21

Page 297
99



















0(7+2'2/2*<
2&7
(,%
3/$&(6
383,/
 
























 
 
 
 

 
 
 

127(6
2FWREHU(,%SXSLOVLQFOXGHVRQO\VWDWHPHQWHGSXSLOVIURP2FWREHU6FKRRO&HQVXV
8QLWYDOXHSHUSXSLOFDOFXODWHGIURPIRUPXODDOORFDWLRQOHVVUDWHVDQGOXPSVXPGLYLGHGE\WKHDGMXVWHGSXSLOVRQUROO

')(

 
 
 

0(7+2'2/2*<
2&7(,% (,%
383,/6
383,/
1$0(
%LGVWRQ9LOODJH&(3ULPDU\6FKRRO


'HYRQVKLUH3DUN3ULPDU\6FKRRO


1HZ%ULJKWRQ3ULPDU\6FKRRO


5LYHUVLGH3ULPDU\6FKRRO


(DVWZD\3ULPDU\6FKRRO


:RRGVOHH3ULPDU\6FKRRO


)HQGHU3ULPDU\6FKRRO


5RFN)HUU\3ULPDU\6FKRRO


7RZQILHOG3ULPDU\6FKRRO


7KH3ULRU\3DULVK&(3ULPDU\6FKRRO


6W0LFKDHO $OO$QJHOV&DWKROLF3ULPDU\6FKRRO


:RRGFKXUFK+LJK6FKRRO


+LOEUH+LJK6FKRRO


2OGHUVKDZ6FKRRO


%HELQJWRQ+LJK6FKRRO
 
:DOODVH\6FKRRO
 
8QLYHUVLW\$FDGHP\RI%LUNHQKHDG
 

35,0$5<
6(&21'$5<
727$/

6&+22/6)2508/$$//2&$7,21:,7+5(9,6('+,*+1(('6)81',1*

',))(5(1&(






















This page is intentionally left blank

Page 298
100

Agenda Item 15

School and early
years finance
Summary of proposed changes to
regulations and conditions of grant for
2014-15
August 2013

Page 101

Proposed changes to school and early years
finance regulations
Changes that were not included in the 2014-15 announcement and operational
information are in italics, with a brief explanation of the policy. For an explanation of the
policy for the other changes, please refer to the documents published on 4 June.
Regulation 3 includes an amendment to the Order that transfers responsibility for
school meals to schools to make it clear that this transfer applies to schools whether or
not the local authority provides a specific amount of funding to the school for lunches.
This is a clarification of existing policy. Schools already fund lunches from their
mainstream budgets rather than a specific grant.
Regulation 4 includes an amendment to the Schools Forums (England) Regulations
2012 to require the election of a representative of providers of 16 to 19 education to the
schools forum, and to remove the inclusion of a representative of the local authority’s
14 to 19 partnership on the forum. We are proposing that eligible institutions should be
those in the FE sector (FE and sixth form colleges) and other institutions that specialise
in SEN and LDD provision (ISPs), where 20% or more of their students reside in the
authority’s area.
Regulation 6 and regulation 12 require local authorities to make an initial
determination of their 2014-15 schools budget, individual schools budget and the
amount of each school’s budget share by 28th February 2014 (except in relation to
special schools, pupil referral units, etc). In the previous regulations the date for doing
so was 15th March. The date for informing schools of their budget shares also moves
from 15th March to 28th February.
Another change is that the determination of amounts included in budget shares in
relation to sixth form funding is excluded from these determinations. Sixth form funding
calculations will have to be done within a reasonable period after the Secretary of State
has informed the authority of the allocation of Sixth Form Grant.
Under regulation 12(7) the deadline for informing special schools and pupil referral
units of their budgets moves from 15th March to 31st March.
Regulation 9(7) requires local authorities to put any unspent money from the 2013-14
growth and infant class size funds into the 2014-15 individual schools budget, so that it
is recycled to schools.
Regulation 9(8) allows local authorities to carry over to 2014-15 unspent de-delegated
central expenditure to be used for the same purpose as it was used in 2013-14. In
other words, it can be used for de-delegated services without having to allocate
through the formula again. This responds to representations that money that
maintained schools de-delegate should continue to be available for the use of
maintained schools.
Regulation 12(3) has been amended to require local authorities, in identifying funding
for SEN pupils in individual primary and secondary school budgets (the notional SEN
budget), to calculate that sum with reference to a threshold of £6,000. Schools are
expected to meet the costs of the additional support required by pupils with SEN up to
that cost threshold.
Regulation 12(8) prevents local authorities from redetermining a school’s or early
years provider’s 2014-15 budget once it has been set, except in specific

Page 102

circumstances. This provision was introduced for 2013-14 but there has been some
confusion about it so we are clarifying the position.
The definition of “pupils” for regulation 14 and elsewhere (other than regulation 17
on early years) has been amended to clarify that pupils only count if they are single
registered or dual main registered at the school.
Regulation 14(2)(a) provides that SEN places, whether filled or unfilled, do not count
towards a school’s pupil numbers for the purpose of calculating its budget through the
mainstream local funding formula. For 2013-14 the regulation provided that pupils in
SEN places did not count. The change is to avoid double funding.
Regulation 14(5) provides that the basic per pupil amount (the age-weighted pupil
unit) in a local authority’s formula must be at least £2000 for primary and £3000 for
secondary pupils.
Regulation 15 has been amended to ensure that, for maintained special schools, the
separate calculation of funding for sixth form places ceases with effect from 1st August
2014, and all places (including sixth form places) other than hospital education places
will then attract £10,000 per annum.
We would welcome specific comments on the change to regulation 15 as we did not
consult on this policy change earlier in the year. The intention is that special schools will
receive the flat rate £10,000 for all their places, including sixth form places for students
aged 16-19, other than hospital education places. In the academic year from August 2013
to July 2014 special schools are receiving their place-led funding for the 16-19 year olds
through the sixth form grant calculation which allocates an amount derived from the
national funding formula for this age group plus £6,000 for identified high needs places.
This will normally provide an amount in excess of £11,000.
The change to a flat rate £10,000 for all pre- and post-16 places will take effect from 1st
August 2014. The regulations will apply this to maintained special schools. The Education
Funding Agency (EFA) will also apply this to the funding of special academies and free
schools and of non-maintained special schools. We will keep under review whether to
extend this to other specialist post-16 places in future.
The EFA will make appropriate adjustments to local authorities’ dedicated schools grant
(DSG) allocations. The difference between £10,000 and the sixth form grant for the year
beginning August 2013 will be added to the DSG allocations in proportion to the number
of such sixth form pupils identified in the October 2013 school census, who live in the
local authority area.
Regulation 17 (regulation 16 in the previous School Finance Regulations) has been
expanded to include exempt early education providers. This reflects the revised Early
Education and Childcare: Statutory Guidance to Local Authorities, which comes into
effect in September 2013. Section A4 of this guidance makes clear that LAs should fund
providers who have exemptions from the Early Years Foundation Stage Learning and
Development requirements if a parent wants their child to attend that provider. The
change to the draft finance regulations allows this funding to count as part of the
individual schools budget.
Regulation 17(6) enables LAs to vary funding paid to providers of funded early education
if the number of children admitted by a provider is in excess of any number agreed by the
LA. This provision, by potentially reducing the funding paid for some children, risks
constraining parental choice about where to access their funded early education. We are
minded to remove this provision, which we have placed in square brackets, but would
welcome views on whether this provision is still needed and appropriate.

Page 103

Regulation 19(7) excludes schools that opened in the previous seven financial years and
are still adding year groups from the capping of budgets under regulation 19(4) to pay for
the minimum funding guarantee. This is because the capping of budgets for schools in
such circumstances on a per pupil basis can produce distorting effects.
Regulation 24 requires that where two or more schools merge in 2013-14, the local
authority should pay the merged school a lump sum equal to 85% of the two lump sums
that the schools would have received in 2014-15 if they had not merged. Local authorities
can apply to the Secretary of State to adjust the lump sum in more complex situations
where schools have in effect replaced others.
Regulation 25(8) provides that the sum to be determined for an excluded pupil in a sixth
form is £4,000 on an annual basis. This sum has been brought into line with the base
funding for a full-time pupil in the academic year 2013/14.
Schedule 2, paragraph 8 allows local authorities to retain a falling rolls fund for good or
outstanding schools (including academies) if the schools’ capacity is likely to be needed
within the next three years to meet rising pupil numbers. 6
Schedule 2, paragraph 11: the previous provision allowing local authorities to retain
funding for CRC allowances for schools centrally has been deleted since schools will be
excluded from the CRC scheme with effect from 1 April 2014. It has been replaced with a
provision allowing authorities to retain funding for licences purchased centrally by the
Secretary of State, following the introduction of the new Copyright Licensing Agency and
Music Publishers Association licences in 2013-14.
Schedule 3, paragraphs 1 and 2 allow local authorities to set a lump sum of up to
£175,000 and set a different lump sum for primary and secondary schools. For 2013-14
the lump sum limit was £200,000 and had to be the same for primary and secondary
schools.
Schedule 3, paragraph 3 has been amended to reflect the use of data from the new
early years foundation stage profile in deciding whether a pupil attracts prior attainment
funding.
Schedule 3, paragraph 4 allows pupils who did not achieve level 4 in mathematics or
English to attract prior attainment funding. In 2013-14 the policy was that only those who
did not achieve a level 4 in both English and mathematics attracted the funding.
Schedule 3, paragraphs 7 and 8 provides that the allocation of funding through the
mobility factors applies where more than 10% of pupils in a school are mobile. For 201314 the factors applied where a school had any number of mobile pupils.
Schedule 3, paragraph 9 provides that pupils who were being looked after on 31st March
2013, regardless of how long they had been looked after, can attract funding through the
looked after children factor. In 2013-14 local authorities had a choice of whether to apply
the factor to those who had been looked after for at least a day, at least six months or at
least 12 months.
Schedule 3, paragraphs 14 and 15 provides for the new sparsity factor. Details are set
out in the operational information.

Page 104

Proposed changes to the conditions of grant
New condition (c) requires local authorities to allocate at least 80% of funding through
pupil-led factors.
New condition (d) allows local authorities to cap or scale school budgets only to the
extent that is required to fund the minimum funding guarantee. The purpose of this is to
make the operation of both the formula and the MFG more transparent, so that schools
know what they would have received without the operation of the MFG.
Conditions (g) and (h) relating to the operation of top-up funding for high needs pupils
have been updated. 8

2014-15 DSG: additional conditions of grant
(a) the authority must maintain a single formula for funding both maintained schools and
Academies in its area;
(b) in constructing the formula, the authority must take account of the circumstances of all
Academies and maintained schools in its area;
(c) the formula must allocate at least 80% of funding through pupil-led factors (single per
pupil amount, social deprivation, prior attainment, English as an additional language,
pupil mobility, looked after children, differential salaries of teachers near London);
(d) any limiting or scaling back of the funding of schools and Academies that gain from
the formula must not exceed in total the cost of funding the minimum funding guarantee
for schools and Academies entitled to the MFG;
(e) in using funding held centrally within DSG, other than funding that has been dedelegated by maintained schools, the authority must treat maintained schools and
Academies to which recoupment applies on an equivalent basis;
(f) in making arrangements for funding young people with high needs, the authority must
treat those placed in maintained provision, in Academies and Free Schools, in the FE
sector, and in non-maintained and independent provision on a fair and equivalent basis;
(g) in deciding on top-up funding rates for the pupils it will place in special schools
maintained by the Authority and Special Academies formerly maintained by the authority,
the authority must ensure that the rates for each school are set no lower than at such a
rate or rates that, if all the pupils in the school or Academy were placed by the authority,
and the total number and type of places remained the same in the two financial years, the
school or Academy’s budget would reduce by no more than 1.5% in cash between 201314 and 2014-15;
(h) when a pupil who requires top-up funding has already been placed in an institution
and is in receipt of top-up funding from the authority at 31 March 2014, the authority must
continue the agreement with the institution to make such top-up payments until such time
as the pupil has left the institution, or the contract is replaced by another. When such a
pupil is placed by the authority in an institution at a later date, the authority must likewise
enter into such an agreement;
(i) when making top-up payments to institutions for high needs pupils, the authority must
make the payments in a timely fashion on a basis agreed with the institution, which must
be monthly unless otherwise agreed.

Page 105

© Crown copyright 2013
You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or
medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence or email
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.
Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.
Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at
www.education.gov.uk/contactus.
This document is available for download at www.gov.uk/government/consultations

Page 106

Agenda Item 16

Schools Forums:
operational and good
practice guide
For local authorities and members of
Schools Forums

October 2013

Page 107

Contents
Executive summary

3

Introduction

9

Section 1 – Schools Forum Regulations: Constitution and Procedural Issues

10

Regulations

10

Schools Forum powers

10

Membership

11

Term of office

12

Schools members

13

Election and nomination of schools members

14

Election and nomination of academies members

15

Non-schools members

16

Other membership issues

17

The role of executive elected members

17

Recording the composition of Schools Forums

18

Observers

18

Participation of local authority officers at meetings

18

Procedures

18

Public access

20

Working groups

20

Urgent business

20

Resources of the Schools Forum

21

Section 2 – Effective Schools Forums

22

Introduction

22

Induction of new members

23
1

Page 108

Training

23

Agenda setting

23

Preparation for a Schools Forum meeting

24

Chairing the Schools Forum

25

Clerking the Schools Forum

25

Good practice for Schools Forum meetings

26

Meeting notes and recording of decisions

27

Communication

27

News updates

28

2

Page 109

Page 110

Within each of the five groups above there
are the following types of member:-

Type of member

3

In overall terms there must be at least one
headteacher (or their representative) and
one governor

·
·

Headteachers (or their
representative)
Governors
Headteachers and Governors

Where the LA maintains the following types
of school, they must be represented on the
Schools Forum:· Secondary Schools
· Special Schools
· Nursery Schools
· PRUs
There is no specific requirement in
Regulations for a primary rep, but this is
captured by requiring membership to be
based on pupil proportions

Represented groups

·

Schools Members

Category

Any

No specific groups, but
academies members will
represent academies, free
schools, UTCs and Studio
Schools

Academies Members

TABLE 1: SCHOOLS FORUM STRUCTURE

Any

Before considering other
groups, the LA must
consider diocesan
representation

Early years Private,
Voluntary and Independent
(PVI) providers

16-19 providers

Non-School Members

The two tables in this section are provided as a summary of the structure of Schools Forums and the decision making powers of the local
authority (LA) and the Schools Forum according to Regulations.

Executive summary

Page 111

Only PVI representatives
can vote on the consultation
on the funding formula.

All academies members can
vote on any other Schools
Forum business, including the
consultation on the funding
formula

Election only applies to the
representative for the 16-19
providers, who is elected by
all 16-19 providers 1

All non-school members can
vote on any other Schools
Forum business

No voting on de-delegation

No voting on de-delegation

The relevant sub-group of the relevant type Proprietors of academies
of school e.g. primary school governor
representatives are elected by the
governors of primary schools, secondary
school headteachers are elected by the

All schools members can vote on any other
Schools Forum business, including the
consultation on the funding formula

Only secondary representatives can vote
on secondary school de-delegation

Only primary representatives can vote on
primary school de-delegation

Non-School Members

4

This is a change proposed in the draft 2013 School and Early Years Finance Regulations, expected to come into force in January 2014. Further information on the
representative for 16-19 providers can be found in paragraph 1.38

1

Elected by

Voting

Primary schools, secondary schools and academies must be broadly
proportionately represented on Schools Forum, based on the total number of
pupils registered at them

Schools members and academies members must comprise at least 2/3rds of
the Schools Forum membership

Schools Forum
Structure

Academies Members

Schools Members

Category

Page 112
5

Presenters (restricted to the paper they are
presenting)

The Executive Member for Children’s Services

The Executive Member with responsibility
for resources

Officers providing financial & technical advice to
Schools Forum

The Director of Children’s Services

For all other non-schools
members the LA appoints,
but it is good practice to
seek nominations from the
relevant bodies

Can appoint a 16-19
representative only if no
election takes place by the
agreed date or in the event
of a tie

Non-School Members

The Chief Financial Officer

Only if no election takes place
by the agreed date or in the
event of a tie

Academies Members

An observer appointed by the Secretary of State

Only if no election takes place by the
agreed date or in the event of a tie

LA appointment of
members

Other attendees who
are permitted to
contribute to a Schools
Forum meeting

Schools Members

Category

headteachers of secondary schools.

Page 113

Minimum funding guarantee (MFG)

Financial issues relating to:
arrangements for pupils with special educational
needs;
arrangements for use of pupil referral units and
the education of children otherwise than at
school;
arrangements for early years provision;
administration arrangements for the allocation
of central government grants

Contracts

Proposes and decides

Formula change (including redistributions)

6

Proposes any exclusions from
MFG for application to DfE

Consult annually

Propose at least one month
prior to invitation to tender, the
terms of any proposed contract

Local Authority

Function

DfE Role

Gives a view

Gives a view and informs
the governing bodies of
all consultations

Gives a view and informs
the governing bodies of
all consultations

Approval

None

None

Must be consulted
None
[Voting restrictions in
table 1 above] and
informs the governing
bodies of all consultations

Schools Forum

TABLE 2 - SCHOOLS FORUMS: POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 2014-15

Page 114

Central spend on:
funding for significant pre-16 pupil growth
equal pay back-pay
places in independent schools for non-SEN
pupils
early years expenditure

growth fund (to meet requirements for basic need
and infant class size regulations)
falling rolls fund for surplus places in good or
outstanding schools where a population bulge
is expected in 2-3 years

Central spend on and the criteria for allocating
funding from:

De-delegation for mainstream schools for:
contingencies
administration of free school meals
insurance
licences/subscriptions
staff costs - supply cover
support for minority ethnic pupils/underachieving
groups
behaviour support services
library and museum services

Function

Proposes

Proposes

Proposes

7

Local Authority

Decides

Decides

Primary and secondary
school member
representatives will
decide for their phase

Schools Forum

Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

Will adjudicate where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

DfE Role

Page 115
Decides
None

Facilitates

Scheme of financial management changes

Membership: length of office of members

Voting procedures

Chair of Schools Forum

8

Approves

Proposes and consults the
governing body and Head of
every School

None (but good practice
would suggest that they
gave a view)
Determine voting
procedures
Elects
(may not be an elected
member of the Council or
officer)

Decides

Proposes

Carry forward a deficit on central expenditure to the
next year to be funded from the schools budget

Decides for each line

Decides for each line

Proposes up to the value
committed in 2013/14 and
where expenditure has already
been committed.

Proposes up to the value
committed in 2013-14

Central spend on:
admissions
servicing of schools forum

Schools Forum

Central spend on:
capital expenditure funded from revenue
contribution to combined budgets
schools budget centrally funded termination of
employment costs
schools budget funded prudential borrowing
costs
special education needs transport costs

Local Authority

Function

None

None

None

Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal
Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

Adjudicates where
Schools Forum does
not agree LA proposal

DfE Role

Introduction
1.

This guide is designed to provide members of Schools Forums, local authority
officers and elected members with advice and information on good practice in
relation to the operation of Schools Forums.

2.

It is organised in two sections:
·
·

Section 1 provides information on the constitutional and organisational
requirements for Schools Forums; and
Section 2 covers a number of key aspects of the operation of Schools
Forums at local level, drawing on good practice from a number of Schools
Forums.

3.

The guide draws on the experience and knowledge of Schools Forum members,
local authority members and officers and the Department and its partners. Other
than where it is describing requirements set out in the Schools Forum Regulations
2012 it is not designed to be prescriptive – what is good practice in one Schools
Forum may not be appropriate in another, given the diverse circumstances of local
areas. However, it is hoped the guide will stimulate some debate within Schools
Forums and contribute to their ongoing development.

4.

The Department hopes that Schools Forums and local authorities find this guide
useful. It has been the subject of consultation with a wide variety of external
partners. In particular, members of the Department’s Schools and Academies
Funding Group, made up of representatives from central and local government,
teaching associations, unions representing support staff as well as organisations
representing academies and governors, have provided valuable input and advice
on the content of the guide. The Department is grateful for their assistance.

5.

The Department’s website contains details of all the announcements, documents
and other information relating to school funding and Schools Forums. This website
also has a range of useful links to other sites that may be of relevance to Schools
Forum members.

6.

The main school funding page on the DfE website has links to the latest news and
information on schools funding. There are also dedicated Schools Forums pages
and a Quick guide to Schools Forums.

7.

If you have any queries about the operation of Schools Forums please contact the
Education Funding Agency: reformteam.funding@education.gsi.gov.uk.
The postal address of the agency is:
Education Funding Agency
Department for Education
Sanctuary Buildings
Great Smith Street
London SW1P 3BT

9

Page 116

Section 1 – Schools Forum Regulations: Constitution
and Procedural Issues
Regulations
1.1.

National regulations2 govern the composition, constitution and procedures of
Schools Forums. Local authorities can provide Schools Forum members with a
copy of these regulations or alternatively they are available from the Department’s
website.

1.2.

A Quick guide to Schools Forums for schools and academies is also available on
the department’s website. This explains the role of Schools Forums and the
responsibilities of schools and academies.

Schools Forum powers
1.3.

2

Schools Forums generally have a consultative role. However, there are situations
in which they have decision-making powers. The respective roles of Schools
Forums, local authorities and the DfE are summarised in Table 1 on pages 3-5.
The overarching areas on which Schools Forums make decisions on local
authority proposals are:
·

De-delegation from mainstream schools budgets (separate approval will be
required by the primary and secondary phase members of Schools Forum),
for prescribed services to be provided centrally.

·

To create a fund for significant pupil growth in order to support the local
authority’s duty for place planning (basic need) and agree the criteria for
maintained schools and academies to access this fund.

·

To create a fund for falling rolls for good or outstanding schools if the
schools’ surplus capacity is likely to be needed within the next three years to
meet rising pupil numbers and agree the criteria for maintained schools and
academies to access this fund.

·

Continued funding at existing levels for prescribed historic commitments
where the effect of delegating this funding would be destabilising.

·

Funding for the local authority in order to meet prescribed statutory duties
placed upon it. Approval is required to confirm the amounts for each duty and
no new commitments or increases in expenditure from 2013/14 are permitted
unless agreed by the Secretary of State.

·

Funding for central early years expenditure, which may include funding for
checking eligibility of pupils for an early years place and/or free school meals.

Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2012 (S.I. 2012/2261)

10 117
Page

·

Authorising a reduction in the schools budget in order to fund a deficit arising
in central expenditure that is to be carried forward from a previous funding
period.

In each of these cases, the local authority can appeal to the DfE if the Schools
Forum rejects its proposal.
1.4.

Local Authorities should be aware that the provisions of the Local Government Act
2000 restrict the delegation of local authority decisions to Cabinet, a member of
Cabinet, a Committee of Cabinet or an officer of the Council, which would not
include Schools Forums. As a result the local authority cannot delegate its
decision making powers to Schools Forum, e.g. decisions on the funding formula.

1.5.

Regulations state that the local authority must consult the Schools Forum annually
in connection with various schools budget functions, namely:
·
·
·
·
·

amendments to the school funding formula, for which the voting is restricted
by the exclusion of non-schools members except for PVI representatives
arrangements for the education of pupils with special educational needs
arrangements for the use of pupil referral units and the education of children
otherwise than at school
arrangements for early years provision
administrative arrangements for the allocation of central government grants
paid to schools via the local authority

1.6.

Consultation must also take place when a local authority is proposing a contract
for supplies and services which is to be funded from the Schools Budget and is in
excess of the EU procurement thresholds. The consultation must cover the terms
of the contract at least one month prior to the issue of invitations to tender.

1.7.

The Schools Forum has the responsibility of informing the governing bodies of all
schools maintained by the local authority of the results of any consultations carried
out by the local authority relating to the issues in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6.

1.8.

For 2014-15, local authorities will need to discuss with the Schools Forum any
proposals to:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

vary the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG)
use exceptional factors
vary pupil numbers
allow additional categories of, or spending on, central budgets
amend the sparsity factor
vary the lump sum for amalgamating schools
vary the protection for special schools and special academies
Proposals will need to be approved by the Secretary of State.

Membership
1.9.

The Regulations provide a framework for the appointment of members, but allow a
considerable degree of discretion in order to accommodate local priorities and
practice.

Page11118

1.10. There is no maximum or minimum size of a Schools Forum. Authorities will wish to
take various issues into account in deciding the actual size, including the need to
have full representation for various types of school, and the local authority’s policy
on representation of non-schools members. However, care should be taken to
keep the Schools Forum to a reasonable size to ensure that it does not become
too unwieldy.
1.11. Types of member: Schools Forums must have 'schools members' (para 1.161.32), ‘academies member(s)’ if there is at least one academy in the local
authority’s area (para 1.33-1.37) and 'non-schools members' (para 1.38-1.42).
Schools and academies members together must number at least two-thirds of the
total membership of the Schools Forum and the balance between maintained
primary, maintained secondary and academies members must be broadly
proportionate to the pupil numbers in each category, so the structure of Forum
should be regularly reviewed, e.g. annually. There is no requirement for
academies members to represent specific phases, but it may be encouraged to
ensure representation remains broadly proportionate to pupil numbers.
1.12. Schools Forum members will need the skills and competencies to manage Forum
business (as detailed in Table 2 on pages 6-8) and to take a strategic view across
the whole education estate whilst acting as representative of the group that has
elected them. Furthermore, they should be easily contactable and pro-active in
raising the profile of issues and communicate decisions, and the reasons behind
them, effectively

Term of office
1.13. The term of office for each schools member and academies member should be
stipulated by the local authority at the time of appointment. Such stipulation should
follow published rules and be applied in a consistent manner as between
members. They need not have identical terms – there may be a case for varied
terms so that there is continuity of experience rather than there being a complete
change in the membership at a single point. The term of office should not be of a
length that would hinder the requirement for the structure of Schools Forum to
mirror the type of provision in light of the pace of academy conversions. Examples
of how this may work include:·
·

·

Holding vacancies until the Schools Forum structure is reviewed providing
that this does not mean holding vacancies for an unreasonable length of time
Increasing the size of Schools Forum temporarily to appoint additional
academy members, then delete schools member posts at the end of a term
of office or when a vacancy arises
Consider continuity of service – where an academy conversion affects the
school of a current schools member, would academies consider appointing
that person as an academies member?

1.14. The length of term of office for non-schools members is at the discretion of the
local authority. Schools and academies must be informed, within a month of the
appointment of any non-schools member, of the name of the member and the
name of the body that that member represents.
12 119
Page

1.15. As well as the term of office coming to an end, a member ceases to be a member
of the Schools Forum if he or she resigns from the Schools Forum or no longer
occupies the office by which he or she became eligible for election, selection or
appointment to the Schools Forum. For example, a secondary schools member
must stand down if their school converts to an academy. A schools member
representing community primary school governors who is no longer a governor of
a community primary school in the relevant local authority must cease to hold
office on the Schools Forum even if they remain a governor of a school
represented by another group or sub-group. Other situations in which membership
of the Schools Forum ends are if a member gives notice in writing to the local
authority and, in the case of a non-schools member, the member is replaced by
the local authority, for example at the request of the body which the member
represents.

Schools members
1.16. Schools members represent specified phases or types of maintained schools
within the local authority. As a minimum, Schools Forums must contain
representatives of two groups of schools: primary and secondary schools, unless
there are no primary or secondary schools maintained by the LA. Middle schools
and all through schools are treated according to their deemed status.
1.17. Where a local authority maintains one or more special schools the Schools Forum
must have at least one schools member from that sector. The same applies to
nursery schools and pupil referral units (PRUs).
1.18. The local authority then has discretion to divide the groups referred to in
paragraph 1.16 and 1.17 into one or more of the following sub-groups–
·
·
·
·

headteachers or headteachers’ representatives in each group:
governors in each group;
headteachers or headteachers representatives and governors in each group;
representatives of the particular school category.

1.19. Headteachers can be represented by other senior members of staff within their
school. Governors can include interim executive members of an interim executive
board. The sub-groups do not have to be of equal size – for example, there may
be more representatives of headteachers of primary schools than governors of
such schools, or vice versa. The membership structure of Schools Forum should
ensure there is sufficient representation of each type of schools member in each
group to ensure that debate within the Schools Forum is balanced and
representative. As a minimum, there must be at least one representative of
headteachers and one representative of governors among the schools’ members.
1.20. Whatever the membership structure of schools members on a Schools Forum, the
important issue is that it should reflect most effectively the profile of education
provision across the local authority to ensure that there is not an in-built bias
towards any one phase or group.

Page13120

Election and nomination of schools members
1.21. The relevant group or sub-group is probably best placed to determine how their
schools members should be elected.
1.22. It is good practice for those who draw up the scheme to ensure that a vacancy
amongst a represented group would be filled by a nominee elected according to a
process that has been determined by all those represented in that group, e.g.
community primary school headteachers, or secondary school governors, ensuring
that everyone represented has had the opportunity to stand for election and/or
vote in such an election.
1.23. It is not appropriate for a single person to be elected to represent more than one
group or sub-group concurrently, i.e. if they were a governor at a primary and
secondary school. They can stand for election from either group but can be
appointed to represent only one of those groups.
1.24. The purpose of ensuring that each group or sub-group is responsible for their
election process is to guarantee that there is a transparent and representative
process by which members of Schools Forums are nominated to represent their
constituents.
1.25. Appropriate support to each group or sub-group to manage their election
processes should be offered by the clerk of a Schools Forum, or the
committee/democratic services of a local authority. This may just include the
provision of advice but may also consist of providing administrative support in
actually running the elections themselves.
1.26. As a minimum, we would recommend that the clerk of a Schools Forum make a
record of the process by which the relevant schools within each group and subgroup elect their nominees to the Schools Forum and be able to advise the Chair
of the Schools Forum and local authority on action that needs to be taken, where
necessary, to seek new nominees.
1.27. In determining the process by which elections should be operated it is perfectly
legitimate for a local authority to devise, in consultation with their Schools Forum,
a model scheme for the relevant schools within a group or sub-group to consider
and be invited to adopt. However, such a model scheme cannot be imposed on
that body of schools: adaptations and/or alternative schemes may be adopted. A
single scheme need not be adopted universally.
1.28. Care should be taken to ensure that every eligible member of a group or subgroup has an opportunity to be involved in the determination of their group’s
election process, is given the opportunity to stand for election if they choose to do
so, and is involved in the election of their representative(s).
1.29. It would not be compliant with the Regulations for the steering committee or Chair
of a ‘parent’ group simply to make a nomination to represent their group or subgroup on a Schools Forum. Schools members must be elected, subject to
paragraph 1.30 below.

14 121
Page

1.30. The local authority may set a date by which the election should take place and
must appoint the schools member if the election has not taken place by that date.
The person appointed should be a member of the relevant group.
1.31. We would recommend that any scheme takes into account a number of factors:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

the process for collecting names of those wishing to stand for election;
the timescale for notifying all constituents of the election and those
standing;
the arrangements for dispatching and receiving ballots;
the arrangements for counting and publicising the results;
any arrangements for unusual circumstances such as only one candidate
standing in an election; and
whether existing members can stand for re-election.

1.32. In the event of a tie between two or more candidates, then the local authority must
appoint the schools member instead. The local authority may decide to appoint
someone else rather than one of the candidates and might wish to take into
account the experience or expertise of the individuals, and the balance between
the different types of school represented on the Schools Forum.

Election and nomination of academies members
1.33. Academies members must be elected by the proprietor bodies of the academies in
the local authority’s area, and they are probably best placed to determine the
process. Academies members are there to represent the proprietor bodies of
academies and are, therefore, not necessarily restricted to principals, senior staff
or governors. The same factors should be taken into account as for the election of
schools members, set out in paragraphs 1.21 to 1.32. For the avoidance of doubt,
Free Schools, University Technical Colleges and Studio Schools are classed as
academies for this purpose. There is no distinction between sponsored, nonrecoupment and converter academies.
1.34. Where there is only one academy in the local authority’s area, then their proprietor
body must select the person who will represent them.
1.35. There is no requirement for academies members to be split into specific subgroups. e.g. primary, secondary, special, alternative provision. However, local
authorities may wish to encourage academies to consider the pupil proportions
across all academies when electing their representatives.
1.36. It is possible that a single person be appointed as an academies member to more
than one Schools Forum, for example if an academy chain is located across
multiple local authorities, providing they are elected on each occasion in
accordance with the agreed election process for each separate Schools Forum.
1.37. As with schools members, the local authority may set a date by which the election
should take place and must appoint an academies member if the election does not
take place by that date, or if an election results in a tie between two or more
candidates.

Page15122

Non-schools members
1.38. Non-schools members may number no more than a third of a Schools Forum's
total membership (excluding observers – see paragraph 1.51). A representative of
providers of 16-19 education must be elected from those providers. This includes
those in the FE sector (FE and sixth form colleges) and other institutions that
specialise in special education needs (SEN) and learning difficulties and
disabilities (LDD) provision (ISPs), where 20% or more of their students reside in
the local authority’s area. As with academies the providers are probably best
placed to determine the election process.
1.39. The local authority must appoint at least one person to represent early years
providers from the private, voluntary and independent (PVI) sector. Early years
PVI settings need to be represented because funding for the free entitlement for
three and four year olds comes from the Schools Budget, and all settings are
funded through the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) including
funding for the free entitlement for disadvantaged two-year-olds.
1.40. Before appointing additional non-schools members to the Schools Forum, the
local authority must consider whether the Church of England and Roman Catholic
dioceses situated in the local authority's area; and, where there are schools or
academies in the area with a different religious character, the appropriate faith
group, should be represented on the Schools Forum. If diocesan authorities
nominate members for appointment as non-schools members they may wish to
consider what type of representative would be most appropriate – schools-based
such as a headteacher or governor, or someone linked more generally with the
diocese, e.g. a member of the education board.
1.41. It is also good practice for local authorities to ensure that the needs and interests
of all the pupils in the local authority are adequately represented by the members
of a Schools Forum. The interests of pupils in maintained schools can be
represented by schools members. Some pupils in a local authority, however, are
not in maintained schools but instead are educated in hospitals, independent
special schools and non-maintained special schools. Certain types of non-schools
members can play an important role in representing the interests of these groups
of pupils. They can also play a role in representing the interests and views of the
services that support those groups of vulnerable and at-risk pupils who
nevertheless are on the roll of maintained schools, such as looked after children
and children with special educational needs.
1.42. The purpose of non-schools members is also to bring greater breadth of
discussion to Schools Forum meetings and ensure that stakeholders and partners
other than schools are represented. Organisations which typically provide nonschools members are trades unions, professional associations and
representatives of youth groups. Parent groups could also be considered.
However, as there are clearly limited numbers of non-schools members able to be
on a Schools Forum, care should be taken to ensure that an appropriate
representation from wider stakeholders is achieved.

16 123
Page

Other membership issues
1.43. There are three restrictions placed on who can be a non-schools member of a
Schools Forum. The local authority cannot appoint:
·
·

·

an elected member of the local authority who is appointed to the executive of
that local authority (a lead member/portfolio holder) ‘executive members’,
the Director of Children’s Services or any officer employed or engaged to
work under the management of the Director of Children’s Services, and who
does not directly provide education to children (or manage those who do)
(‘relevant officer’ (a) and (b)),
other officers with a specific role in management of and/or who advise on
funding for schools (‘relevant officer’ part (c)).

1.44. Schools Forums have the power to approve a limited range of proposals from their
local authority: the restrictions ensure that there is no conflict of interest between
the proposing body (the local authority) and the approving body (the Schools
Forum).
1.45. However, non-executive elected members and those officers who are employed in
their capacity as headteachers or teachers and those who directly manage a
service which provides education to individual children and/or advice to schools
on, for example, learning and behavioural matters are eligible to be members of
Schools Forums.
1.46. In the case of non-executive elected members, they may be a schools member (by
virtue of them being a school governor), an academies member or a non-schools
member. As a non-schools member they may be well placed to fulfil the broader
overview and scrutiny role they have within the local authority in general.
1.47. However, the inclusion of non-executive elected members and certain officers is
not a requirement. Many Schools Forums do not have such members on them and
it is for each local authority and Schools Forum to consider how best to ensure the
right balance of school and non-school representation on the Schools Forum,
taking into account their local circumstances and preferences.

The role of executive elected members
1.48. A Schools Forum needs to ensure that there are systems in place for executive
members of the Council to be aware of its views on specific issues and, in
particular, any decisions it takes in relation to the Schools Budget and individual
budget shares.
1.49. Executive members with responsibility for education/children’s services or
resources of the local authority are able to participate in Schools Forum meetings.
By doing so such elected members are able to contribute to the discussion and
receive first-hand the views of the Schools Forum: it is clearly good practice for
this to be the case and the regulations provide the right for executive members to
attend and speak at Schools Forum meetings. However, there is no requirement
for this to happen so at the very least there should be clear channels of
communication between the Schools Forum and executive members.

Page17124

Communication may also be assisted if Schools Forum members attended
relevant Cabinet meetings as members of the public, e.g. when the funding
formula is decided.

Recording the composition of Schools Forums
1.50. Each local authority must make a written record of the composition of its Schools
Forum detailing the numbers of schools members and by which group or subgroup they were elected, the number of academies members and the number of
non-schools members, their terms of office, how they were chosen and whom they
represent. This record should also indicate the term of office for schools and
academies members.

Observers
1.51. The Regulations provide that the Secretary of State can appoint an observer to
attend and speak at Schools Forum meetings, e.g. a representative from the
Education Funding Agency (EFA). This allows a conduit for national policy to be
discussed at a local level and provide access for Schools Forum to an additional
support mechanism, e.g. where there are highly complex issues to resolve.

Participation of local authority officers at meetings
1.52. Only specific officers can speak at meetings of the Schools Forum. These officers
are:
·
·
·
·

Director of Children’s Services or their representative
Chief Financial Officer or their representative
Any person invited by Schools Forum to provide financial or technical advice
Any person presenting a paper to Schools Forum but their ability to speak is
limited to the paper that they are presenting.

1.53. In the majority of cases Schools Forums are supported by a specific officer. In the
course of their work, however, Schools Forums will be required to consider a
whole range of issues and they may consider it appropriate that other officers
attend for specific items of business. Where this is the case, the local authority
should meet the Schools Forum’s requests as far as possible.

Procedures
1.54. Many procedural matters are not prescribed in the Regulations and are at the
discretion either of the local authority or the Schools Forum itself. However, there
are requirements in the Regulations relating to:
a.

quorum: A meeting is only quorate if 40% of the total membership is
present (this excludes any observers, and it is 40% of the current
18 125
Page

membership excluding vacancies). If a meeting is inquorate it can proceed
but it cannot legally take decisions (e.g. election of a Chair, or a decision
relating to funding conferred by the funding regulations). An inquorate
meeting can respond to local authority consultation, and give views to the
local authority. It would normally be good practice for the local authority to
take account of such ‘unofficial’ views, but it is not legally obliged to do so.
In practice, the arrangements for meetings should be made to reduce the
chance of a problem with quora. The quorum stipulation is in the
Regulations to help ensure the legitimacy of decisions;
b.

election of a Chair: Under the Regulations, if the position of Chair falls
vacant the Schools Forum must decide how long the term of office of the
next Chair will be. This can be for any period, but the Schools Forum should
consider carefully whether a period exceeding two years is sensible. A long
period will also cause problems if the member elected as Chair has a term
of office as a member which comes to an end before their term of office as
Chair ends. The Schools Forum must elect a Chair from amongst its own
members, so it is not possible to elect an independent Chair. In addition
any elected member of the local authority or officer of the local authority
who is a member of a Schools Forum may not hold the office of Chair.
Schools Forums can also appoint to a position of vice Chair to provide
cover if the Chair is absent or the post vacant;

c.

voting procedures: The Regulations provide that a Schools Forum may
determine its own voting procedures save that voting on:· the funding formula is limited to schools members, academies
members and PVI representatives
· de-delegation will be limited to the specific primary and secondary
phase of maintained schools members.
The powers which Schools Forums have to take decisions on a range of
funding matters increase the importance of clear procedures, e.g. decisions
are made on a simple majority or the threshold to be met if higher. These
procedures should take account of any use of working groups by the
Schools Forum – for example a decision might be taken by voting to accept
and adopt a report by a working group (see 1.58). As part of any voting
procedure there should be clarity in the procedures for recording the
outcome of a vote, and any resolutions a Schools Forum makes in relation
to any vote taken;

d.

substitutes: The local authority must make arrangements to enable
substitutes to attend and vote (where appropriate) at Schools Forum
meetings. This applies to schools members, academies members and nonschools members. The arrangements must be decided in consultation with
Schools Forum members.

e.

defects and vacancies: The Regulations provide that proceedings of the
Schools Forum are not invalidated by defects in the election or appointment
of any member, or the appointment of the Chair. Nor does the existence of
any vacancy on the Schools Forum invalidate proceedings (see paragraph
1.52(a) on quorum).

Page19126

f.

timing: Schools Forums must meet at least four times a year

1.55. Where the Regulations make no provision on a procedural matter, local discretion
should be exercised. It is for the local authority to decide how far it wishes to
establish rules for the Schools Forum to follow, in the form of standing orders.
While it is entitled to do so, it is of course good practice to allow the Schools
Forum to set its own rules so far as possible.

Public access
1.56. Schools Forums are more than just consultative bodies. They also have an
important role to play in approving certain proposals from their local authority and
are therefore involved in the decision making process surrounding the use of
public money at local level. As a result Schools Forums are required to be open to
the public. Furthermore papers, agendas and minutes must be publicly available
well in advance of each meeting. It is good practice that notification that Schools
Forum is a public meeting is included on the website and papers are published at
least a week in advance.
1.57. Some Schools Forums already operate very much along the lines of a local
authority committee. This is perfectly legitimate and will provide a consistent
framework for the running of meetings that are open to the public, and the
publishing of papers and agendas well in advance of the meeting and minutes
published promptly as required under Regulation 8(13) of the Schools Forum
Regulations 2012.

Working groups
1.58. It is open to a Schools Forum to set up working groups of members to discuss
specific issues, and to produce draft advice and decisions for the Schools Forum
itself to consider. The groups can also include wider representation - for example,
an early years reference group can represent all the different types of provider to
consider the detail of the early years single funding formula. The reference group
would then be able to give its considered view on the local authority’s proposals to
the Schools Forum. The Schools Forum should not delegate actual decisions or
the finalisation of advice to a working group, as this may have the effect of
excluding legitimate points of view.

Urgent business
1.59. It is good practice for the local authority to agree with its Schools Forum an
urgency procedure to be followed when there is a genuine business need for a
decision or formal view to be expressed by the Schools Forum, before the next
scheduled meeting. The local authority may of course call an unscheduled
meeting; but it may also wish to put in place alternative arrangements such as
clearance by email correspondence or some other means. Such instances should
be avoided so far as possible but are legitimate provided all members of the
Schools Forum have an opportunity to participate, the logistics provide a

20 127
Page

reasonable opportunity for consideration and the local authority policy on data
security is not compromised.
1.60. It is not legal for the Chair to take a decision on behalf of the Schools Forum, no
matter how urgent the matter in question; but a Schools Forum may wish to put in
place a procedure for the Chair to give the local authority a view on an urgent
issue.

Resources of the Schools Forum
1.61. The costs of a Schools Forum fall in the centrally retained budget portion of the
Schools Block of local authorities. Nationally there is variation in the level of
funding local authorities identify against Schools Forum expenditure: the median
budgeted expenditure in 2013-14 was £24,158.
1.62. It is legitimate to charge the running costs of Schools Forums to this budget
including any agreed and reasonable expenses for members attending meetings,
the costs of producing and distributing papers and costs room hire and
refreshments and for clerking of meetings. Beyond these costs some Schools
Forums have a budget of their own to use for activities such as commissioning
research or other reports. The 2012 School and Early Years Finance Regulations
provide that the level of resource devoted to running Schools Forums in 2013-14
is limited to 2012-13 levels unless the Secretary of State agrees an increase.
Similar arrangements are in the draft 2013 Regulations.

Page21128

Section 2 – Effective Schools Forums
Introduction
2.1.

As the previous section outlined, local authorities have responsibility for
establishing Schools Forums. They also have an ongoing responsibility to provide
them with appropriate support, information and guidance in carrying out their
functions and responsibilities.

2.2.

The following outlines some aspects of what local authorities and Schools Forums
should consider in ensuring that their Schools Forums are as effective as possible.
The pace of academy conversions in particular means that this significant sector
must be properly represented and feel that it is able to play a meaningful part in
the discussions of the Schools Forum.

2.3.

Central to the effectiveness or otherwise of a Schools Forum will be the
relationship between it and its local authority. The local authority will have a
significant influence on this: the support it provides; the resources it devotes and
the weight it gives to the views of Schools Forums all contribute to the nature of
the relationship. There are therefore a number of characteristics of this relationship
that are particularly important:
·
·
·
·

·

·

2.4.

Partnership: Having a shared understanding of the priorities, issues and
concerns of schools, academies and the local authority.
Effective Support: The business of the Schools Forum is supported by the
local authority in an efficient and professional manner.
Openness: It is important that a Schools Forum feels it is receiving open,
honest and objective advice from its local authority.
Responsiveness: Local authorities should as far as possible be responsive to
requests from their Schools Forums and their members. Schools Forums
themselves should also be aware of the resource implications of their
requests.
Strategic view: Members of Schools Forum should consider the needs of the
whole of the educational community, rather than using their position on a
Schools Forum to advance their own sectional or specific interests.
Challenge and Scrutiny: Schools Forums may be asked to agree to
proposals from their local authority that will have an effect on all schools and
academies in the local area. The extent to which Schools Forums can
scrutinise and challenge such proposals is an important aspect of their
effectiveness.

The characteristics identified above are just some of the aspects that will
contribute to an effective Schools Forum. The following provides more detail on
some of the specific issues that local authorities and Schools Forums may wish to
consider in thinking about their own arrangements.

22 129
Page

Induction of new members
2.5.

When new members join the Schools Forum appropriate induction materials
should be provided. These might include material relating to the operation of the
Schools Forum together with background information about the local and national
school funding arrangements. Typically they might comprise:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

the constitution of the Schools Forum
a list of members including contact details and their terms of office
any locally agreed terms of reference explaining the relationship between
the Schools Forum and the local authority
copies of minutes of previous meetings
the programme of Schools Forum meetings for the year
the local Schools Forum web address

2.6.

This Operational and Good Practice Guide, suitably supplemented by local
material, should also be provided to new members on their appointment.

2.7.

Where there is sufficient turnover of Schools Forum members in any particular
year the local authority may wish to organise a one-off induction event to brief new
members. Such an event would usefully include an outline of the role of the
Schools Forum and the national funding arrangements for schools and local
authorities. It might also include an explanation of the local funding formula and
any proposals for review. The opportunity could also be taken to explain the main
reporting requirements for school and local authority expenditure.

Training
2.8.

Ideally Schools Forum members should be able to use some of the budget set
aside for Schools Forum running costs for accessing relevant training activities.
Some training will be provided by officers of the local authority but members may
wish to attend national or regional events, the costs of which, where necessary,
can be supported from the Schools Forum budget.

2.9.

Training will need to be provided in response to any changes in the role of the
Schools Forum and national developments in respect of school funding.

Agenda setting
2.10. The process by which the agenda for a meeting or cycle of meetings is set is in
many respects one of the key determinants of the effectiveness or otherwise of a
Schools Forum.
2.11. The frequency and timing of meetings of the Schools Forum should be agreed in
advance of each financial or academic year. In drawing up this cycle of meetings,
in consultation with the Schools Forum, the local authority should provide a clear
overview of the key consultative and decision-making points in the school funding
cycle. These will be drawn from a combination of national and local information
and should inform the basic agenda items that each meeting needs to cover. For
instance meetings will need to be scheduled at appropriate points to enable the

Page23130

Schools Forum to consider the outcomes of local consultations and national
announcements.
2.12. Although the business of Schools Forums must be open and transparent, it is
recognised that from time to time items of a confidential nature will need to be
discussed. It is recommended that authorities apply the same principles that they
apply to Council/Cabinet meetings when judging an item to be confidential and
adopt similar practices for dealing with those reports in the meeting, e.g. placing
them together at the end of the agenda.

Preparation for a Schools Forum meeting
2.13. It is vital that Schools Forum is transparent, open and has clear communication
lines to all of the members that are represented. This ensures the wider school
family are aware of the business discussed, the impact on their setting and the
reasons for the decisions.
2.14. The vast majority of a Schools Forum’s business will be transacted on the basis of
prepared papers. It is therefore important that these are concise, informative and
produced in a timely and consistent manner. Recommendations should be clearly
set out at the beginning of each report. It is also helpful if the front of the report
confirms whether the report is for information or decision and who is eligible to
vote where relevant.
2.15. It is good practice for the Schools Forum and local authority to agree a standard
for these. It is usual for papers to be dispatched at least one week prior to the
meeting at which they will be discussed to allow members to consider them and if
necessary canvass views from the group they are representing. Papers should be
published on the local authority’s website at this time to enable representations to
be made to Schools Forum members.
2.16. Consistency in the presentation of papers also contributes to the effectiveness of
meetings: it helps set the tone of meetings, facilitate the engagement of all
members and signal the importance the local authority attaches to the work of the
Schools Forum. Ideally such a standard should be agreed between the Schools
Forum and local authority. The publishing of papers as a single pdf file is helpful
as it saves time and avoids accessing multiple documents both in advance of, and
during, the meeting. An Executive Summary of the reports can provide Schools
Forum members and members of the public with an overview of the agenda and
the decisions required.

2.17. The publishing of papers on a publicly available website well in advance of the
meeting ensures that all interested parties are able to access papers. Some
Schools Forums ensure that each represented group meets in the days
immediately prior to the Schools Forum meeting to ensure the agenda is
discussed and Schools Forum members are properly briefed by the group they
represent. Although on occasions it is inevitable that Schools Forums will receive
late, or tabled reports it does create some difficulty for members as they will not
have been able to seek the views of those they represent.

24 131
Page

2.18. Schools Forums can consider adopting a flexible arrangement for time
immediately prior to the meeting. For example it could be used for training of new
members, or as a drop-in session for members to ask items of clarification, or for
members to meet without officers to discuss the agenda.

Chairing the Schools Forum
2.19. The Chair of a Schools Forum plays a key role in setting the tone, pace and
overall dynamic of the Schools Forum. They should provide an environment within
which all members are able to contribute fully to discussions and guide the
Schools Forum to making well informed decisions.
2.20. The relationship between the Chair and the local authority is therefore vital. The
Chair should be very clear on the substance of the agenda items, understand the
issues involved and the decisions and/or actions that need to be taken in respect
of School Forum business. It is good practice for there to be a pre-meeting
between the senior officer of the local authority supporting the Schools Forum and
the Chair of the Schools Forum to ensure that all the issues are clearly
understood.
2.21. Equally, the Chair has the responsibility of representing the views of the Schools
Forum back to the local authority: for instance, they should, where appropriate,
take the initiative to make suggestions for improvements to the way the business
is conducted, and, in exceptional cases and with support of the members of the
Schools Forum take the view that they do not have sufficient information on which
to base a decision and ask that an item is deferred until further information is
available. However, in doing so, the Chair and Schools Forum should be fully
aware of the consequences of deferral.
2.22. The independence of Schools Forum is paramount. Enhancing the role of Chair to
a paid position, rather than the reimbursement of reasonable expenses, could blur
the lines of independence. Similarly, if the Chair undertakes significant work for the
LA in another capacity, e.g. as an external consultant, they could be viewed as
equivalent to an officer of the local authority.
2.23. Local authorities could consider if sharing contact details of the Schools Forum
Chair with neighbouring authorities would be helpful for peer support and
improving networking opportunities.

Clerking the Schools Forum
2.24. Clerking of a Schools Forum should be seen as more than just writing a note of
the meeting. A good clerk provides an invaluable link between the members of the
Schools Forum, the Chair and the local authority. It is a role often undertaken by
an employee of the local authority though we would recommend consideration is
given to the use of an independent clerk.
2.25. Clerks should manage the logistics of the meeting in terms of ensuring dispatch of
papers and producing a note from the meeting. In considering the style of meeting
notes consideration should be given to making them intelligible enough for nonattendees to get a sense of the discussion as well as clearly indicating the

Page25132

conclusion and action agreed in relation to each agenda item. Verbatim reports of
a Schools Forum’s discussion, however, are unlikely to be very useful. Schools
Forums may consider whether a simple action log should be maintained by the
clerk to ensure all action points agreed are followed up.
2.26. Beyond this a good clerk can:
a.

b.

c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

h.

i.

provide the route by which Schools Forum members can access further
information and co-ordinate communication to Schools Forum members
outside of the formal meeting cycle;
respond to any queries about the business of the Schools Forum from
headteachers, governors and others who are not on the Schools Forum
themselves;
be responsible for ensuring contact details of all members are up to date;
maintain the list of members on the Schools Forum and advise on
membership issues in general;
assist with the co-ordination of nomination/election processes run by the
constituent groups;
keep the Schools Forum website up to date: e.g. by posting latest minutes
and papers etc;
monitor, on a regular basis, the Schools Forum and general Schools
Funding section of the Department for Education (DfE) website or the
gov.uk website; and arrange for the distribution of any relevant DfE
information to Schools Forum members;
if appropriate, provide technical advice in relation to the Schools Forum
regulations and in relation to the operation of a Schools Forum’s local
constitution; and
organise, operate and record any voting activity of the Schools Forum in
line with the provisions of its local constitution.

2.27. Not all of these tasks may be able to be undertaken by the Schools Forum clerk.
However, each one is important and there should be arrangements in place to
ensure they are discharged adequately.

Good practice for Schools Forum meetings
2.28. Schools Forums should ensure there is a clear debate of all agenda items. Whilst
sub-group meetings are valuable in working through detailed issues, Schools
Forum should consider that the level of debate held at the Schools Forum meeting
and recorded in the minutes will be the official reflection of the level of challenge
and discussion on each issue.
2.29. The use of nameplates for Schools Forum members also showing which group
they are representing can be helpful to members of the public and presenters of
papers.
2.30. The use of coloured cards or coloured nameplates can be helpful when specific
members of Schools Forum are eligible to vote on specific items, e.g. dedelegation or changes to the funding formula.

26 133
Page

2.31. Consultations with Schools Forum are a key responsibility of a local authority,
ranging from the funding formula to the letting of contracts. Each consultation will
be different and depend on the subject being consulted on, but local authorities
should consider the following factors as good practice for effective consultation:·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Plan and consult early
Allow reasonable timescales for response (as Forum members may need to
consult the groups they represent)
An open and honest approach
Fully inclusive
Allow for ongoing dialogue
Provide feedback
Clear communications.

Meeting notes and recording of decisions
2.32. A vital part of the effective operation of a Schools Forum is to ensure that an
accurate record of the meeting is taken. This must include the clear recording of
votes where there are contrary views. Recommendations to, and decisions of,
Schools Forum must be clearly set out.
2.33. Notes or minutes of each Schools Forum meeting should be produced and put on
the website as soon after the meeting as possible to enable members and others
to see the outcome of any discussions and decisions/votes. It is good practice to
formally agree the accuracy of the note/minutes at a subsequent meeting but the
publication of the draft minutes should not be delayed as a result.
2.34. In order to provide clarity about representation at each meeting, it is good practice
for the minutes to record the group and/or subgroup that each member represents
against their name.

Communication
2.35. Communication to the wider educational community of the discussions and
debates of, and decisions made by, Schools Forum is fundamental to their
effective operation. The more schools and other stakeholders know about the
proceedings of the Schools Forum, the more their work will be an important and
central part of the context of local educational funding. This is particularly
important given the decision making role that the Schools Forum has. Local
authorities should consider the operational differences between the types of
stakeholders and plan their communications accordingly. For example ensuring
effective communications across the PVI sector may be more difficult than with
schools, who are more likely to have existing channels of communication e.g.
headteacher meetings.
2.36. Each Schools Forum should therefore be clear what its channels of
communication are. One channel is the requirement that all its agenda, minutes
and papers are publicly available on the local authority’s website. However, the
Schools Forum should also consider additional communication processes. These
could include:

Page27134

a.

b.
c.

d.

e.

the reporting back by Schools Forum members to their ‘parent’ group of the
business of the Schools Forum is a key responsibility of Schools Forum
members. This can be a particularly useful method of ensuing that Schools
Forum members have an ongoing dialogue with the constituents of their
group or sub-group and are therefore well able to represent their views at
Schools Forum meetings;
an annual report on the proceedings of the Schools Forum;
attendance by the Chair, or other Schools Forum member, at other relevant
consultative or management groups such as any capital working group; or
senior management meetings of the Children’s Services Department; or
a brief email to all schools, early years providers and other stakeholders
after each Schools Forum meeting informing them of the discussions and
decisions with a link to the full papers and minutes for further information
a Schools Forum newsletter can be a less formal and more interesting way
of communicating forum business and raising the profile of Schools Forum
and its members.

News updates
2.37. Most, but not all, members of the Schools Forum will already be in receipt of
regular information on school funding matters from the local authority and DfE.
Other Schools Forum members should be copied into such information flows so
that they can be kept abreast of developments between meetings.
2.38. Many local authorities have already established dedicated Schools Forum
websites on which they post key information for Schools Forum members and
other interested parties.

28 135
Page

© Crown copyright 2013
You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or
medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence or email
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.
Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.
Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at
reformteam.funding@education.gsi.gov.uk.
This document is available for download at www.gov.uk/government/publications.
Reference: EFA-00213-2013

Page29136

Schools Forum
A guide for schools and academies on its
role and their responsibilities
June 2013

Page 137

Introduction
1. The reform and simplification of local authority formulae has raised the profile of
the work of Schools Forums. There is still widespread misunderstanding about the
role of forums. The aim of this note is to give schools and academies a clear
understanding of the role of their local Schools Forum and how to ensure the voice
of the school is heard. This note applies to both academies and maintained
schools.

The role of Schools Forum
2. Schools Forum is made up of representatives from schools and academies, but
with some representation from other non-school organisations, such as nursery
and 14-191 education providers. The forum acts as a consultative body on some
issues and a decision making body on others.
3. The forum acts in a consultative role for:
§ Changes to the local funding formula. (The local authority is responsible for
the final decision, although in some cases it may delegate the decisionmaking power to the Schools Forum)
§

Proposed changes to the operation of the minimum funding guarantee

§

Changes to or new contracts affecting schools (e.g. school meals)

§

Arrangements for pupils with special educational needs, in pupil referral
units and in early years provision

4. The forum is responsible for decisions on:
§ How much funding may be centrally retained within the Dedicated Schools
Grant (e.g. for the Admissions Service, prudential borrowing costs,
additional funding available for growing schools)
§

Any proposed carry forward of deficits on central spend from one year to
the next

§

Proposals to de-delegate funding from maintained primary and secondary
schools (e.g. for staff supply cover, insurance, behaviour support)

§

Changes to the scheme of financial management

Schools’ representation
5. Schools and academies representatives on the forum should be roughly
proportionate to the number of pupils in each sector and would generally include
representatives from:
§ Maintained nursery schools
§

Maintained primary schools

§

Maintained secondary schools

1

The requirement for a 14-19 representative will be replaced by a requirement for a Post-16 representative
in the autumn of 2013

2

Page 138

§

Maintained special schools

§

Maintained pupil referral units

§

Academies and free schools

6. Middle schools do not form a category of schools in their own right and should be
treated in accordance with their deemed status.
7. Where there is at least one school in a particular category, there must be at least
one representative for that group on the forum.
8. Representatives should be elected by their peer group. In the case of maintained
schools, representatives should be head teachers (or their representatives) or
governors, elected by their appropriate phase. Academies members should be
elected by the Academy Trusts in the local authority area.

Responsibilities of schools and their representatives
9. Schools can expect to have their views canvassed and to receive feedback from
their representatives, who have a responsibility to represent the interests of their
peer group rather than the interests of their own individual school.
10. When electing an individual to represent the interests of their respective group,
schools should satisfy themselves that their chosen representative(s) is competent
to act as their advocate.
11. School staff and governors should ensure that they are aware of business under
discussion at Schools Forum and should provide feedback to their elected
representatives to ensure that their views are considered when decisions affecting
schools’ finances are being made

Responsibilities of Local Authorities
12. Local authorities are required to publish all papers on a publicly-available website
well in advance of the meeting. Papers should contain clear recommendations and
the responsible officers should attend the meeting to provide further information
and advice. Local authority officers should not dominate the meeting.
13. All meetings of the Schools Forum must be open to the public. Observers do not
have an automatic right to speak at the meetings, although the Chair may allow
contributions if it seems appropriate.

Further information
14. Further information on Schools Forums, including a simple table which shows the
decision making responsibilities of the Schools Forum, can be found on our
website Schools forum guidance.

3

Page 139

© Crown copyright 2013
You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or
medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence or email
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.
Where we have identified any third party copyright information you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.
Any enquiries regarding this publication should be sent to us at
www.education.gov.uk/contactus.
This document is available for download at www.gov.uk/government/publications.

4

Page 140

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 13th November 2013
WORK PLAN
Meeting Date
22nd January 2014

Budget

Schools Settlement
Schools Budget
Budget monitoring update
Pupil Premium
De-delegation of budgets

2nd April 2014

Schools Budget update
School redundancies
update

Consultation

2nd July 2014

October/November 2014

Schools Budget Outturn
School Balances

Elect chair & vice chair
Final DSG 2014-15
Budget monitoring update
Arrangements for
SEN,WASP, Home Tuition
and early years

School funding formula
proposals 2015-16

Page 141

School Finance
Regulations

Working Groups

Early Years Formula
SEN Funding Formula
Schools Funding Formula

Other

Raising attainment

Scheme for Financing
Schools

Traded Services

e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\1\0\ai00023019\$gaydm3rv.doc

Harmonisation Update

Membership

Agenda Item 17

DfE Regs &
guidelines

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142

